
           

FINAL AGENDA
 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
MONDAY
NOVEMBER 3, 2014

  COUNCIL CHAMBERS
211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE

4:00 P.M. AND 6:00 P.M.
 

This meeting has been scheduled in place of the November 4, 2014, Regular Meeting due to the
General Election being held on November 4, 2014.

4:00 P.M. MEETING
 

Individual Items on the 4:00 p.m. meeting agenda may be postponed to the 6:00 p.m.
meeting.

             

1. CALL TO ORDER
 

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION
 
Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council and
to the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council may vote to go into
executive session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and discussion with
the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following agenda, pursuant to
A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(3).

 

2. ROLL CALL

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means .

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR EVANS
COUNCILMEMBER BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER

COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER WOODSON

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND MISSION STATEMENT

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the City of Flagstaff is to protect and enhance the quality of life of its citizens.
 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS

None
 

A.   Consideration and Approval of Minutes: City Council Special Meeting (Executive Session)
of October 28, 2014.

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Amend/approve the minutes of the City Council Special Meeting (Executive Session) of

October 28, 2014.
 

5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 



5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Public Participation enables the public to address the Council about an item that is not on the
agenda (or is listed under Possible Future Agenda Items). Comments relating to items that
are on the agenda will be taken at the time that the item is discussed. If you wish to address
the Council at tonight's meeting, please complete a comment card and submit it to the
recording clerk as soon as possible. Your name will be called when it is your turn to speak.
You may address the Council up to three times throughout the meeting, including comments
made during Public Participation. Please limit your remarks to three minutes per item to allow
everyone an opportunity to speak. At the discretion of the Chair, ten or more persons present
at the meeting and wishing to speak may appoint a representative who may have no more
than fifteen minutes to speak. 

 

6. PROCLAMATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS

None 
 

7. APPOINTMENTS

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council and
to the general public that the City Council may vote to go into executive session, which will not
be open to the public, for the purpose of discussing or considering employment, assignment,
appointment, promotion, demotion, dismissal, salaries, disciplining or resignation of a public
officer, appointee, or employee of any public body...., pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(1).

None
 

8. LIQUOR LICENSE PUBLIC HEARINGS
 

A.   Consideration and Action on Liquor License Application:  Andrea Lewkowitz,
"Smashburger", 1020 S. Milton Rd. Ste #102., Series 12 (restaurant), New License.

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Hold the Public Hearing

The City Council has the option to:
1) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for approval;
2) Forward the application to the State with no recommendation; or
3) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for denial based on the
testimony received at the public hearing and/or other factors.

 
 

9. CONSENT ITEMS

All matters under Consent Agenda are considered by the City Council to be routine and will
be enacted by one motion approving the recommendations listed on the agenda. Unless
otherwise indicated, expenditures approved by Council are budgeted items.

None
 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting November 3, 2014                           2 



             

10. ROUTINE ITEMS
 

A.   Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2014-28:  An ordinance of the Mayor and
Council amending Title II, Boards and Commissions, of the Flagstaff City Code by
amending various boards and commissions of the City to provide for consistency in the
number of members and their terms.

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  At the November 3, 2014, Council Meeting

1) Read Ordinance No. 2014-28 by title only for the first time
2) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2014-28 by title only (if approved above)
At the November 18, 2014, Council Meeting
3) Read Ordinance No. 2014-28 by title only for the final time
4) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2014-28 by title only (if approved above)
5) Adopt Ordinance No. 2014-28

 

B. Presentation of City Manager Awards
 

RECESS 

6:00 P.M. MEETING

RECONVENE
 

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council
and to the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council may vote to go into
executive session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and discussion with
the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following agenda, pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3 ).

 

11. ROLL CALL

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means.

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR EVANS
COUNCILMEMBER BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER

COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER WOODSON 

 

12. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
 

13. CARRY OVER ITEMS FROM THE 4:00 P.M. AGENDA
 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting November 3, 2014                           3 



             

14. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS
 

A.   Public Hearing, Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2014-30:  An
ordinance of the City Council of the City of Flagstaff, Arizona, extending and increasing the
corporate limits of the City of Flagstaff, Coconino County, State of Arizona, pursuant to the
provisions of Title 9, Chapter 4, Arizona Revised Statues, by annexing certain land totaling
approximately 3.14 acres located at 2701 S. Woody Mountain Road, which land is
contiguous to the existing corporate limits of the City of Flagstaff and establishing city
zoning for said land as RR, Rural Residential.  (Annexation of property for Aspen
Heights located on Woody Mountain Road)

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  At the November 3, 2014 Council Meeting:

1) Continue holding Public Hearing
2) Read Ordinance No. 2014-30 by title only for the first time
3) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2014-30 by title only for the first time (if approved
above)
At the November 18, 2014 Council Meeting:
4) Read Ordinance No. 2014-30 by title for the final time
5) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2014-30 by title only for the final time (if approved
above)
6) Adopt Ordinance No. 2014-30

 

B.   Public Hearing, Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2014-31:  An Ordinance
amending the Flagstaff Zoning Map designation of approximately 36.94 acres of real
property generally located at the intersection of Route 66 and Woody Mountain Road, from
Rural Residential ("RR") to Highway Commercial ("HC") for 3.6 acres, and to Medium
Density Residential ("MR") for 33.33 acres.  (Rezoning of property for Aspen Heights
located on Woody Mountain Road)

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  At the November 3, 2014 Council Meeting:

1) Continue holding Public Hearing
2) Read Ordinance No. 2014-31 by title only for the first time
3) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2014-31 by title for the first time (if approved above)
At the November 18, 2014 Council Meeting:
4) Read Ordinance No. 2014-31 by title only for the final time
5) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2014-31 by title for the final time (if approved above)
6) Adopt Ordinance No. 2014-31

 

15. REGULAR AGENDA
 

A.   Consideration and Approval of Resolution No. 2014-38:  A resolution authorizing the
execution of a First Amended and Restated Development Agreement between Pinnacle
DevCo, Ltd., and the City of Flagstaff related to the development of approximately 18.6
acres of real property generally located at 800 E Sterling Lane.  (Pinnacle Pines)

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  1)  Read Resolution No. 2014-38 by title only.

2)  City Clerk reads Resolution No. 2014-38 by title only (if approved above).
3)  Approve Resolution No. 2014-38 

 

B.   Consideration and Approval of a Final Plat and Map of Dedication  request by

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting November 3, 2014                           4 



B.   Consideration and Approval of a Final Plat and Map of Dedication  request by
Mogollon Engineering & Surveying, Inc., on behalf of Pinnacle 146 LLC, for the subdivision
of approximately 0.63 acres into 8 single-family residential townhouse lots located at 800
E Sterling Lane within the Medium Density Residential (MR) zone and the dedication of
right-of-way within a portion of Tract 22 of The Estates at Pine Canyon One.

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Staff recommends that the Council approve the final plat and Map of Dedication and

authorize the Mayor to sign the final plat, the City/Subdivider Agreement and Map of
Dedication when notified by staff that all documents are ready for signature and
recordation.

 

C. Consideration of Cancelling the December 23, 2014, Council Meeting
 

16. DISCUSSION ITEMS

None
 

17. POSSIBLE FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Verbal comments from the public on any item under this section must be given during Public
Participation near the beginning of the meeting. Written comments may be submitted to the
City Clerk. After discussion and upon agreement of three members of the Council, an item
will be moved to a regularly-scheduled Council meeting.

None
 

18. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS AND REPORTS FROM COUNCIL AND STAFF, REQUESTS
FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

 

19. ADJOURNMENT
 

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING OF NOTICE

The undersigned hereby certifies that a copy of the foregoing notice was duly posted at Flagstaff City Hall on ___________ ,
at _________ a.m./p.m. in accordance with the statement filed by the City Council with the City Clerk.

Dated this _____ day of _________________, 2014.

____________________________________
Elizabeth A. Burke, MMC, City Clerk                                 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting November 3, 2014                           5 



  4. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Elizabeth A. Burke, City Clerk

Date: 10/31/2014

Meeting Date: 11/03/2014

TITLE
Consideration and Approval of Minutes: City Council Special Meeting (Executive Session) of October
28, 2014.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Amend/approve the minutes of the City Council Special Meeting (Executive Session) of October 28,
2014.

INFORMATION
Attached are copies of the minutes of the City Council Special Meeting (Executive Session) of October
28, 2014.

Attachments:  10.28.2014.CCSMES.Minutes



SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING (EXECUTIVE SESSION)
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 28, 2014
STAFF CONFERENCE ROOM

211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE
4:00 P.M.

 
MINUTES

               

1. Call to Order
 

2. Roll Call

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means.

PRESENT

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR EVANS
COUNCILMEMBER BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER WOODSON

ABSENT

COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON (excused)

 

 

3. Recess into Executive Session.
 
 

The Flagstaff City Council recessed into Executive Session at 4:02 p.m.
 

4. Executive Session:
 

A. Discussion or consultation for legal advice with the attorney or attorneys of the public body; and
discussion or consultation with the attorneys of the public body in order to consider its position
and instruct its attorneys regarding the public body's position regarding contracts that are the
subject of negotiations, in pending or contemplated litigation or in settlement discussions
conducted in order to avoid or resolve litigation, pursuant to ARS 38-431.03(A)(3) and (4),
respectively.

 

i. Hopi v. City of Flagstaff; City of Flagstaff v. AZ Snowbowl 
 

B. Discussion or consultation for legal advice with the attorney or attorneys of the public body,
pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(3).

 

i. Heritage Square 
 

C. *Discussion or consultation for legal advice with the attorney or attorneys of the public



C. *Discussion or consultation for legal advice with the attorney or attorneys of the public
body; and discussion or consultation with the attorneys of the public body in order to
consider its position and instruct its attorneys regarding the public body's position
regarding contracts that are the subject of negotiations, in pending or contemplated
litigation or in settlement discussions conducted in order to avoid or resolve litigation,
pursuant to ARS 38-431.03(A)(3) and (4), respectively.

 

i. *Possible settlement of CV20134-053783: Capital Improvements, LLC. v. City of Flagstaff
regarding West/Arrowhead project.

 

5. Adjournment
 
  The Flagstaff City Council reconvened into Open Session at 5:12 p.m. at which time the Special

Meeting of October 28, 2014, adjourned.
 

 
 

_______________________________________
MAYOR                                                                  

ATTEST:
 

_____________________________
CITY CLERK

 

Flagstaff City Council Special Meeting October 28, 2014                          2 



  8. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Stacy Saltzburg, Deputy City Clerk

Date: 10/29/2014

Meeting Date: 11/03/2014

TITLE: 
Consideration and Action on Liquor License Application:  Andrea Lewkowitz, "Smashburger", 1020
S. Milton Rd. Ste #102., Series 12 (restaurant), New License.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Hold the Public Hearing
The City Council has the option to:
1) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for approval;
2) Forward the application to the State with no recommendation; or
3) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for denial based on the testimony
received at the public hearing and/or other factors.

 

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
Andrea Lewkowitz is the agent for a new Series 12 (restaurant) liquor license for Smashburger.  

Financial Impact:
There is no budgetary impact to the City of Flagstaff as this is a recommendation to the State.

Connection to Council Goal:
Effective governance (Regulatory action)

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
Not applicable.

Options and Alternatives:
1) Table the item if additional information or time is needed.
2) Make no recommendation.
3) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for approval.
4) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for denial, stating the reasons for such
recommendation. 
   



   

Background/History:
An application for a new Series 12 liquor license was received from Andrea Lewkowitz for Smashburger.

A background investigation performed by Sgt. Matt Wright of the Flagstaff Police Department resulted in
a recommendation for approval.

A background investigation performed by Tom Boughner, Code Compliance Manager resulted in no
active code violations being reported.

Sales tax and licensing information was reviewed by Ranbir Cheema, Tax, Licensing & Revenue
Manager, who stated that the business is in compliance with the tax and licensing requirements of the
City.

Key Considerations:
Because the application is for a new license, consideration may be given to both the location and the
applicant's personal qualifications.

A Series 12 license allows the holder of a restaurant license to sell and serve spirituous liquor solely for
consumption on the premises of an establishment which derives at least forty percent (40%) of its gross
revenue from the sale of food.

The deadline for issuing a recommendation on this application is November 7, 2014.

The applicant is not required to provide the distance between the applicant’s business and the nearest
church or school for government; and the State does not require a geological map or list of licenses in
the vicinity for any license series.

Expanded Financial Considerations:
This business will contribute to the tax base of the community.

Community Involvement:
The application was properly posted on October 9, 2014.

No written protests have been received to date.

Expanded Options and Alternatives:
1) Table the item if additional information or time is needed.
2) Make no recommendation.
3) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for approval.
4) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for denial, stating the reasons for such
recommendation. 

Attachments:  Smashburger - Letter to Applicant
Hearing Procedures
Series 12 Description
Smashburger - PD Memo
Smashburger - Code Memo
Smashburger - Tax Memo





OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK

October 23, 2014

Smashburger
Attn: Andrea Lewkowitz
3900 East Mexico Ave., Suite 1200
Denver, CO  80210

Dear Ms. Lewkowitz:

Your application for a new Series 12 liquor license for Smashburger at 1020 S. Milton Rd., Ste 
102., was posted on October 9, 2014. The City Council will consider the application at a public 
hearing during their regularly scheduled City Council Meeting on Monday, November 3, 2014
which begins at 4:00 p.m.

It is important that you or your representative attend this Council Meeting and be prepared to 
answer any questions that the City Council may have.  Failure to be available for questions could 
result in a recommendation for denial of your application.  We suggest that you contact your legal 
counsel or the Department of Liquor Licenses and Control at 602-542-5141 to determine the 
criteria for your license.  To help you understand how the public hearing process will be 
conducted, we are enclosing a copy of the City’s liquor license application hearing procedures.

The twenty-day posting period for your liquor license application is set to expire on October 29, 
2014 and the application may be removed from the premises at that time.

If you have any questions, please feel free to call me at 928-213-2077.

Sincerely,

Stacy Saltzburg
Deputy City Clerk

Enclosure



GA02 2005-350/060321 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City of Flagstaff 
 

 

Liquor License Application 

Hearing Procedures 
 

 

1. When the matter is reached at the Council meeting, the presiding officer will open the 

public hearing on the item.   

 

2. The presiding officer will request that the Applicant come forward to address the Council 

regarding the application in a presentation not exceeding ten (10) minutes.  Council may 

question the Applicant regarding the testimony or other evidence provided by the 

Applicant. 

 

3. The presiding officer will then ask whether City staff have information to present to the 

Council regarding the application.  Staff should come forward at this point and present 

information to the Council in a presentation not exceeding ten (10) minutes.  Council may 

question City staff regarding the testimony or other evidence provided by City staff. 

 

4. Other parties, if any, may then testify, limited to three (3) minutes per person.  Council may 

question these parties regarding the testimony they present to the Council. 

 

5. The Applicant may make a concise closing statement to the Council, limited to five (5) 

minutes.  During this statement, Council may ask additional questions of the Applicant. 

 

6. City staff may make a concise closing statement to the Council, limited to five (5) minutes.  

During this statement, Council may ask additional questions of City Staff. 

 

7. The presiding officer will then close the public hearing. 

 

8. The Council will then, by motion, vote to forward the application to the State with a 

recommendation of approval, disapproval, or shall vote to forward with no 

recommendation. 

 

 





License Types: Series 12 Restaurant License

Non-transferable
On-sale retail privileges 
Note: Terms in BOLD CAPITALS are defined in the glossary. 

PURPOSE: 
Allows the holder of a restaurant license to sell and serve spirituous liquor solely for 
consumption on the premises of an establishment which derives at least forty percent (40%) 
of its gross revenue from the sale of food. 

ADDITIONAL RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
An applicant for a restaurant license must file a copy of its restaurant menu and Restaurant 
Operation Plan with the application. The Plan must include listings of all restaurant equipment 
and service items, the restaurant seating capacity, and other information requested by the
department to substantiate that the restaurant will operate in compliance with Title 4. 

The licensee must notify the Department, in advance, of any proposed changes in the seating 
capacity of the restaurant or dimensions of a restaurant facility. 

A restaurant licensee must maintain complete restaurant services continually during the hours 
of selling and serving of spirituous liquor, until at least 10:00 p.m. daily, if any spirituous liquor 
is to be sold and served up to 2:00 a.m. 

On any original applications, new managers and/or the person responsible for the day-to-day 
operations must attend a basic and management training class. 

A licensee acting as a RETAIL AGENT, authorized to purchase and accept DELIVERY of 
spirituous liquor by other licensees, must receive a certificate of registration from the 
Department. 

A PREGNANCY WARNING SIGN for pregnant women consuming spirituous liquor must be 
posted within twenty (20) feet of the cash register or behind the bar. 

A log must be kept by the licensee of all persons employed at the premises including each 
employee's name, date and place of birth, address and responsibilities. 

Bar, beer and wine bar, and restaurant licensees must pay an annual surcharge of $20.00. 
The money collected from these licensees will be used by the Department for an auditor to 
review compliance by restaurants with the restaurant licensing provisions of ARS 4-205.02. 

http://www.azliquor.gov/licensing/glossary.asp


 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Memo # 14-099-01 

 
TO:  Chief Kevin Treadway 
 
FROM: Sgt. Matt Wright    
 
DATE: October 15, 2014 
 
RE: LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION – SERIES 12- FOR “Smashburger” 
 
 
 
On October 15, 2014, I initiated an investigation into an application for a series 12 (restaurant) 
liquor license filed by Andrea Lewkowitz (Agent), Scott Crane (Controlling Person), John 
Moore (Controlling Person), and Kurt Riske (General Manager).  Andrea Lewkowitz is the listed 
Agent on the license for administrative purposes only and will not be active in the day to day 
operations. Kurt Riske is the general manager for Smashburger and will be assisting with the day 
to day operations. Smashburger is located at 1020 S. Milton Road Suite 102 in Flagstaff. This is 
an application for the new series 12 license #12033367.  
 
I conducted a query through local systems and public access on Andrea Lewkowitz, Scott Crane, 
John Moore, and Kurt Riske and nothing negative was found. I spoke with Kurt Riske on the 
phone. Kurt said he would help with the operation of the restaurant but the primary manager will 
be Jordan Boucher who had recently been hired. Kurt said the Smashburger has taken over the 
lease from the restaurant that was previously in suite #102 called Modern Grove. Kurt said they 
are completing some renovations and plan to open for business on November 12, 2014. Kurt said 
they will operate without a liquor license until they are granted one through this application 
process.  Kurt has attended the mandatory liquor law training course and provided proof.  
 
No liquor law violations could be located for Smashburger as it has not opened yet. No liquor 
violations could be found on any of the applicants.   
  
As a result of this investigation, a recommendation to Council would be for approval.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







� Page 1 

      Memo 
To: Stacy Saltzberg, Deputy City Clerk 

From: Ranbir Cheema - Tax, Licensing & Revenue Manager 

Date: October 10, 2014 

Re: Series 12 Liquor License – New License – Smashburger #1444 

Smashburger Acquisition Phoenix LLC located at 1020 S. Milton Road, Suite 102 is 
properly licensed with the sales tax section of the city. They do not plan to start 
operating at this location until December 2014. They are currently in compliance with 
the city sales tax requirements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

/liquor licenses/Smashburger.doc 



  10. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Elizabeth A. Burke, City Clerk

Date: 10/29/2014

Meeting Date: 11/03/2014

TITLE: 
Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2014-28:  An ordinance of the Mayor and
Council amending Title II, Boards and Commissions, of the Flagstaff City Code by amending
various boards and commissions of the City to provide for consistency in the number of members and
their terms.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
At the November 3, 2014, Council Meeting
1) Read Ordinance No. 2014-28 by title only for the first time
2) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2014-28 by title only (if approved above)
At the November 18, 2014, Council Meeting
3) Read Ordinance No. 2014-28 by title only for the final time
4) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2014-28 by title only (if approved above)
5) Adopt Ordinance No. 2014-28

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
Adoption of this ordinance will amend various chapters of Title II, Boards and Commissions, of the
Flagstaff City Code as previously directed by City Council to bring consistency in the number of
members and terms of each and eliminate inactive committees/commissions.

Financial Impact:
None

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
COUNCIL GOALS:
8. Review all Commissions
11. Effective governance

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
Yes. The City Council identified the review of all Boards/Commissions as one of its top ten goals at its
retreat last year. Since that time, several work sessions have been held to address changes they would
like made to both the Manual (Handbook) and necessary ordinances to amend the City Code to reflect
those changes. The first step in this process was adoption of the amended Manual, which took place at
the October 21, 2014, Council meeting. Because all of these boards and commissions are outlined in
Title II of the Flagstaff City Code, we were able to create one ordinance to amend them all rather than
create an ordinance for each individual board/commission.



Options and Alternatives:
1) Adopt the ordinance;
2) Amend the ordinance;
3) Not adopt the ordinance

Community Involvement:
Inform

Attachments:  Ord. 2014-28



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-28 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FLAGSTAFF, COCONINO COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING TITLE II, 
BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS, BY AMENDING CHAPTER 2-01, PLANNING 
AND ZONING COMMISSION; CHAPTER 2-02, BUILDING AND FIRE CODE 
BOARD OF APPEALS; CHAPTER 2-03, PARKS AND RECREATION 
COMMISSION; CHAPTER 2-04, WATER COMMISSION; CHAPTER 2-08, 
COMMISSION ON DIVERSITY AWARENESS; CHAPTER 2-10, BOARD OF 
ADJUSTMENT; CHAPTER 2-11, FLAGSTAFF AIRPORT COMMISSION; 
CHAPTER 2-12, TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION; CHAPTER 2-13, 
TOURISM COMMISSION; CHAPTER 2-14, BEAUTIFICATION AND PUBLIC 
ART COMMISSION; CHAPTER 2-17, SUSTAINABILITY COMMISSION; 
CHAPTER 2-18, COMMISSION ON DISABILITY AWARENESS; CHAPTER 
2-19, HERITAGE PRESERVATION COMMISSION; CHAPTER 2-20, OPEN 
SPACES COMMISSION; CHAPTER 2-22, FLAGSTAFF COMMUNITY LAND 
TRUST COMMISSION; AND CHAPTER 2-23, FLAGSTAFF AREA REGIONAL 
PLAN CITIZENS’ ADVISORY COMMITTEE, THEREOF 

 
 
RECITALS: 
 
WHEREAS, the Flagstaff City Council desires to have consistency among the various boards 
and commissions of the City with regard to membership numbers and terms; and 
 
WHEREAS, Title II, Boards and Commissions, of the Flagstaff City Code contains requirements 
for the various boards and commissions of the City. 
 
 
ENACTMENTS: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA that the Flagstaff City Code is hereby amended as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. Chapter 2-01, Planning and Zoning Commission, is amended as follows: 
 
2-01-001-0002: MEMBERSHIP 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission shall consist of seven (7) members appointed by the 
Mayor and Council. In addition, the City Council may designate a Councilmember 
representative as a non-voting, ex-officio member of the Commission. 
 
The term of each citizen member shall be three (3) years or until his successor takes office. 
Vacancies occurring otherwise than through the expiration of term shall be filled for the 
unexpired portion of the term. 
 
A.     A chairperson and vice-chairperson shall be elected from and by the voting membership 

of the Commission to serve one-year terms. A chairperson may serve no more than two 
consecutive terms as chairperson (exclusive of a term as vice-chairperson). Upon the 
conclusion of a second, consecutive term as chairperson, such commission member 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-28  PAGE 2 
 

shall be ineligible to serve as either Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson until a calendar 
year has expired. 

 
B.     In addition to the causes for removal set out in the Board and Commission Members’ 

Handbook RULES AND OPERATIONS MANUAL, a member accumulating eight (8) 
absences from regularly scheduled meetings in any given calendar year will be 
automatically removed from the Commission and a replacement appointed by the City 
Council. An unexcused absence is defined as the failure of the member to notify the 
Planning and Development Services Section of his or her inability to attend a regularly 
scheduled meeting. (Ord. 2010-35, 11/16/2010) 

 
2-01-001-0005 DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission created in this Chapter shall be and act as the Zoning 
Commission of the City, and all duties and powers granted to zoning commissions under State 
law shall be exercised by the Planning and Zoning Commission. In addition to any authority 
granted to the Planning and Zoning Commission by State law or other ordinances of the City, 
the Planning and Zoning Commission shall have the following duties and functions under the 
provisions of these regulations: 
 
A.     To adopt rules of procedure necessary for the administration of its responsibilities 

consistent with City Code, Title 10 (Zoning Code) and the Board and Commission 
Members’ Handbook adopted by resolution of the City Council. 

 
B.A.    To review and recommend to the City Council adoption of a comprehensive general plan 

adopted in compliance with the authority provided in A.R.S. § 9-461.05 for the orderly 
growth and development of the City and for any land outside the City which, in the 
opinion of the Planning and Zoning Commission, bears a relation to the planning of the 
City. 

 
C.B.    To hear, review, and make recommendations to the City Council regarding applications 

for amendments to the General Plan or any other plan in accordance with the provisions 
of City Code, Title 11, Chapter 11-10 (General Plans). 

 
D.C. To serve as an advisory body to the City Council and furnish the Council through the 

Planning Director the facts concerning the adoption of any report or recommendation. 
 
E.D.     To make its special knowledge and expertise available upon reasonable written request 

and authorization of the City Council to any official, department, board, commission or 
agency of the state or federal governments. 

 
F.E.     To hear, and review amendments to the Zoning Map and to the text of the Zoning Code 

in accordance with the provisions of Title 10, Zoning Code, Division 10-20.50 
(Amendments to the Zoning Code Text and the Zoning Map). 

 
G.F.    To confer with and advise other similar City or County commissions. 
 
H.G.     To make investigations, maps, reports, and recommendations to the City Council in 

regard to the physical development of the City. 
 

http://www.codepublishing.com/az/flagstaff/html/Flagstaff11/Flagstaff1110000.html#11.10
http://www.codepublishing.com/az/flagstaff/html/Flagstaff10/Flagstaff1020050.html#10.20.50


ORDINANCE NO. 2014-28  PAGE 3 
 

I.H.     To hear, review and make recommendations to the City Council regarding preliminary 
subdivision plats after recommendation from the Planning Director and City Engineer in 
accordance with City Code Title 11, Chapter 11-20, Subdivision and Land Split 
Regulations. 

 
J.I.    To take such other action as authorized in City Code Title 10 (Zoning Code) and City 

Code Title 11 (Subdivision and Land Split Regulations GENERAL PLAN AND 
SUBDIVISIONS) as necessary to implement the provisions of those Titles and the 
General Plan. 

 
K.J.    To consider, review and approve Conditional Use Permits, pursuant to the provisions of 

City Code Title 10, Zoning Code, Section 10-20.40.050 (Conditional Use Permits). 
 
L.K.    The Commission shall carry out other such duties as determined by the City Council; 

and present other recommendations the City Council deems pertinent. (Ord. 859, 10-24-
72; Ord. 2010-35, Amended, 11/16/2010) 

 
 
SECTION 2. Chapter 2-02, Building and Fire Code Board of Appeals, is amended as 
follows: 
 
2-02-001-0002 MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD: 
 
A.     The Board of Appeals shall consist of five SEVEN individuals, SERVING THREE-YEAR 

STAGGERED TERMS, appointed by the Council who are qualified by experience and 
training to pass upon matters pertaining to building construction and pertinent matters of 
the Fire Code, Chapter 5-02. 

 
B.     In addition to the five regular members, the City Council shall appoint two alternate 

members who shall be called by the Board Chairperson or Vice-Chair to hear appeals 
during the absence or disqualification of a member. 

 
1. Alternate members shall be appointed to five year terms, or until a successor has 

been appointed. 
 
2. An alternate member shall be counted toward a quorum in the absence of a 

quorum of regular members. 
 
3.     Alternate members acting in the absence of a regular member shall be accorded 

full discussion, deliberation, and voting rights. 
 
C.     The City Council shall appoint two regular members and one alternate to five-year terms; 

two regular members to four-year terms, and one regular member and one alternate to 
three-year terms. After the initial appointment all terms thereafter will be for five years. 

 
D.B.     The building official and fire marshal shall be ex-officio members of said Board but shall 

have no vote on any matter before the Board. 
 
E C.   A quorum shall be more than fifty percent (50%) of the voting membership of the Board. 
 

http://www.codepublishing.com/az/flagstaff/html/Flagstaff11/Flagstaff1120000.html#11.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/az/flagstaff/html/Flagstaff10/Flagstaff10.html#10
http://www.codepublishing.com/az/flagstaff/html/Flagstaff05/Flagstaff0502000.html#5.02


ORDINANCE NO. 2014-28  PAGE 4 
 

F.D.  Citizen members of the Board may be removed by the Mayor and Council for 
inefficiency, neglect of duty or malfeasance in office or in accordance with the Board and 
Commission Members’ Handbook RULES AND OPERATIONS MANUAL adopted by 
resolution of the City Council. (Ord. 2011-31, 01/03/2012) 

 
2-02-001-0007 RULES AND PROCEDURES: 
 
A.     The Board shall adopt hearing procedures not inconsistent with State law, the Flagstaff 

City Charter, and the City of Flagstaff Board and Commission Members’ Handbook. 
 
B.     All other rules of procedure shall be established by the members so long as said rules 

are consistent with State law, the City Charter, the Board and Commission Members’ 
Handbook, and this chapter. 

 
C.      
 
Official business shall be conducted pursuant to the Board of Appeals’ adopted hearing 
procedures and the Board and Commission Members’ Handbook RULES AND OPERATIONS 
MANUAL adopted by Resolution No. 2005-117 2014-37 of the City Council and in accordance 
with meeting procedures, if any, adopted by the Commission insofar as they are not in conflict 
with the Board and Commission Members’ Handbook RULES AND OPERATIONS MANUAL. 
In the event of any such conflict, the provisions of the Board and Commission Members’ 
Handbook RULES AND OPERATIONS MANUAL shall prevail. (Ord. 2011-31, 01/03/2012) 
 
 
SECTION 3. Chapter 2-03, Parks and Recreation Commission, is amended as follows: 
 
2-03-001-0001 COMMISSION CREATED; MEMBERS: 
 
There is hereby created a Parks and Recreation Commission for the City, consisting of seven 
(7) members appointed by the City Council. In addition, the City council may designate a 
Councilmember representative as a non-voting, ex-officio member of the Commission. 
 
(Ord. No. 2007-11, Amended 02/06/2007) 
 
 
SECTION 4. Chapter 2-04, Water Commission, is amended as follows: 
 
2-04-001-0004 WATER COMMISSION: 
 
There is hereby established a Water Commission. There shall be 9 SEVEN voting members of 
said Commission, who shall consist of: 
 
A.     Nine (9) SEVEN (7) voting members to be appointed by the Council of the City, who 

shall serve for three (3) year terms on a staggered basis. 
 
B.     The Chair of the Planning and Zoning Commission, or a member of the Planning and 

Zoning Commission, to serve as a non-voting member during his or her term of office. 
 
C.     The City Council may designate a Councilmember representative as a non-voting, ex-

officio member of the Commission. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-28  PAGE 5 
 

 
D.     Membership on the Commission shall terminate if any member has two (2) consecutive 

unexcused absences. The Chair shall determine, prior to any meeting, if a member’s 
absence is excusable. (Ord. 1926, 12/17/96) 

 
(Ord. No. 1789, Amended, 01/05/93; Ord. No. 1926, Amended, 12/17/96; (Ord. No. 2007-12, Amended 02/06/2007) 
(Ord. No. 2009-08, Amended, 03/03/09) 
 
2-04-001-0006 MEETINGS: 
 
The meetings of the Commission shall be held at the time and place adopted for the regular 
monthly meetings of the Commission. 
 
Meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the Board and Commission Members’ 
Handbook RULES AND OPERATIONS MANUAL adopted by resolution of the Flagstaff City 
council, and in compliance with all other local, state, and federal laws. 
 
A quorum shall be one more than half the voting membership of the Commission. 
 
Ord. 1789, 01/05/93; Ord. No. 2007-12, Amended 02/06/2007; Ord. No. 1789, Amended, 01/05/93; Ord. No. 2009-08, 
Amended, 03/03/09 
 
 
SECTION 5. Chapter 2-08, Commission on Diversity Awareness, is amended as follows: 
 
2-08-001-0002 CREATION OF COMMISSION: 
 
There is hereby created the Commission on Diversity Awareness which shall consist of seven 
regular members and two alternate members who shall be appointed by the City Council. A 
Chairperson shall be selected by a majority vote of those members at a meeting called for that 
purpose. In addition to the seven regular and two alternate members, the City Council may 
designate a Councilmember representative as a non-voting, ex-officio member of the 
Commission. 
 
(Ord. 2001-07, Amended, 03/06/2001; Ord. 2000-26, Amended, 11/17/2000; Ord. No. 2007-06, Amended 
02/05/2007; Ord. No. 2011-06, Amended 05/17/2011) 
 
2-08-001-0005 MEETINGS; ATTENDANCE: 
 
A quorum shall be one more than half of the voting membership of the Commission. Alternate 
members may be counted toward a quorum when there are insufficient regular members to 
meet the quorum requirement. (Ord. No. 2011-06, Amended 05/17/2011) 
 
The Commission shall meet at such times, dates and locations as determined by the members 
except that the Chairperson may call a special meeting with not less than 24 hours’ notice. All 
other rules or procedures shall be established by the members so long as said rules are 
consistent with State law, City Charter and this chapter. (Ord. No. 2007-06, Amended, 
02/06/2007) 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-28  PAGE 6 
 

When serving as a substitute in the absence of a regular member, alternate members shall be 
accorded the full rights of a regular member, including, but not limited to, voting rights. (Ord. No. 
2011-06, Amended 05/17/2011) 
 
A regular or alternate Commission member who is absent for three TWO consecutive 
UNEXCUSED regular meetings may be removed from the Commission by a vote of the City 
Council upon recommendation of the Commission. 
 
(Ord. 2000-26, Add, 11/17/2000; Ord. No. 2007-06, Amended 02/06/2007; Ord. No. 2011-06, Amended 05/17/2011) 
 
 
SECTION 6. Chapter 2-10, Board of Adjustment, is amended as follows: 
 
2-10-001-0002 MEMBERSHIP 
 
The Board of Adjustment shall be composed of five (5) SEVEN (7) voting members. 
 
A.     Four (4) SIX (6) members shall be appointed by the Mayor and City Council from the 

citizens of the City of Flagstaff. 
 
B.     One (1) member shall be appointed by the City Council from the membership of the 

Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
C.     Terms shall be for three (3) years for members. 
 
D.     The Board shall elect from its voting members a chairperson and a vice chairperson who 

shall serve for a term of one (1) year. The chairperson shall have the power to 
administer oaths and take evidence. (Ord. 2010-35, 11/16/2010) 

 
2-10-001-0003 MEETINGS: 
 
The meetings of the Board of Adjustment shall be open to the public and held at the time and 
place adopted for the regular monthly meetings of the Board. Meetings shall be conducted in 
accordance with the Board and Commission Members’ Handbook RULES AND OPERATIONS 
MANUAL adopted by resolution of the Flagstaff City Council, and in compliance with all other 
local, state, and federal laws. The minutes of its proceedings, showing the vote of each member 
and records of its examinations and other official actions shall be kept by the City Clerk as a 
public record. 
 
A quorum shall be one more than half the voting membership of the Board of Adjustment. (Ord. 
2010-35, 11/16/2010) 
 
 
SECTION 7. Chapter 2-11, Flagstaff Airport Commission, is amended as follows: 
 
2-11-0001-0002 COMPOSITION; TERMS: 
 
The composition of the membership of the Commission shall be as follows: 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-28  PAGE 7 
 

A.     A Councilmember, designated by the City Council, to serve as a non-voting, ex-officio 
member. (Res. 1045, 9-20-77) 

 
B.A.    Seven (7) members to be appointed by the City Council who shall serve for three (3) 

year terms, on a staggered basis. (Ord. 1897, 11/21/95) 
 
C.B.  Ex-Officio Members: The following persons shall be ex-officio members of the 

Commission, but shall have no vote: 
 
 The Mayor 
 The City Manager 
 The Airport Manager 
 The FAA Tower Operator 
 
D.C.  A quorum shall be one more than half the voting members. 
 
(Ord. No. 1897, Amended, 11/21/95); (Ord. No. 2007-03, Amended 02/06/2007) 
 
 
SECTION 8. Chapter 2-12, Transportation Commission, is amended as follows: 
 
2-12-001-0004 MEETINGS: 
 
The Commission shall meet quarterly and/or at the request of its chairperson for the disposal of 
such business as may come before it. 
 
Meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the Board and Commission Members’ 
Handbook RULES AND OPERATIONS MANUAL adopted by resolution of the Flagstaff City 
Council, and in compliance with all other local, state, and federal laws. 
 
A quorum shall be one more than half the voting membership of the Commission. 
 
(Ord. 1349, Amended, 02/19/1985; Ord. 2010-14, Amended, 06/15/2010; Ord. 2013-06, Amended, 09/17/2013) 
 
2-12-001-0006 OTHER POWERS: 
 
A.     The Commission shall have the power to appoint subcommittees for the purpose of 

defining problem areas of traffic and traffic safety; proposing solutions to defined 
problems; or for any other undertaking which will reasonably lead to safer and more 
efficient traffic flow in the City. 

 
B.     The City Council hereby establishes the following advisory committees to the 

Transportation Commission to provide advice on special traffic and transportation topics, 
and delegates to the Commission the power to appoint members to these committees. 
No member of the Transportation Commission shall be a member of an advisory 
committee. The City Council retains the power to remove a member of an advisory 
committee for the reasons specified in the City’s Board and Commission Members’ 
Handbook RULES AND OPERATIONS MANUAL. 
 
1.     Bicycle Advisory Committee: Seven (7) citizen members appointed for a three (3) 

year term. No member may serve more than two (2) three (3) year terms. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-28  PAGE 8 
 

2.     Pedestrian Advisory Committee: Seven (7) citizen members appointed for a three 
(3) year term. No member may serve more than two (2) three (3) year terms. 

 
C.     The Transportation Commission shall define the operating procedures of the advisory 

committees, assuring compliance with the Arizona Open Meeting Law, and the City’s 
Board and Commission Members’ Handbook RULES AND OPERATIONS MANUAL, 
including, but not limited to: 

 
1.     The advisory committees shall report on their activities to the Transportation 

Commission at each Commission meeting. 
  
2.     The advisory committees shall investigate, consider, and make 

recommendations to the Transportation Commission on items assigned to them 
by the Commission regarding their respective areas of interest. 

  
3.     The advisory committees shall bring to the Transportation Commission items of a 

planning, design, or regulatory nature that come to their attention regarding the 
City’s pedestrian and bikeway systems. 

 
(Ord. 1349, Amended, 02/19/1985; Ord. 2007-21, Amended, 02/06/2007; Ord. 2010-14, 06/15/2010; Ord. 2013-06, 
Amended, 09/17/2013) 
 
 
SECTION 9. Chapter 2-13, Tourism Commission, is amended as follows: 
 
2-13-001-0001 CREATION OF THE COMMISSION: 
 
There is hereby established a City Tourism Commission. There shall be nine (9) SEVEN (7) 
voting members of said Commission who shall meet as hereinafter provided to consider and 
recommend programs for the expenditure of the portion of the Bed, Board and Booze Tax as 
designated by Ordinance No. 1532. 
 
(Ord. No. 1579, Enacted, 08/02/88; Ord. 2001-27, Amended, 11/20/2001) 
 
 
2-13-001-0002 COMPOSITION AND TERM OF OFFICE: 
 
The composition of the membership shall consist of: 
 
A.     A Councilmember designated by the City Council to serve, as a non-voting ex-officio 

member, during the Councilmember’s term of office. (Ord. 1674, 9-18-90) 
 
B.A. Five (5) FOUR (4) members to be appointed by the City Council. Each member shall be 

from the hospitality industry and serve for three (3) years, on a staggered term basis. 
 
C.B.  Four (4) THREE (3) additional members to be appointed by the City Council, to serve for 

three (3) years, on a staggered term basis. (Ord. 1674, 9-18-90) 
  
D.C. The City Manager or the Manager’s designee shall be an ex-officio member of the 

Commission. The member shall have no voting privileges. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-28  PAGE 9 
 

 The City Manager shall be responsible for staff support of the Tourism Commission. 
 
The Council shall fill vacancies for the unexpired term of any of the members of the 
Commission. 
 
A member’s term in office shall commence with the first regular Commission meeting following 
the appointment and terminate with the regular Commission meeting at which the successor 
takes office. No voting member of the Commission may be appointed to more than two (2) 
consecutive full terms. Said requirement shall not apply to the Councilmember representative. 
 
(Ord. No. 1579, Enacted, 08/02/88); (Ord. No. 1674, Amended, 09/18/90; Ord. 2001-27, Amended, 11/20/2001); Ord. 
No. 2006-09, Amended 04/10/2006) 
 
2-13-001-0005 MEETINGS: 
 
A.     The Commission shall hold at least one regular meeting per month, which shall at all 

times be open to the public. The time and place of said meeting shall be posted in 
accordance with the applicable Arizona State Statutes. 

 A quorum consisting of a minimum of five (5) FOUR (4) voting members, shall be 
required to conduct business. 

B.     The Chairperson of the Commission shall meet with the Chairperson of the Economic 
Development Commission and the Beautification Commission at least once per month. 
The purpose of the meeting is for coordination of the three commissions only. The intent 
is not to create another commission. The meeting shall at all times be open to the public. 
The time and place of said meeting shall be posted in accordance with applicable 
Arizona State Statutes. 

C.     If a member is absent for three (3) meetings within a twelve month period, excused or 
unexcused, that member may be replaced by the City Council. 

 
(Ord. No. 1579, Enacted, 08/02/88; Ord. 2001-27, Amended, 11/20/2001) 
 
 
SECTION 10. Chapter 2-14, Beautification and Public Art Commission, is amended as 
follows: 
 
2-14-001-0001 CREATION OF COMMISSION: 
 
There is hereby established a City Beautification and Public Art Commission. There shall be 
nine (9) SEVEN (7) voting members of said Commission who shall meet as hereinafter provided 
to consider and recommend programs for the expenditure of the portions of the Bed, Board and 
Booze Tax as designated by City Code, Title 3, Chapter 6, Section 3-06-001-0004. 
 
(Ord. No. 1580, Enacted, 08/02/88; Ord. No. 2006-15, Amended, 05/16/2006; Ord. No. 2007-07, Amended, 
02/06/2007)) 
 
2-14-001-0002 COMPOSITION AND TERM OF OFFICE: 
 
The composition of the membership shall consist of: 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-28  PAGE 10 
 

 
A.    A Councilmember designated by the City Council to serve, as a non-voting, ex officio 

Council liaison, during the Councilmember’s term of office. (Ord. 1674, 9-18-90); (Ord. 
2006-15, 05/16/2006) 

 
B.A.     One (1) member to be from the hospitality industry, appointed by the City Council. Said 

member shall serve a three (3) year term. 
 
C.B.  Two ONE (1) voting members from the arts community, including, but not limited to 

artists, craftsmen, gallery owners, arts educator, art historian, art curator, art 
administrator. 

 
D.C. One (1) voting member who is a design professional, including, but not limited to, 

architects, landscape architect, urban planner, or graphic designer. 
 
E.D.  Five (5) FOUR (4) additional members appointed by the City Council. (Ord. No. 2006-15, 

(05/16/2006); (Ord. No. 2007-04, Amended 02/06/07) 
 
 Each member shall serve three-year terms, on a staggered basis. A member’s term in 

office shall commence with the first regular Commission meeting following the 
appointment and terminate with the regular Commission meeting at which the successor 
takes office. No voting member of the Commission may be appointed to more than two 
(2) full consecutive terms. 

 
(Ord. No. 1580, Enacted, 08/02/88; Ord. No. 1674, Amended, 09/18/90; Ord. No. 2006-15, Amended 05/16/2006); 
(Ord. No. 2007-04, Amended 02/06/07) 
 
 
SECTION 11.  Chapter 2-17, Sustainability Commission, is amended as follows: 
 
2-17-001-0001 COMMISSION ESTABLISHED; ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE 
 
A.     ESTABLISHMENT OF THE COMMISSION. 
 

1.     There is hereby created the Sustainability Commission (the "Commission"), 
which shall replace the Clean and Green Committee. 

 
2.     The membership of the Commission shall consist of seven (7) members. 

Members of the Commission shall be appointed by the City Council and shall 
represent the diverse interests and views of the community. The Commission 
shall be a working Commission, in which each member takes an active role in 
accomplishing the goals and objectives of the Commission. Members shall serve 
a term of three (3) years with no member appointed for more than two (2) full 
consecutive terms. 

 
3.     The Commission shall be responsible for electing a Chair and a Vice-Chair. The 

Chair shall act as public spokesperson for the Commission at public functions, 
shall serve as an ex-officio member of all standing committees, shall appoint the 
chair of all standing committees upon the advice and consent of the Commission, 
and shall perform other duties as required. The Vice-Chair shall act in the 
absence of the Chair. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-28  PAGE 11 
 

 
4.     The City Council may appoint a non-voting Councilmember Liaison who shall not 

count toward a quorum 
 
(Ord. 2007-27, Amended 04/17/2007) 
 
 
SECTION 12.  Chapter 2-18, Commission on Disability Awareness, is amended as 
follows: 
 
2-18-001-0002 MEMBERS AND TERMS: 
 
The Commission shall consist of nine (9) SEVEN (7) members who shall be appointed by the 
City Council based upon the recommendations of the Committee/Commission. The Commission 
and the City Council will make every effort to recruit and appoint those individuals most directly 
involved and concerned with the obligations of the Americans with Disabilities Act. Commission 
members shall serve staggered, three-year terms. 
 
A quorum shall consist of one more than half the membership of the commission. 
 
In addition, the City Council may designate a Councilmember representative as a non-voting, 
ex-officio member of the Disability Awareness Commission who shall not count toward the 
quorum. 
 
In the event a member’s term expires, that member shall continue to serve until reappointed or 
replaced by the City Council. (Ord. 1833, 05/03/94) 
 
(Ord. No. 1780, Enacted, 11/17/92; Ord. No. 1833, Amended, 05/03/94; Ord. No. 2007-31, Amended 07/23/2007) 
 
2-18-001-0003 ORGANIZATION: 
 
A Chairperson and other Commission officers shall be selected by a majority vote of those 
members present at a meeting called for that purpose for a term of one (1) year. The 
Commission shall meet at such times, dates and locations as determined by the members 
except that the Chairperson may call a special meeting with not less than twenty-four (24) hours 
notice. All other rules of procedure shall be established by the members so long as said rules 
are consistent with State law, the City Charter, the Board and Commission Members’ Handbook 
RULES AND OPERATIONS MANUAL, and this Ordinance. 
 
A Commission member who is absent from three consecutive regular meetings may have their 
remaining term terminated by a vote of the City Council upon recommendation of the 
Commission. 
 
(Ord. 1780, 11/17/92); (Ord. No. 1780, Enacted, 11/17/92); (Ord. No. 2007-37, Amended 07/24/2007) 
 
 
SECTION 13.  Chapter 2-19, Heritage Preservation Commission, is amended as 
follows: 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-28  PAGE 12 
 

2-19-001-0002 MEMBERSHIP: 
 
A.     The membership of the commission shall consist of seven (7) voting members. In 

addition, the City Council may designate a Councilmember representative as a non-
voting, ex-officio member of the commission. Additional members may be appointed in 
the future, if and when additional Historic Design Review Districts beyond the first district 
are created, to represent those additional districts and help develop and adopt design 
guidelines for those districts. 

 
1.     At least two (2) members must be professionals in the areas of architecture, 

history, architectural history, planning, or archaeology. 
 
2.     At least two (2) members shall be owners of locally designated historic properties 

or properties listed on the National Register of Historic Places. 
  
3.     At least three (3) members shall be from the general community. 
  
4.     Any member may satisfy more than one of the above qualifications and any 

"professional" category may be filled by a person who is retired from that 
profession. 

 
B.     Appointed members shall have a demonstrated interest in the history of the community 

and be committed to represent not only their specific areas of expertise, but also the 
community at large. 

 
(Ord. No. 2005-08, Amended 04/05/2005; Ord. No. 2007-07, Amended 02/06/2007; Ord. 2010-35, Amended, 
11/16/2010) 
 
 
SECTION 14.  Chapter 2-20, Open Spaces Commission, is amended as follows: 
 
2-20-001-0001 CREATION OF THE COMMISSION: 
 
There is hereby created an advisory body to be called the "Open Spaces Commission" 
("Commission") consisting of the following nine SEVEN regular members all of whom shall be 
appointed by the City Council, except for designees from the Planning and Zoning Commission 
and the Parks and Recreation Commission: four members from the natural and cultural 
sciences; one member from the Planning and Zoning Commission; one member from the Parks 
and Recreation Commission; one member who markets real estate or is a representative from 
real estate development; and two ONE public at-large members. All Commission members shall 
be voting members. In addition, the City Council may designate a Councilmember 
representative as a non-voting, ex-officio member of the Commission. A chairperson shall be 
selected by a majority vote of those members at a meeting called for that purpose. 
 
 
SECTION 15.  Chapter 2-22, Flagstaff Community Land Trust Commission, is hereby 
repealed. 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-28  PAGE 13 
 

SECTION 16.  Chapter 2-23, Flagstaff Area Regional Plan Citizens’ Advisory 
Committee, is hereby repealed. 
 
 
SECTION 17.  Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances.    
 
All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance or any 
part of the code adopted herein by reference are hereby repealed.   
 
 
SECTION 18.  Severability.   
 
 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this ordinance or any part of 
the code adopted herein by reference is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by 
the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining portions thereof. 
 
 
SECTION 19.  Effective Date.   
 
This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days following adoption by the City Council.   
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council and approved by the Mayor of the City of 
Flagstaff this 18th day of November, 2014. 
 
 
 
               
        MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
  
CITY ATTORNEY 



  14. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Tiffany Antol, Planning Development Manager

Date: 10/29/2014

Meeting Date: 11/03/2014

TITLE: 
Public Hearing, Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2014-30:  An ordinance of the City
Council of the City of Flagstaff, Arizona, extending and increasing the corporate limits of the City of
Flagstaff, Coconino County, State of Arizona, pursuant to the provisions of Title 9, Chapter 4, Arizona
Revised Statues, by annexing certain land totaling approximately 3.14 acres located at 2701 S. Woody
Mountain Road, which land is contiguous to the existing corporate limits of the City of Flagstaff and
establishing city zoning for said land as RR, Rural Residential. (Annexation of property for Aspen
Heights located on Woody Mountain Road)

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
At the November 3, 2014 Council Meeting:
1) Continue holding Public Hearing
2) Read Ordinance No. 2014-30 by title only for the first time
3) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2014-30 by title only for the first time (if approved above)
At the November 18, 2014 Council Meeting:
4) Read Ordinance No. 2014-30 by title for the final time
5) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2014-30 by title only for the final time (if approved above)
6) Adopt Ordinance No. 2014-30

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
The Flagstaff Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a Public Hearing to consider this Annexation
request at its regular meeting on September 24, 2014.  The Planning and Zoning Commission voted
(6-0) to forward the request to the City Council with a recommendation of approval.  Annexations are
required to be adopted by ordinance. 

Financial Impact:
None

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
COUNCIL GOALS:
Retain, expand, and diversify economic base
Effective governance

REGIONAL PLAN:
The current application was filed prior to the ratification of the Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030 (FRP 2030)
and is therefore being reviewed against the policies of the Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and
Transportation Plan (RLUTP).



LU1.6 - Require Urban Development to Locate within City Boundaries: In order to ensure that all
urban development can be provided with adequate public facilities and services, all urban land uses shall
be located within the Urban Growth boundary and within the City’s corporate boundary limits. The
Regional Plan encourages urban land uses to locate only within incorporated areas in order to obtain City
services, utilities, and fire protection. The City shall consider the annexation of land into the city limits
when the annexation of such property is consistent with the goals and policies of the Regional Land Use
and Transportation Plan.

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
None

Options and Alternatives:
The City Council may approve the ordinance as proposed, approve the ordinance with conditions, or
deny the ordinance.

Background/History:
A request by Aspen Heights to annex approximately 3.14 acres at the intersection of East Route 66 and
Woody Mountain Road. The area subject to the annexation is a portion of parcel 112-01-019. This parcel
is currently vacant and was at one time heavily forested before the Woody Fire in 2006. The parcel is
located within the Resource Protection Overlay (RPO) Zone and still maintains forest resources towards
the southern portion of the property. The parcel is located within the Urban Service Boundary and this
small portion of the overall parcel is within County jurisdiction.

The current application was filed prior to the adoption of the Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030 (FRP 2030)
and is therefore being reviewed against the policies of the Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and
Transportation Plan (RLUTP). For comparison purposes only, policies from both plans are identified and
discussed. The RLUTP designates this parcel as Mixed-Use. This land use category requires an average
density of seven dwelling units per acre. The Mixed-Use category may have an emphasis on either
residential or non-residential. The objective of this classification is to mix land uses by providing housing,
shopping, and employment. However, this category does not preclude single-use developments. The
FRP 2030 designates this parcel as Future Urban within an Urban Activity Center. The density range
required for residential mixed-use is eight dwelling units per acre and a minimum floor area ratio of 1.0 or
greater.

This annexation is the first of a two-step process. The second being a Concept Zoning Map Amendment
request to zone the parcel to the MR, Medium Density Residential Zone (33.33 acres) for a student
housing development and the HC, Highway Commercial Zone (3.60 acres) for future commercial
development. The Zoning Map Amendment application is being processed concurrently with this
application but will not become effective until after the annexation has been completed. A full Zoning Map
Amendment policy analysis can be found in that staff report.

Key Considerations:
Annexations are adopted by the City Council via ordinance.  Ordinance No. 2014-30 annexes 3.14 acres
located at 2701 S. Woody Mountain Road into the City of Flagstaff. Prior to the second read of Ordinance
No. 2014-30 the City Council will approve an Annexation and Development Agreement for the Aspen
Heights project.  A copy of the draft development agreement is attached for review. 
   



   

Community Benefits and Considerations:
Community benefits and considerations related to this request are addressed in more detail in the
attached Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report, dated September 12, 2014.  The existing City of
Flagstaff boundary bisects the current parcel limiting the development of the site.  The majority of the
existing parcel is located within the City of Flagstaff boundaries and the annexation will result in a
correction of the City limits to allow for appropriate development of the subject site.  The proposed
development will require a proportional- share contribution to a future traffic signal at the intersection of
Route 66 and S. Woody Mountain Road per the results of the accepted traffic impact analysis.  In
addition, approximately 5500 linear feet of sewer line will need to be upgraded in conjunction with the
proposed development.  The Applicant has indicated their desire to participate in the recapture program. 
The proposed development plans to off-set recreation impacts associated with the project by providing
substantial recreation improvements on site in compliance with the City of Flagstaff Zoning Code.

Community Involvement:
Inform/Consult

The Applicant held a neighborhood meeting on Thursday, March 27, 2014 at 5:30 pm. The Applicant
received two phone calls from their meeting notice requesting information about the project. Seven
people attended the meeting and had questions in regards to the case. None of the attendees expressed
opposition to the Annexation or the Zoning Map Amendment. Staff has not received any other comments
in regards to either the annexation or the Zoning Map Amendment.

Public hearings before the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council are conducted in
conjunction with any request for Zoning Map Amendment. In accordance with Arizona Revised Statute,
notice of the public hearing was provided by placing an ad in the Daily Sun, posting a notice on the
property, and mailing a notice to all property owners within 300 feet of the subject site. As of this writing,
staff has received two email letters, copies of which are attached to this report, wanting to make sure that
the planning for the site takes into account the use of Woody Mountain Road by a large number of W.L.
Gore employees who commute to the facilities in the area and expressing concern about the increased
lighting impacts from higher density development within Lighting Zone I.

The Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on September 24, 2014 at 4 p.m. 
Three individuals spoke in regards to this case.  Two addressed concerns in regards to dark sky related
issues and the impacts of outdoor lighting.  One individual asked for additional information in regards to
the provision of affordable housing.

Expanded Options and Alternatives:
(Recommended Action):  The City Council may approve the Annexation as recommended by the
Planning and Zoning Commission and staff by reading and adopting Ordinance No. 2014-30.
The City Council may approve the Annexation with conditions of approval.
The City Council may deny the Annexation.

Attachments:  P&Z Commission Staff Report
Annexation Application
Annexation Legal Description
Zoning Map with City limits
Annexation Public Hearing Notices
P&Z Commission Draft Minutes
Ord. 2014-30





PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIVISION
ANNEXATION REPORT

PUBLIC HEARING DATE: September 12, 2014     
PANX 14-0001 MEETING DATE: September 24, 2014

REPORT BY: Tiffany Antol

REQUEST:

An annexation request of approximately 3.14 acres located at 2701 S. Woody Mountain Road.  The property is 
identified as a portion of Coconino County Assessor’s Parcel Number 112-01-019 which is approximately 36.94 acres.  
This annexation request is the first part of a two-part request.  The second part of the request is a Concept Zoning Map 
Amendment.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the Planning and Zoning Commission forward the annexation request to the City Council with a 
recommendation for approval.  

PRESENT LAND USE:

The subject site consists of undeveloped land in the General (G) Zone under Coconino County jurisdiction.

PROPOSED LAND USE:

If this annexation is approved, the property will be designated with Rural Residential (RR) zoning.  The accompanying 
zoning map amendment will change the zoning on the property from the Rural Residential (RR) Zone to the Medium 
Density Residential (MR) and Highway Commercial (HC) Zones for the development of a proposed student housing 
project and undetermined commercial uses.

NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT:

North: Vacant land owned by the City of Flagstaff in the Rural Residential (RR) Zone; Professional River Outfitters in 
the General Commercial (CG-10,000) Zone under Coconino County jurisdiction.

East: Woody Mountain Campground & RV Park in the Rural Residential (RR) Zone and the Planned Community (PC) 
Zone under Coconino County jurisdiction; Presidio in the Pines in the High Density Residential (HR) Zone. 

South: Vacant Land in the Rural Residential (RR) Zone. 
West: Vacant Land in the Rural Residential (RR) Zone. 

REQUIRED FINDINGS:

The Commission shall find that the requested annexation complies with Section 9-471 of the Arizona Revised Statutes; 
the applicable goals and policies set forth in the City’s General Plan, “Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and 
Transportation Plan”; and Division 10-20.90 of the Flagstaff Zoning Code.

STAFF REVIEW:

INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND:

A request by Aspen Heights to annex approximately 3.14 acres at the intersection of East Route 66 and Woody 
Mountain Road.  The area subject to the annexation is a portion of parcel 112-01-019.  This parcel is currently vacant 
and was at one time heavily forested before the Woody Fire in 2006. The parcel is located within the Resource 
Protection Overlay (RPO) Zone and still maintains forest resources towards the southern portion of the property. The 



PANX 14-0001
September 12, 2014
Page 2

parcel is located within the Urban Service Boundary and this small portion of the overall parcel is within County 
jurisdiction.  

The current application was filed prior to the adoption of the Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030 (FRP 2030) and is
therefore being reviewed against the policies of the Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan
(RLUTP). For comparison purposes, policies from both plans are identified and discussed. The RLUTP designates this 
parcel as Mixed-Use.  This land use category requires an average density of seven dwelling units per acre. The Mixed-
Use category may have an emphasis on either residential or non-residential. The objective of this classification is to 
mix land uses by providing housing, shopping, and employment. However, this category does not preclude single use 
developments.  The FRP 2030 designates this parcel as Future Urban within an Urban Activity Center.  The density 
range required for residential mixed-use is eight dwelling units per acre and a minimum floor area ratio of 1.0 or 
greater.

This annexation is the first of a two-step process.  The second being a Concept Zoning Map Amendment request to 
zone the parcel to the MR, Medium Density Residential Zone (33.33 acres) for a student housing development and the 
HC, Highway Commercial Zone (3.60 acres) for future commercial development. The Zoning Map Amendment 
application is being processed concurrently with this application but will not become effective until after the 
annexation has been completed. A full Zoning Map Amendment policy analysis can be found in that staff report.

ARIZONA STATE STATUTE COMPLIANCE:

State statutes only allow the City to adopt a zoning classification that permits densities and intensities no greater than 
those permitted by the County immediately before the annexation. The current county zoning is G, General that 
requires ten-acre minimum lot size.  The closest city zoning district is the RR, Rural Residential District, which 
provides for one dwelling unit per acre based on the single-family option.

A Zoning Map Amendment application to zone the parcel to MR, Medium Density Residential, and HC Highway 
Commercial will be necessary to accommodate the proposed development. The Zoning Map Amendment application 
will be considered subsequent to review of the annexation application. 

REGIONAL LAND USE AND TRANSPORTATION PLAN CONFORMANCE:

Policy/Analysis

All proposed annexations shall be evaluated as to whether the application is consistent with the policies of the General 
Plan.  The proposed annexation should not be detrimental to the majority of the persons or property in the surrounding 
area or the community in general.  The City’s basic position regarding annexation is that the annexation must 
demonstrate a favorable benefit to the taxpayers of the City.

The General Plan further provides, “The Regional Plan establishes an Urban Growth Boundary that identifies lands 
that are currently most appropriate for compact, urban development.  The lands shall be planned for the full range of 
urban services and are appropriate for annexation under appropriate conditions. By directing growth to well-defined, 
contiguous areas, development is more efficiently served; open lands and natural resources can be better protected; 
public facilities and services can be delivered more effectively; neighborhoods can provide a greater range of options 
for housing types.” The following policies are considered by staff to be the most pertinent to the annexation:

RLUTP Policy

LU1.6 - Require Urban Development to Locate within City Boundaries:  In order to ensure that all urban 
development can be provided with adequate public facilities and services, all urban land uses shall be located within 
the Urban Growth boundary and within the City’s corporate boundary limits.  The Regional Plan encourages urban 
land uses to locate only within incorporated areas in order to obtain City services, utilities, and fire protection.  The 



PANX 14-0001
September 12, 2014
Page 3

City shall consider the annexation of land into the city limits when the annexation of such property is consistent with 
the goals and policies of the Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan.

FRP 2030

LU.7.2 - Require unincorporated properties to be annexed prior to the provision of City services, or that a pre-
annexation agreement is executed when deemed appropriate.

Summary of Regional Plan & Annexation Compliance

This parcel is located within the Urban Growth Boundary. The proposed annexation is consistent with the goals and 
policies of the Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan and furthermore the application complies with all the 
requirements set forth in the Arizona Revised Statutes related to annexations.

PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICE IMPACT ANALYSIS:

Traffic/Access/Pedestrian/Bicycle Impact:

The site is bounded on the north by Route 66, on the east by Woody Mountain Road, and on the south by Presidio 
Drive.  Vehicular access to the site is provided from all three roadways.  Proposed road and edge improvements 
include the dedication of additional right-of-way for Woody Mountain Road.  Improvements within the right-of-way 
include: new curb, gutter, FUTS/sidewalk, and parkway along Route 66, Woody Mountain Road, and Presidio Drive.  
A southbound right turn lane into both entrances on Woody Mountain Road, and a northbound two-way left turn lane 
at the main entrance on Woody Mountain Road will be required for the proposed student housing project.

A Traffic Impact Analysis was prepared for the developer by CivTech, Inc. to demonstrate the anticipated traffic 
volumes generated from the proposed development.  The City Traffic Engineer reviewed the concept plan and the TIA 
and subsequently accepted the results subject to the following conditions:

1. Vehicular and pedestrian cross access shall be provided between the residential land use and the commercial 
land use.  The applicant can decide the location of the cross access, but the access does need to be provided 
with future site planning submittals.  No TIA analysis needs to be done.

2. The Signal Warrant Analysis for the intersection of Route 66 and Woody Mountain is not approved, but 
ADOT’s review conditions are attached and the re-submittal of the warrant analysis is not expected to change
the proportional share analysis, nor recommend that a signal be installed upon project opening.  Under those 
two qualifying statements, the following Condition of Approval #3 is valid. If either of these two qualifying 
conditions change, the following condition will need to be re-evaluated.

3. Future ROW needs and proportional share for the intersection of Route 66 and Woody Mountain are required.  
A planning level signal layout should be provided with construction plans to help determine the ROW 
dedication requirements.  The developer’s proportional share contribution for this future signal need is 
documented in the attached table.  The planning level estimate for a future signal in the Flagstaff Region is 
$400,000.  The calculated proportional share based on the percent of project traffic in the intersection of 
Woody Mountain Road and Route 66 is 25.7%, or $102,805.  The timing of this proportional share 
contribution shall be outlined in the Development Agreement.

ADOT has also reviewed the TIA and provided comments similar to the City Traffic Engineer.  These comments are 
attached to this report.

The project site is not currently serviced by transit.  This area is identified in the Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and 
Transportation Plan for future service.  The applicant has discussed the possibility of extending service to the subject 
site in partnership with the local transit authority but no official agreement is in place to service the property at this 
time.



PANX 14-0001
September 12, 2014
Page 4

Pedestrian and bicycle access to the subject property is limited.  There are currently no sidewalks along Route 66 or 
Woody Mountain Road in the vicinity of this project.  Bike lanes are provided along Woody Mountain Road up to 
Woodlands Village Boulevard beyond which a striped shoulder exists continuing out to the subject property.  It will be
possible for both pedestrians and bicycles to gain access through the Presidio in the Pines into Boulder Pointe and 
beyond, but the roadways within Presidio in the Pines have not been fully constructed.

Water System Analysis:

A Water and Sewer System Analysis was prepared on behalf of the City.  The main source of water for this site is a 
12-inch diameter Zone A+ waterline located in Woody Mountain Road.  This line extends from Route 66 to the 
Presidio in the Pines subdivision along the eastern boundary of the subject property within existing right-of-way.  The 
existing Zone A+ waterlines are fed by the Railroad (RR) Springs tank and a booster pump located in Railroad Springs 
Subdivision.

Three connections will need to be made to the existing 12-inch main to provide water for the proposed development on 
the subject property.  A looped water system will be required for the development of this site.  The proposed water 
main extensions that will serve as the backbone infrastructure for the proposed development are made up of 8-inch 
waterlines.  Water line stub outs for future connectivity to adjoining parcels on the west side of the subject property 
will need to be provided as well.  

Sewer System Analysis:

The Water and Sewer System Analysis identified two connection points to the City sewer system.  The nearest sewer 
lines are located along Woody Mountain road.  There are two 8-inch diameter PVC sewer lines located along the 
southeastern border of the subject property.  The Rio De Flag Wastewater Treatment Plant, which is currently 
operating below maximum capacity, will treat all sewage collected in these lines.  Connection to the existing 10-inch 
diameter sewer line in West Highway 66 is proposed for development of the subject site.  The existing 10-inch trunk 
line does not have sufficient capacity to convey all anticipated sewage flows generated by this site.  The proposed 
development will be required to extend public sewer lines adequate to carry all anticipated contributory flows 
generated by the future residents of this project, as well as, any potential flows from upstream sources.  Approximately 
5,500 feet of existing sewer line will need to be upsized to handle the additional flow created by this project.

Stormwater:

The development of the subject project is proposing on-site mitigation in lieu of a Drainage Impact Analysis. The 
proposed stormwater management design will not increase the volume of pre-development flows off-site. LID 
requirements will be met per City standards. The Stormwater Manager has provided preliminary acceptance of the 
proposed on-site mitigation and LID methods. 

Parks and Recreation:

The City of Flagstaff Parks and Recreation Organizational Master Plan and the Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and 
Transportation plan identifies a future community scale park (20+ acres) on or near the subject property.  The current 
Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030 does not identify a park at this location.  While zoning regulations do require some type 
of open space areas, they do not require the dedication of land and facilities for the development of public parks.  

The Zoning Code requires residential developments with 50 or more dwelling units to provide a minimum of five 
percent of the site in civic spaces that are either privately held and open to the public or publicly owned and set aside 
as a civic space.   The proposed student housing development would require approximately a minimum of 1.5 acres as 
civic space.  This space is shown as passive/active green space in the center of the project that provides a trail system 
with recreational facilities.  This system would have to be made available to the public as well as the residents of the 



PANX 14-0001
September 12, 2014
Page 5

project to meet this requirement.  Additionally, the Zoning Code requires that a minimum of 15% of the site be 
maintained as open space which is roughly 4.5 acres of the proposed student housing project site.  Resource 
preservation such as floodplains, slopes, and forests may be used to satisfy this standard and includes active and 
passive recreation uses, landscape areas, and community gardens.

In order to off-set the parks and recreation demands of the students living on-site, active and passive recreation 
amenities have been incorporated into both the civic and open space requirements.  Those amenities include a 
clubhouse, pool/spa recreation area, sports courts and a walking trail with exercise stations, BBQ grills, picnic tables 
and a pavilion to be determined through site plan review.  The developer will also be required to provide a portion of 
the Flagstaff Urban Trail System along Woody Mountain Road as part of the roadway edge improvements.  This will 
be a significant improvement to the Woody Mountain Road corridor for alternative modes.   

Schools:

The proposed development of the subject site is not anticipated to affect the local school district.  The primary intended 
occupants are Northern Arizona University Students.  The Arizona State Legislature does not currently enable units of 
local government to assess school impact mitigation through development processes.

Fire Protection:

According to Fire Department staff, the site is within the desired four-minute response time from Fire Station No. 1,
located at 1972 S. Thompson Drive.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS FOR PROPOSED ZONING:

As was noted above, if annexed, the property will need to be brought into the City as a zone similar to the existing 
County zoning.  In this case, the City’s RR, Rural Residential Zone, best matches the county G, General Zone.  
Arizona statue requires that once annexed, the zoning is to remain in place for a period of 30 days.  As a result, an 
ordinance modifying the zoning code must include an effective date 30 plus days after the annexation ordinance 
becomes effective. The Zoning Map Amendment application and the staff report have been provided in conjunction 
with this application and will explain the proposed MR, Medium Density Residential Zone and HC, Highway 
Commercial Zone.

OTHER REQUIREMENTS:

Citizen Participation

Public hearings before the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council are conducted in conjunction with 
requests for annexation.  In accordance with State statute, notice of the public hearing was provided by placing an ad in 
the Daily Sun, posting notices on the property, and mailing a notice to all property owners within 300 feet of the site.
The notices were also provided to the County Recorder, County Assessor, County Community Development 
Department and the Chair of the Board of Supervisors.

The applicant held a neighborhood meeting on Thursday, March 27, 2014 at 5:30 pm. The applicants received two 
phone calls from their meeting notice requesting information about the project.  Seven people attended the meeting and 
had questions in regards to the case.  None of the attendees expressed opposition to the Annexation or Zoning Map 
Amendment.  Staff has not received any other comments in regards to this annexation.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Commission forward the annexation request to the City Council with a recommendation of 
approval. 



PANX 14-0001
September 12, 2014
Page 6

ATTACHMENTS:

Application and narrative from applicant
Annexation Legal Description and Map
Public Hearing Legal Advertisements
Traffic Impact Analysis Acceptance Memo (included in PREZ 14-004 packet)
Citizen Participation Plan (included in PREZ 14-004 packet)
Draft Development Agreement (included in PREZ 14-004 packet)
Concept Plan Packet: (included in PREZ 14-004 packet)

o Conceptual Site Plan
o Concept Utility Plan
o Natural Resource Protection Plan
o Conceptual Landscape Plan
o Annexation Map
o Residential Building Elevations Examples













1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 11

181716

28

14

1312

19

10

20 21 22 23 24

25 26 27

15

This map is known as the "City of Flagstaff Official Zoning Map" or the
"City of Flagstaff Official Regulating Plan," and is intended to implement
the City of Flagstaff Zoning Code per Ordinance 2011-20 adopted on
11/01/2011 and all subsequent amendments. These maps are based on
the most accurate graphic information available at the time they were
produced. The City of Flagstaff furnishes these maps "as is" and assumes
no responsibility for their accuracy. All zoning information should be
verified by legal description whenever possible.

JACLYN

ME
DI

AN
CR

OS
SO

VE
R

F OS
SI

L

C R EE
K

LIME ST

ONE

S S
TO

RM
Y L

N

S
H I

BI
SC

U S
LN

S TRINIDA D

LN

S EC
LIP

SE
LN

S S
EC

LU
SIO

N LN

S S
HA

DY
KN

OL
L L

N S
MA

JE
S T

IC
R D

S W
RI

GH
T R

D

S P
AI

S
DE

LN
OR

TE

S P
ER

DI
Z L

N

S T
EX

 LN

S P
AN

TA
N O

SE
CO

LN

S P
AR

DO
CA

LL
E

W BRUCEBALLE DR

W PAZ DEAVENIDA

W CJ DR

W PIKES PEAK DR

W S ILVERTON DR

S PEPITA DR

W CRIPPLECR EEK DR

W JACLYN DR

S C
AM

EL
 D

R

W
CL

EM

ENT CIR

W CAMELOT DR

W POLLO CIR

W JOSSELYN DR

W PICO DEL MONTE CIR

LEGENDTRL

SIN
CL

AIR ST

ROUND
PEN

PENNSYLVANIA
CT

CORRAL
GATE

HEAVENLYCT

DAPPLE
GREY

CHELSEA
WAY

ATLANTIC CT

SHORTLINE CT

READING CT

PA
IS

 D
EL

NO
RT

E

BRITTANY
WAY

PA
RD

O
CA

LL
E

KILTIE LN

MOORE
CIR

ZACHARYWAY

KILTIE LN

PATIO DELPRESIDIO

SKYE
WAY

WOODY
WAY

LEAD
ROPE

UN
IO

N
PA

CIF
IC

ST

CA
BO

OS
E

CT

SUNSHINE
DR

MAJESTIC
RD

BU

RLINGTON

ST

SO
UT

HE
RN

PA
CI

FIC
ST

ANDREA DR

LARIAT LOOP

GI
LL

EN
WATER DR

KA
IBA

B L
N

ASHLEY
WAY

HI
LL

AR
Y

WA
Y

TOBOGGAN
CT

PR E SI
DI

O
DR

BIGSKY

TOMBAUGH
WAY

FLAGSTAFFRANCH RD

DOLORES LN

SURREYLN

NO
RT

HW
ES

TE
RN

ST

DY
LA

N 
ST UNIVERSITY

HEIGHTS DR

ROCK ISLAND AVE

HIGHLANDMESA RD

M

ISSION

TIMBER CIR

FL
AG

ST
AF

F
RA

NC
H

RD

PICKETLINE

RA
ILR

OA
D

SP
RIN

GS
B L

VD
JEWEL DR

TROTTER LN

CADEN CT

RUNN
IN

G
I R

O N

TACKROOM

MELISSA DR

AX HANDLE WAY

FL
AG

ST
AF

F
RA

NC
H R

D

SN
AF

FL
E

BIT

SO
FT

WIND LN

JU
ST

IN
 ST

FR
ES

H A
IRE

 ST

CAR OL DR

DARK
SKY DR

ZEPHER AVE

SADDLE HORN

SADDLE
BLANKET

CORONADO AVE

TOPEKA
AVE

LINDSEY
LOOP

AMAND AST

UN
IVE

RS

ITY

HE
IG

HT
S DR

DUNN A

M ST

STRAWBERRY RO
AN

UNIVERSITY AVE

DE
BB

IE
 ST

BRID LE
PATH

RUNNING

MARTINGALE

LARIAT LOOP

LARIAT LOOP

CHERYL DR

WOODY

MOUNTAIN
RD

FLAGSTAFF

RANCH RD

WO
OD

Y
MO

UN
TA

IN
RD

RIO
GRANDE CT

CAROL DR

WOO
DY

MO
U N

TA
IN

RD

£¤66

£¤66

§̈¦40

RD

ER

HC

HC

HR

HR

HR

LI-OMH

MH

MR

MR

PF
R1

R1

R1

RR

RR

RR

RR

RR

City of Flagstaff Zoning Map 14
Residential Zones:

Rural Residential (RR)
Estate Residential (ER)
Single-family Residential (R1)

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! Single-family Residential Neighborhood (R1N)
Medium Density Residential (MR)
High Density Residential (HR)
Manufactured Housing (MH)

Commercial Zones:
Central Business (CB)
Highway Commercial (HC)
Commercial Service (CS)
Community Commercial (CC)
Suburban Commercial (SC)

Industrial Zones:
Research and Development (RD)
Light Industrial (LI)

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! Light Industrial Open (LI-O)
Heavy Industrial (HI)

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! Heavy Industrial Open (HI-O)
Resource and Open Space:

Public Facility (PF)
Public Lands Forest (PLF)
Open Space (OS)

Airport Overlay Zone

Downtown Overlay Zone

Townsite Overlay Zone

Landmark Overlay Zone

Regulating Plan Boundary

City Limits

Parcels

3

4/30/2014

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 Feet







Minutes- Draft
City of Flagstaff

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
4:00 PM– Wednesday, September 24, 2014

_____________________________________________________________
City Hall, Council Chambers, 211 W. Aspen Avenue

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need assistance to participate in this meeting, please 
contact Tammy Bishop at (928) 213-2611 (or 774-5281 TDD).  Notification at least 48 hours in advance will enable 
the City to make reasonable arrangements.

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Planning and Zoning Commission and 
to the general public that, at this meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission may vote to go into executive session, which 
will not be open to the public, for legal advice and discussion with the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the 
following agenda, pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

CALL TO ORDER Chairman Dorsett called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

COMMISSION MEMBERS:  Stephen Dorsett, Chairman Paul W. Turner
Present: Justin Ramsey, Vice Chairman Steve Jackson

Paul Moore
Tina Pfeiffer

Absent: David Carpenter

CITY STAFF: Brian Kulina, Planning Development Manager
Tiffany Antol, Planning Development Manager
Mark Sawyers, Staff Liaison
Becky Cardiff, Recording Secretary

I. GENERAL BUSINESS

A. PUBLIC COMMENT
(At this time, any member of the public may address the Commission on any subject within their jurisdiction that is 
not scheduled before the Commission on that day.  Due to Open Meeting Laws, the Commission cannot discuss or 
act on items presented during this portion of the agenda.  To address the Commission on an item that is on the 
agenda, please wait for the Chair to call for Public Comment at the time the item is heard.)

None

B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1)  Regular meeting of August 27, 2014.
Motion to approve the minutes of the regular meeting of August 27, 2014, Moved by Commissioner 
Turner; seconded by Commissioner Ramsey.  Motion carried unanimously.



Planning & Zoning Commission Agenda
September 24, 2014
Page 2

II. OTHER BUSINESS

PINNACLE PINES

Address: 800 E Sterling Lane
Assessor’s Parcel Number: 105-20-117
Property Owner:  Pinnacle 146 LLC
Applicant:  Mogollon Engineering
Application Number: PPPL 2014-0005
City Staff: Brian Kulina
Action Sought:   Preliminary Plat Request

A Preliminary Plat request from Mogollon Engineering & Surveying, Inc., on behalf of Pinnacle 146 
LLC, for a development of approximately 18.59 acres into 106 single-family subdivision lots located at 
800 E. Sterling Lane, within the Medium Density Residential (MR) zone.

Mr. Kulina gave a PowerPoint presentation on the proposed project and answered questions 
from Commissioners.

Kristen Smith, Flagstaff Fire Dept, was present and answered questions from 
Commissioners.

Reid Miller, Traffic Engineering, was present and answered questions from Commissioners.

Kent Hotsenpillar, Engineer representing the applicant, answered questions from 
Commissioners. 

Sue Ellen, resident, discussed the potential access to the proposed project and the potential 
effect it could have on the value of her property.

Doug Hare, owner representative, answered questions from Commissioners

Motion to forward to City Council for approval Preliminary Plat PPPL 2014-0005 with additional 
mitigation of the impact of Silver Lane to adjoining properties Moved by Chairman Dorsett;
seconded by Commissioner Ramsey.  Discussion was held. Motion carried 5 to 1 with Commissioner 
Jackson dissenting.

III. PUBLIC HEARING

A.  ASPEN HEIGHTS

Address: 2701 S Woody Mountain Road
Assessor’s Parcel Number: 112-01-019
Property Owner:  Landmarc Capital & Investment Co.
Applicant:  Aspen Heights
Application Number: PANX 14-0001
City Staff: Tiffany Antol
Action Sought:   Annexation Request

An annexation request of approximately 3.14 acres located at 2701 S. Woody Mountain Road. The 
property is identified as a portion of Coconino County Assessor’s Parcel Number 112-01-019. This 
annexation request is the first part of a two-part request. The second part of the request is a Zoning 
Map Amendment.



Planning & Zoning Commission Agenda
September 24, 2014
Page 3

B. ASPEN HEIGHTS

Address: 2701 S Woody Mountain Road
Assessor’s Parcel Number: 112-01-019
Property Owner:  Landmarc Capital & Investment Co.
Applicant:  Aspen Heights
Application Number: PREZ 14-0004
City Staff: Tiffany Antol
Action Sought:   Zoning Map Amendment

A Zoning Map Amendment request to rezone approximately 33.33 acres from Rural Residential (RR) 
to Medium Density Residential (MR) and approximately 3.60 acres from Rural Residential (RR) to 
Highway Commercial (HC).

Ms. Antol gave a PowerPoint presentation on the proposed project Aspen Heights including 
information on both the Annexation and Zoning Map Amendment and answered questions from 
Commissioners. 

Reid Miller, Traffic Engineer, answered questions from Commissioners

Rick Barrett, City Engineer, answered questions from Commissioners

Ms. Antol answered questions from Commissioners

Kent Hotsenpillar, Engineer representing the applicant, answered questions from Commissioners

Charlie Vatterott, Executive VP of Development, gave a PowerPoint on the proposed project.

William Ramsey, Regional Operations Manager representing the applicant, gave a PowerPoint 
presentation on the operation of the proposed project.

Dana Kjellgren, legal counsel representing the applicant, answered questions from Commissioners

Erika Mazza, NAIPTA, answered questions about possible transit from the proposed project. 

Motion to open the public hearing Moved by Commissioner Turner; seconded by Commissioner 
Moore.  Motion carried.

Public Comment was given as follows:

Elizabeth Betroff, resident, requested information on affordable housing

Ms. Antol and Ms. Kjellgren addressed the question about affordable housing

Chris Luginbuhl, astronomer, expressed concerns about lighting that the proposed project could 
produce.

Lance Diskan, representing the Dark Skies Coalition/resident, also expressed concerns about the 
lighting that the proposed project would produce. 

Ms. Kjellgren addressed concerns that were brought up during public comment

A written comment was submitted as follows:

“Moran Henn, representing Friends of Flagstaff’s Future, F3 is not in opposition or in support of this 
project. We do think however that approving it would be pushing the cart before the horse.  The city 
and county are in the process of developing guidelines for dormitory style off campus student 
housing. The community is going to weigh in on this issue on October 27 at a meeting led by Mayor 
Nabours and Supervisor Archuleta.  We only ask you give the community time.  Given such strong 



Planning & Zoning Commission Agenda
September 24, 2014
Page 4

community engagement in the previous off campus housing issue we feel it would be best to not 
approve any such developments till after October 27. Thank you”

Motion to close the public hearing Moved by Commissioner Turner; seconded by Commissioner 
Jackson.  Motion carried.

Motion to forward an approval to City Council of Annexation PANX 14-0001 Moved by 
Commissioner Turner; seconded by Commissioner Jackson.  Motion carried unanimously.

Motion to forward for approval to City Council of PREZ 14-0004 with Staff conditions and the 
condition that Council seriously consider reducing the lumen counts currently allowed in the zone.
Moved by Commissioner Moore. Motion failed with no second.

Motion to forward for approval to City Council of PREZ 14-0004 with proposed Staff Conditions
Moved by Commissioner Turner; seconded by Commissioner Pfieffer.  Discussion was held. 

Motion to amend the motion to include the condition that the applicant will work with the dark skies 
community to minimize the impact on the Observatory and to come up with conditions for the 
Development Agreement to achieve those results Moved by Chairman Dorsett; Seconded by 
Commissioner Pfeiffer. Motion carried and additional condition is added to the original motion.

Motion to forward to City Council for approval of PREZ 14-0004 with proposed Staff Conditions and 
the condition that the applicant will work with the dark skies community to minimize the impact on the 
Observatory and to come up with conditions for the Development Agreement to achieve those results.  
Moved by Chairman Dorsett; Seconded by Commissioner Pfieffer.  Motion carried unanimously.

IV. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS TO/FROM COMMISSION MEMBERS

None.

ADJOURNMENT at 7:15



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-30 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA, 
EXTENDING AND INCREASING THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
FLAGSTAFF, COCONINO COUNTY, STATE OF ARIZONA, PURSUANT TO THE 
PROVISIONS OF TITLE 9, CHAPTER 4, ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES, BY 
ANNEXING CERTAIN LAND TOTALING APPROXIMATELY 3.14 ACRES LOCATED 
AT 2701 S. WOODY MOUNTAIN ROAD, WHICH LAND IS CONTIGUOUS TO THE 
EXISTING CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, AND 
ESTABLISHING CITY ZONING FOR SAID LAND AS RR, RURAL RESIDENTIAL 
 
 
RECITALS: 
 
WHEREAS, petitioners have a purchase agreement to buy a certain 36.94 acre parcel of 
land located at 2701 S. Woody Mountain Road, 3.14 acres of which are located within 
Coconino County, Arizona, as property adjacent to the boundaries of the City of 
Flagstaff, and described in Exhibits A and B attached to and made a part hereof; and 
 
WHEREAS, a petition in writing (“Petition”) accompanied by a map or plot of said 
Property, having been filed and presented to the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Flagstaff, Arizona, signed by the owners of one-half or more in value of the real property 
and more than one-half of the persons owning real and personal property as would be 
subject to taxation by the City of Flagstaff in the event of annexation of the territory and 
land hereinafter described as shown by the last assessment of said Property, which said 
territory is contiguous to the City of Flagstaff and not now embraced within its corporate 
limits, asking that the Property be annexed to the City of Flagstaff, and that the corporate 
limits of the City of Flagstaff be extended and increased so as to embrace the same; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of Flagstaff, Arizona, are desirous of 
complying with said Petition and extending and increasing the corporate limits of the City 
of Flagstaff to include said territory, as described in Exhibits A and B; and 
 
WHEREAS, said Petition set forth a true and correct description of all the exterior 
boundaries of the entire area proposed to be annexed to the City of Flagstaff, and had 
attached thereto at all times an accurate map of the territory desired to be annexed; and 
 
WHEREAS, no alterations increasing or reducing the territory sought to be annexed 
have been made after said Petition had been signed by an owner of real and personal 
property in such territory; and 
 
WHEREAS, the provisions of Section 9-471, Arizona Revised Statutes, and 
amendments thereto, have been fully observed; and 
 
WHEREAS, proper and sufficient certification and proof of the foregoing facts are now 
on file in the office of the City Clerk of the City of Flagstaff, Arizona, together with a true 
and correct copy of the original Petition referred to herein, which is on file in the office of 
the Coconino County Recorder; and 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-30  PAGE 2 
 

WHEREAS, the development of the Property will be controlled by the conditions of 
approval of the annexation application, other relevant provisions of the Zoning Code, 
and various other City codes regulating the development of the Property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council finds that the proposed annexation for the Property has been 
considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission and that the City staff and the 
Commission have each recommended that the Council proceed with the annexation at 
this time; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council has reviewed the Staff Summary Report, which discusses the 
proposed annexation, and now finds that the annexation of the Property would be 
consistent with the objectives and policies of the Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and 
Transportation Plan enacted in November, 2001 (“Regional Plan”); that the annexation 
of the Property would not be detrimental to the majority of the persons or property in the 
surrounding area or to the community in general; that the proposed annexation would 
not require any current expenditures in the City’s capital improvement program because 
the Petitioner will enter into a development and annexation agreement concurrent with 
their requested rezoning of the Property which determines the allocation of infrastructure 
costs; and the Council specifically further finds that: 
 
 The annexation of the Property and the existing and proposed uses thereon will 

further the objectives of the Regional Plan. 
 
 
ENACTMENTS: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FLAGSTAFF AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. That the following described territory be, and the same hereby is, annexed 
to the City of Flagstaff, and that the present corporate limits be, and the same hereby 
are, extended and increased to include the following described territory contiguous to the 
present City of Flagstaff corporate limits: 
 
See attached Exhibits A and B which are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
SECTION 2. That the territory described in Exhibits A and B is annexed to the City of 
Flagstaff subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. That a copy of this Ordinance, together with an accurate map of the 
territory hereby annexed to the City of Flagstaff, certified by the Mayor of 
said City of Flagstaff, be forthwith filed and recorded in the office of the 
County Recorder of Coconino County, Arizona. 

 
SECTION 3. That, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9-471(L), Arizona Revised 
Statutes, upon this Ordinance becoming final under the provisions of Section 9-471(D), 
Arizona Revised Statutes, the municipal zoning designation for the Property under the 
Zoning Code shall be RR (Rural Residential). 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-30  PAGE 3 
 

SECTION 4. The Community Development Department of the City of Flagstaff is hereby 
directed to enter such changes and amendments as may be necessary upon the Zoning 
Map of said Zoning Code in compliance with this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 5.  That the Flagstaff City Clerk shall provide a copy of the adopted 
annexation ordinance to the Clerk of the Coconino County Board of Supervisors within 
sixty days of the annexation becoming final. 
 
SECTION 6.  This Ordinance shall become effective thirty days after adoption by the 
Flagstaff City Council. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Flagstaff, 
Arizona, this 18th day of November, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________________  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







  14. B.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Tiffany Antol, Planning Development Manager

Date: 10/29/2014

Meeting Date: 11/03/2014

TITLE: 
Public Hearing, Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2014-31:  An Ordinance amending
the Flagstaff Zoning Map designation of approximately 36.94 acres of real property generally located at
the intersection of Route 66 and Woody Mountain Road, from Rural Residential ("RR") to Highway
Commercial ("HC") for 3.6 acres, and to Medium Density Residential ("MR") for 33.33 acres.  (Rezoning
of property for Aspen Heights located on Woody Mountain Road)

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
At the November 3, 2014 Council Meeting:
1) Continue holding Public Hearing
2) Read Ordinance No. 2014-31 by title only for the first time
3) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2014-31 by title for the first time (if approved above)
At the November 18, 2014 Council Meeting:
4) Read Ordinance No. 2014-31 by title only for the final time
5) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2014-31 by title for the final time (if approved above)
6) Adopt Ordinance No. 2014-31

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
The Flagstaff Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a Public Hearing to consider this zoning map
amendment at its regular meeting on September 24, 2014.  The Planning and Zoning Commission voted
(6-0) to forward the required to the City Council with a recommendation of approval subject to ten (10)
conditions of approval.  Zoning map amendments are required to be adopted by ordinance.

Financial Impact:
None

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
COUNCIL GOALS:
Retain, expand, and diversify economic base
Effective governance

REGIONAL PLAN:
Goal LU1 (Land Use and Growth Management)
“Greater Flagstaff will have a compact land use pattern within a well-defined boundary that shapes
growth in a manner that preserves the region’s natural environment, livability, and sense of community.
Flagstaff will continue to offer the primary types of housing design developments that have defined its
land use patterns: the conventional and traditional neighborhood scale which provide a choice of housing



types and supporting non-residential uses within walking distances.” (RLUTP, pg. 2-5)

Policy LU1.5 – Provide for new Mixed-Use Neighborhoods. 
“The Regional Plan designates new development areas within the Urban Growth Boundary for
development as mixed-use neighborhoods. The criteria for these areas includes average densities, a mix
of mutually supportive and integrated residential and non-residential land uses, and a network of
interconnected streets, and pedestrian and bicycle connections.” (RLUTP, pg. 2-9)

Policy LU1.6 – Require Urban Development to Locate within City Boundaries. 
“In order to ensure that all urban development can be provided with adequate public facilities and
services, it is the policy of this Regional Plan that all urban land uses shall be located within the Urban
Growth Boundary, within the city’s corporate boundary limits. The Regional Plan encourages urban land
uses to locate only within incorporated areas in order to obtain City services, utilities, and fire protection.
The City shall consider the annexation of land into the city limits when the annexation of such property is
consistent with the goals and policies of the RLTUP. (RLUTP, pg. 2-10)

Policy LU1.10 – Place Emphasis on all Transportation Modes. 
“All commercial and residential areas shall include full accommodation for pedestrians, bicycle travel and
transit access.” (RLUTP, pg. 2-13)

Policy LU1.11 – Place Emphasis on and Encourage Traditional Neighborhood Development and
Redevelopment Design. 
“The Regional Plan promotes the creation and establishment of neighborhood units with mixed land uses,
a variety of dwelling types, activity centers that are walkable, alternate modes of transportation routes,
and design that is sensitive to existing surrounding development.” (RLUTP, pg. 2-13)

Goal C1 (Commercial Development)
“Shopping and service areas will be convenient to residents as well as visitors to the region in a manner
that meets their needs, while remaining compatible with surrounding land uses.” (RLUTP, pg. 2-21)

Policy C1.3 – Include a Mix of Uses in new Commercial Development and Redevelopment. 
“New development shall include a mix of uses in the city and county, avoiding large, single-use buildings
and dominating parking areas.” (RLUTP, pg. 2-22)

Policy C1.5 – Design and Establish Neighborhood Commercial Centers. 
“Neighborhood commercial centers in the city are designed as pedestrian-oriented gathering places with
a mix of retail, office, and service uses, providing the goods and services necessary to meet the needs of
the neighborhood while reflecting the identity and character of the surrounding residential
neighborhoods.” (RLUTP, pg. 2-23)

Goal HN1 (Housing and Neighborhoods)
“The supply of affordable home ownership, rental, and special needs housing units affordable to low- and
moderate-income households will be increased.” (RLUTP, pg. 2-30)

Goal HN2 (Housing and Neighborhoods)
“New neighborhoods will be built and support will be given to existing neighborhoods that integrate a
variety of housing types and densities with amenities, services, and retail to ensure opportunities for a
variety of household income levels.” (RLUTP, pg. 2-32)

Policy HN2.1 – Promote Development of Mixed-Use Neighborhoods. 
“In appropriate areas, both new and existing neighborhoods should have a mix of land uses and different
housing types. The arrangement of land uses within neighborhoods shall allow residents to walk and
bicycle to parks, schools, work, shopping, places of worship, transit stops, and other nearby
neighborhoods. Neighborhoods should include a pedestrian-oriented neighborhood center – school,
park, plaza, commercial area or other neighborhood facility – that gives each neighborhood a unique



identity and a place for recreation or public gatherings.”(RLUTP, pg 2-32)

Policy HN2.2 – Establish Interconnected Neighborhood Street and Sidewalk Patterns. 
“Neighborhood streets and sidewalks and/or walkways in both new and existing areas should form an
interconnected network, including automobile, bicycle, and pedestrian routes within a neighborhood and
between neighborhoods, in order to connect neighborhoods together and with other parts of the region.
Neighborhoods should have frequently connected networks of walkways and bike paths, including
connections to the Flagstaff Urban Trail System (FUTS), where practicable and feasible. In particular,
direct walkway and bikeway route to schools, parks, and other community facilities should be provided.
Equestrian facilities should be accommodated where appropriate.” (RLUTP, pg. 2-33)

GOAL T3 (Transportation)
“The region’s development pattern will support a diverse range of transportation choices, including
transit, walking and bicycling, as well as driving.” (RLUTP, pg. 3-10)

Policy OSPR1.3 – Provide Non-Motorized Transportation Corridors to Connect Communities,
Neighborhoods, Open Spaces and Recreational Areas.
“Provide non-motorized transportation corridors between neighborhoods, communities, and between the
city and outlying areas and regional and national facilities and sites. Non-motorized access shall be
provided from new and redevelopment neighborhoods and should be required from existing
neighborhoods to regional open space via easements, trails, an on-street facilities with open space
connections between FUTS and USFS trails. Existing neighborhoods are encouraged to improve
non-motorized access and connections to regional open space and incorporate open space connections
between FUTS and USFS trails.” (RLUTP, pg. 4-3)

Policy NCR1.9 – Protect Dark Skies 
“Protection of dark skies and conservation of energy shall be undertaken by minimizing the detrimental
effects to the region’s quality of life and astronomical observing conditions.” (RLUTP, pg. 6-5)

Policy CFS1.1 – Determine and Require Adequate Public Facilities and Services. 
“The provision of adequate public facilities and services and the phasing of infrastructure improvements
shall be important consideration in the timing and location of development.” (RLUTP, pg. 8-2)

Policy CFS1.2 – Development shall pay its Fair Share Toward the Cost of Additional Public
Service Needs Created by new Development, While Giving Consideration to the Rational Nexus
Provisions to Show Direct Benefit. 
“The short- and long-term fiscal effects of land use and new development require the use of various tools,
methodologies and programs to determine the cost of development and to ensure development is paying
its fair share and that it has a direct relationship to benefits received by the development and burdens
imposed on the provider.” (RLUTP, pg. 8-4)

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
None

Options and Alternatives:
The City Council may approve the ordinance as proposed, approve the ordinance with conditions, or
deny the ordinance.

  
   



   

Background/History:
The Applicant, Aspen Heights, is requesting a concept zoning-map amendment to rezone approximately
33.33 acres from the Rural Residential (RR) zone to the Medium Density Residential (MR) zone and
approximately 3.60 acres from the Rural Residential (RR) zone to the Highway Commercial (HC) zone
located at 2701 S. Woody Mountain Road. This amendment would allow the development of a
multi-family style, student- housing development, operated as a rooming and boarding facility, consisting
of 224 units (714 beds) located within single and duplex cottage structures on 33.33 acres and a
commercial development consisting of approximately 20,000 square feet of street-level retail, general
services and/or mixed-use development space adjacent to Route 66 on 3.60 acres. The subject property
is currently undeveloped land with groupings of ponderosa pine trees left after the 2006 Woody Fire
burned the site. The property gently slopes away from Woody Mountain Road with no significant slope
resources.

Land uses north of the subject property, across Route 66 include a mix of land under City and County
jurisdiction. The McAllister Ranch property is located directly across Route 66 which is currently owned
by the City of Flagstaff but primarily under Coconino County jurisdiction, along with the adjacent
commercial property that contains the Professional River Outfitters operation. Land uses to the east of
the subject property, across Woody Mountain Road, include the Woody Mountain Campground & RV
Park both under the City and County jurisdictions on State Land and the Presidio in the Pines subdivision
within the City. The land to the south and west of the subject property is undeveloped property referred to
as the Westside 197 property that was recently auctioned. At this time, development plans for the
Westside 197 are unknown.

Just as a footnote, the math in the Ordinance and caption to the Ordinance regarding the size of the
property appears to be off by .01 acres.  We've chosen to stay consistent with the property descriptions
provided by the surveyor, resulting in that small discrepancy due to rounding.

Key Considerations:
An applicant requesting an amendment to the Zoning map may elect to pursue either a “Direct Ordinance
with a Site Plan” or “Authorization to Rezone with a Concept Zoning Plan” per Section 10-20.50.040.D
(pg. 20.50-5). The Direct Ordinance with a Site Plan process provides an applicant with a shorter
approval process with fewer steps. In this approach the applicant submits fully developed site plans with
all supporting information required for Site Plan Review concurrently with the Zoning Map amendment
application. Once the Zoning Map amendment is approved by the Council, then the applicant can
proceed directly to construction plan and building permit review. The Authorization to Rezone with a
Concept Zoning Plan process allows the applicant to prepare a concept zoning plan and pursue site plan
application after Council approves the Zoning Map Amendment. A Concept Zoning Plan should consist of
a plan with proposed use(s), vicinity maps, context map, concept phasing, housing types if applicable
and a proposed circulation map. This particular project initiated review of the Concept Plan prior to the
adoption of the two-pronged Zoning map Amendment process.  The zoning application, however, came
in after the adoption of the changes to the Code discussed above and  is a Concept Zoning Map
Amendment.  The applicant has chosen not to submit for Direct to Ordinance in conjunction with this
application. However, this application contains more information than would normally be required for a
Concept Zoning Map Amendment, thus this application is a hybrid of the old process and the new
concept zoning plan application.

The applicant is requesting a Zoning Map Amendment for a multi-family style, student housing
development, operated as a Rooming and Boarding Facility, consisting of 224 units (714 beds) located
within single and duplex cottage structures known as “Aspen Heights.” A commercial development
consisting of approximately 20,000 square feet of street-level retail, general services and/or mixed-use
development space adjacent to Route 66 is also included in this request. Concept plans of the
development, copies of which are attached to this report, show the residential units lining the exterior



boundaries of the property, with internal driveways lined with parking, and recreation facilities centrally
located within the development. 

Community Benefits and Considerations:
Community benefits and consideration related to this request are addressed in more detail in the
attached Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report, dated September 12, 2014.  The existing City of
Flagstaff boundary bisects the current parcel limiting the development of the site.  The majority of the
existing parcel is located within the City of Flagstaff boundaries and the annexation will result in an
expansion of the City limits to allow for appropriate development of the subject site.  The proposed
development will require a proportional-share contribution to a future traffic signal at the intersection of
Route 66 and S. Woody Mountain road per the results of the accepted traffic impact analysis.  In addition,
approximately 5500 linear feet of sere line will need to be upgraded in conjunction with the proposed
development.  The Applicant has indicated their desire to participate in the recapture program.  The
proposed development plans to off-set recreation impacts associated with the project by providing
substantial recreation improvement on site in compliance with the City of Flagstaff Zoning Code.

Community Involvement:
Inform/Consult

The Applicant held a neighborhood meeting on Thursday, March 27, 2014 at 5:30 pm. The Applicant
received two phone calls from their meeting notice requesting information about the project. Seven
people attended the meeting and had questions in regards to the case. None of the attendees expressed
opposition to the Annexation or the Zoning Map Amendment. Staff has not received any other comments
in regards to either the annexation or the Zoning Map Amendment.

Public hearings before the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council are conducted in
conjunction with any request for Zoning Map Amendment. In accordance with Arizona Revised Statute,
notice of the public hearing was provided by placing an ad in the Daily Sun, posting a notice on the
property, and mailing a notice to all property owners within 300 feet of the subject site. As of this writing,
staff has received two email letters, copies of which are attached to this report, wanting to make sure that
the planning for the site takes into account the use of Woody Mountain Road by a large number of W.L.
Gore employees who commute to the facilities in the area and expressing concern about the increased
lighting impacts from higher density development within Lighting Zone I.

The Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on September 24, 2014 at 4 p.m. 
Three individuals spoke in regards to this case.  Two addressed concerns in regards to dark sky related
issues and the impacts of outdoor lighting.  On individual asked for additional information in regards to the
provision of affordable housing.

Expanded Options and Alternatives:
(Recommended Action):  The City Council may approve the Zoning Map Amendment as
recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission and staff by reading and adopting
Ordinance No. 2014-31.
The City Council may approved the Zoning Map Amendment with conditions of approval.
The City Council may deny the Zoning Map Amendment.

Attachments:  P&Z Commission Staff Report
P&Z Commission Draft Minutes
Application & Narrative
Site Analysis
Zoning Map



RLUTP Land Use Map
FRP 2030 Goals & Policies
TIA acceptance memo
Public Hearing Advertisments
Citizen Participation Plan & Report
Citizen Comment Email Letters
Concept Plans
Ordinance 2014-31
Draft DA



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT
CONCEPT ZONING MAP AMENDMENT

PUBLIC HEARING DATE: September 12, 2014
PREZ 2014-0004 MEETING DATE: September 24, 2014

REPORT BY: Tiffany Antol

REQUEST:

A Concept Zoning Map Amendment request from Aspen Heights, to rezone approximately 33.33 acres from Rural 
Residential (RR) to Medium Density Residential (MR) and approximately 3.60 acres from Rural Residential (RR) to 
Highway Commercial (HC) located at 2701 S. Woody Mountain Road.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Commission forward the Zoning Map Amendment to the City Council with 
a recommendation for approval subject to the conditions as noted in the Recommendation section of this report.

PRESENT LAND USE:

The subject site consists of undeveloped land in the Rural Residential (RR) Zone.

PROPOSED LAND USE:

A multi-family style, student housing development, operated as a Rooming and Boarding Facility consisting of 224 units 
(714 beds) located within single and duplex cottage structures on 33.33 acres in the Medium Density Residential (MR) Zone. 
A commercial development consisting of approximately 20,000 square feet of street-level retail, general services and/or 
mixed-use development space adjacent to Route 66 on 3.60 acres in the Highway Commercial (HC) Zone. 

NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT:

North: Vacant land owned by the City of Flagstaff in the Rural Residential (RR) Zone; Professional River Outfitters in the 
General Commercial (CG-10,000) Zone under Coconino County jurisdiction.

East: Woody Mountain Campground & RV Park in the Rural Residential (RR) Zone and the Planned Community (PC) 
Zone under Coconino County jurisdiction; Presidio in the Pines in the High Density Residential (HR) Zone.

South: Vacant Land in the Rural Residential (RR) Zone.
West: Vacant Land in the Rural Residential (RR) Zone.

REQUIRED FINDINGS:

Staff Review

An application for a Zoning Map Amendment shall be submitted to the Planning Director and shall be reviewed and a 
recommendation prepared. The Planning Director’s recommendation shall be transmitted to the Planning Commission in the 
form of a staff report prior to a scheduled public hearing. The recommendation shall include: an evaluation of the 
consistency and conformance of the proposed amendment with the goals of the General Plan and any applicable specific 
plans; the ground for the recommendation based on the standards and purposes of the zones set forth in Section 10-40.20 
(Establishment of Zones) of the Zoning Code (page 40.20-1); and, whether the Zoning Map Amendment should be granted, 
granted with conditions to mitigate anticipated impacts caused by the proposed development, or denied. 



PREZ 2014-0004
September 24, 2014
Page 2

Findings for Reviewing Proposed Amendments

Proposed amendments shall be evaluated based on the following findings: the proposed amendment is consistent with and 
conforms to the goals of the General Plan and any applicable specific plans; the proposed amendment will not be detrimental 
to the public interest, health, safety, convenience, or welfare of the City of Flagstaff (the “City”) and will add to the public 
good as described in the General Plan; and, the affected site is physically suitable in terms of design, location, shape, size, 
operating characteristics, and the provision of public and emergency vehicle access, public services, and utilities to ensure 
that the requested zone designation and the proposed or anticipated uses and/or development will not endanger, jeopardize, 
or otherwise constitute a hazard to the property or improvements in the vicinity in which the property is located. If the 
application is not consistent with the General Plan and any other applicable specific plan, the applicable plan must be 
amended in compliance with the procedures established in Chapter 11-10 of the City Code (Title 11: General Plans and 
Subdivisions) prior to considering the proposed amendment.

STAFF REVIEW:

Introduction/Background

The Applicant, Aspen Heights, is requesting a Concept Zoning Map Amendment to rezone approximately 33.33 acres from 
the Rural Residential (RR) zone to the Medium Density Residential (MR) zone and approximately 3.60 acres from the Rural 
Residential (RR) zone to the Highway Commercial (HC) zone located at 2701 S. Woody Mountain Road. This amendment 
would allow the development of a multi-family style, student housing development, operated as a Rooming and Boarding 
Facility, consisting of 224 units (714 beds) located within single and duplex cottage structures on 33.33 acres and a 
commercial development consisting of approximately 20,000 square feet of street-level retail, general services and/or mixed-
use development space adjacent to Route 66 on 3.60 acres.  The subject property is currently undeveloped land with 
groupings of ponderosa pine trees left after the 2006 Woody Fire burned the site.  The property gently slopes away from 
Woody Mountain Road with no significant slope resources.

Land uses north of the subject property, across Route 66 include a mix of land under City and County jurisdiction.  The 
McAllister Ranch property is located directly across Route 66 which is currently owned by the City of Flagstaff but 
primarily under Coconino County jurisdiction, along with the adjacent commercial property that contains the Professional
River Outfitters operation. Land uses to the east of the subject property, across Woody Mountain Road, include the Woody 
Mountain Campground & RV Park both under the City and County jurisdictions on State Land and the Presidio in the Pines 
subdivision within the City. The land to the south and west of the subject property is undeveloped property referred to as the 
Westside 197 property that was recently auctioned. At this time, development plans for the Westside 197 are unknown.

An applicant requesting an amendment to the Zoning map may elect to pursue either a “Direct Ordinance with a Site Plan” 
or “Authorization to Rezone with a Concept Zoning Plan” per Section 10-20.50.040.D (pg. 20.50-5).  The Direct Ordinance 
with a Site Plan process provides an applicant with a shorter approval process with fewer steps.  In this approach the 
applicant submits fully developed site plans with all supporting information required for Site Plan Review concurrently with 
the Zoning Map amendment application.  Once the Zoning Map amendment is approved by the Council, then the applicant 
can proceed directly to construction plan and building permit review.  The Authorization to Rezone with a Concept Zoning 
Plan process allows the applicant to prepare a concept zoning plan and pursue site plan application after Council approves 
the Zoning Map Amendment. A Concept Zoning Plan should consist of a plan with proposed use(s), vicinity maps, context 
map, concept phasing, housing types if applicable and a proposed circulation map.  This particular project initiated review
prior to the adoption of the two-pronged Zoning map Amendment process.  This application is a Concept Zoning Map 
Amendment, and the applicant has chosen not to submit for Direct to Ordinance in conjunction with this application.  
However, this application contains more information than would normally be required for a Concept Zoning Map 



PREZ 2014-0004
September 24, 2014
Page 3

Amendment, thus this application is a hybrid of the old process and the new concept zoning plan application.

If the Concept Zoning Map Amendment request is approved, the next steps in the process will be the filing of an application 
for Site Plan and Conditional Use Permit review followed by Civil Improvement Plan and Building permit submittals. A 
Development Agreement between the City and Aspen Heights has been drafted, a copy of which is attached to this report, to 
address required infrastructure improvements and project management.  This agreement must be approved by the City 
Council via a resolution prior to the second reading of the Zoning Map Amendment ordinance.

The current application was filed prior to the adoption of the Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030 (FRP 2030) and is therefore 
being reviewed against the policies of the Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan (RLUTP). For 
comparison purposes, policies from both plans are identified and discussed in this report; however, only the analysis of those 
goals and policies of the RLUTP were used to determine staff’s recommendation.

Proposed Development Concept Plans

The applicant is requesting a Zoning Map Amendment for a multi-family style, student housing development, operated as a 
Rooming and Boarding Facility, consisting of 224 units (714 beds) located within single and duplex cottage structures 
known as “Aspen Heights.” A commercial development consisting of approximately 20,000 square feet of street-level 
retail, general services and/or mixed-use development space adjacent to Route 66 is also included in this request. Concept 
plans of the development, copies of which are attached to this report, show the residential units lining the exterior 
boundaries of the property, with internal driveways lined with parking, and recreation facilities centrally located within 
the development. 

General Plan – Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan (RLUTP)

The proposed Zoning Map Amendment application was submitted prior to the ratification of the Flagstaff Regional Plan 
2030 (FRP 2030).  As such, the request must be reviewed for conformance to the goals and policies of the RLUTP.  The 
RLUTP identifies the subject property as having a land use designation of Mixed-Use.  This land use category requires an 
average density of seven dwelling units per acre.  The Mixed-Use category may have an emphasis on either residential or 
non-residential.  The objective of this classification is to mix the two uses to provide districts of housing, shopping, and 
employment.  However, this category does not preclude single use developments.    The zoning contemplated by this Zoning 
Map Amendment request is in conformance with the existing land use designation in the RLUTP.

Applicable General Plan Goals and Policies
Staff has identified the following Goals and Policies for more detailed analysis:

Goal LU1 (Land Use and Growth Management)
“Greater Flagstaff will have a compact land use pattern within a well-defined boundary that shapes growth in a manner 
that preserves the region’s natural environment, livability, and sense of community.  Flagstaff will continue to offer the 
primary types of housing design developments that have defined its land use patterns: the conventional and traditional 
neighborhood scale which provide a choice of housing types and supporting non-residential uses within walking 
distances.” (RLUTP, pg. 2-5)

Policy LU1.5 – Provide for new Mixed-Use Neighborhoods.
“The Regional Plan designates new development areas within the Urban Growth Boundary for development as mixed-use 
neighborhoods.  The criteria for these areas includes average densities, a mix of mutually supportive and integrated 
residential and non-residential land uses, and a network of interconnected streets, and pedestrian and bicycle 



PREZ 2014-0004
September 24, 2014
Page 4

connections.” (RLUTP, pg. 2-9)

Policy LU1.6 – Require Urban Development to Locate within City Boundaries.
“In order to ensure that all urban development can be provided with adequate public facilities and services, it is the policy 
of this Regional Plan that all urban land uses shall be located within the Urban Growth Boundary, within the city’s 
corporate boundary limits.  The Regional Plan encourages urban land uses to locate only within incorporated areas in 
order to obtain City services, utilities, and fire protection.  The City shall consider the annexation of land into the city 
limits when the annexation of such property is consistent with the goals and policies of the RLTUP. (RLUTP, pg. 2-10)

Policy LU1.10 – Place Emphasis on all Transportation Modes. 
“All commercial and residential areas shall include full accommodation for pedestrians, bicycle travel and transit access.” 
(RLUTP, pg. 2-13)

Policy LU1.11 – Place Emphasis on and Encourage Traditional Neighborhood Development and Redevelopment 
Design. (pg 2-13) 
“The Regional Plan promotes the creation and establishment of neighborhood units with mixed land uses, a variety of 
dwelling types, activity centers that are walkable, alternate modes of transportation routes, and design that is sensitive to 
existing surrounding development.” (RLUTP, pg. 2-13)

Goal C1 (Commercial Development)
“Shopping and service areas will be convenient to residents as well as visitors to the region in a manner that meets their 
needs, while remaining compatible with surrounding land uses.” (RLUTP, pg. 2-21)

Policy C1.3 – Include a Mix of Uses in new Commercial Development and Redevelopment.
“New development shall include a mix of uses in the city and county, avoiding large, single-use buildings and dominating 
parking areas.” (RLUTP, pg. 2-22)

Policy C1.5 – Design and Establish Neighborhood Commercial Centers. 
“Neighborhood commercial centers in the city are designed as pedestrian-oriented gathering places with a mix of retail, 
office, and service uses, providing the goods and services necessary to meet the needs of the neighborhood while 
reflecting the identity and character of the surrounding residential neighborhoods.” (RLUTP, pg. 2-23)

Goal HN1 (Housing and Neighborhoods)
“The supply of affordable home ownership, rental, and special needs housing units affordable to low- and moderate-
income households will be increased.” (RLUTP, pg. 2-30)

Goal HN2 (Housing and Neighborhoods)
“New neighborhoods will be built and support will be given to existing neighborhoods that integrate a variety of housing 
types and densities with amenities, services, and retail to ensure opportunities for a variety of household income levels.” 
(RLUTP, pg. 2-32)

Policy HN2.1 – Promote Development of Mixed-Use Neighborhoods. 
“In appropriate areas, both new and existing neighborhoods should have a mix of land uses and different housing types.  
The arrangement of land uses within neighborhoods shall allow residents to walk and bicycle to parks, schools, work, 
shopping, places of worship, transit stops, and other nearby neighborhoods.  Neighborhoods should include a pedestrian-
oriented neighborhood center – school, park, plaza, commercial area or other neighborhood facility – that gives each 
neighborhood a unique identity and a place for recreation or public gatherings.”(RLUTP, pg 2-32)  



PREZ 2014-0004
September 24, 2014
Page 5

Policy HN2.2 – Establish Interconnected Neighborhood Street and Sidewalk Patterns.
“Neighborhood streets and sidewalks and/or walkways in both new and existing areas should form an interconnected 
network, including automobile, bicycle, and pedestrian routes within a neighborhood and between neighborhoods, in 
order to connect neighborhoods together and with other parts of the region.  Neighborhoods should have frequently 
connected networks of walkways and bike paths, including connections to the Flagstaff Urban Trail System (FUTS), 
where practicable and feasible.  In particular, direct walkway and bikeway route to schools, parks, and other community 
facilities should be provided.  Equestrian facilities should be accommodated where appropriate.” (RLUTP, pg. 2-33)

GOAL T3 (Transportation)
“The region’s development pattern will support a diverse range of transportation choices, including transit, walking and 
bicycling, as well as driving.” (RLUTP, pg. 3-10)

Policy OSPR1.3 – Provide Non-Motorized Transportation Corridors to Connect Communities, Neighborhoods, 
Open Spaces and Recreational Areas.
“Provide non-motorized transportation corridors between neighborhoods, communities, and between the city and outlying 
areas and regional and national facilities and sites.  Non-motorized access shall be provided from new and redevelopment 
neighborhoods and should be required from existing neighborhoods to regional open space via easements, trails, an on-
street facilities with open space connections between FUTS and USFS trails.  Existing neighborhoods are encouraged to 
improve non-motorized access and connections to regional open space and incorporate open space connections between 
FUTS and USFS trails.” (RLUTP, pg. 4-3)

Policy NCR1.9 – Protect Dark Skies
“Protection of dark skies and conservation of energy shall be undertaken by minimizing the detrimental effects to the 
region’s quality of life and astronomical observing conditions.” (RLUTP, pg. 6-5)

Policy CFS1.1 – Determine and Require Adequate Public Facilities and Services. 
“The provision of adequate public facilities and services and the phasing of infrastructure improvements shall be
important consideration in the timing and location of development.” (RLUTP, pg. 8-2)

Policy CFS1.2 – Development shall pay its Fair Share Toward the Cost of Additional Public Service Needs 
Created by new Development, While Giving Consideration to the Rational Nexus Provisions to Show Direct 
Benefit. 
“The short- and long-term fiscal effects of land use and new development require the use of various tools, methodologies 
and programs to determine the cost of development and to ensure development is paying its fair share and that it has a 
direct relationship to benefits received by the development and burdens imposed on the provider.” (RLUTP, pg. 8-4)

Goal/Policy Analysis
The subject property is located within the City’s defined Urban Growth Boundary and the proposed development includes a 
mix of housing and commercial uses designed to support the existing neighborhood.  The Mixed-Use designation requires an 
average of seven dwelling units per acre.  The proposed multi-family student housing project will meet this requirement after 
the dedication of right-of-way for Woody Mountain Road, at a total of 7.24 dwelling units per acre.  The project has been 
designed to include civic space which will serve as a neighborhood center for residents as well as provide for recreation 
activities.  

This request is being reviewed concurrently with an annexation to ensure this level of urban development occurs within the 
City boundaries.  The concept plan submitted with this request does not provide the level of connectivity necessary to 



PREZ 2014-0004
September 24, 2014
Page 6

integrate fully the new student housing with the proposed on-site future commercial development to the north or potential 
future development of the Westside 197 property to the west.  Connectivity for motorized vehicles, bicycles and pedestrians
between the proposed student housing development and the surrounding future uses should be a condition of this approval to 
be provided at site plan review.

The applicant is proposing a mixed-use development by including a portion of land for future commercial development 
suitable for supporting existing and future neighborhoods. The proposed development is not utilizing the incentives that have
been developed to support the provision of affordable housing.  No affordable housing will be provided with the 
development of this site.  The proposed development has had the required impact analysis completed in order to determine 
required improvements.  The existing water infrastructure at this time is sufficient for the proposed development but the 
Applicant will be responsible for approximately 5500 feet of sewer line upgrade in order to serve this site.  The Applicant is
also providing a proportional share contribution toward a future signal at the intersection of Route 66 and Woody Mountain 
Road.  Attached to this report is a draft development agreement that outlines both on and off-site improvements required for 
this development.

Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030 (FRP 2030)

The FRP 2030 designates this parcel as Future Urban within an Urban Activity Center. The density range required for 
residential mixed-use is eight dwelling units per acre and a minimum floor area ratio of 1.0 or greater. Furthermore, Route 
66 is identified as a Gateway Corridor and as a Great Street up to Woody Mountain Road.  The Comprehensive Planning 
Manager has provided the following interpretation for the place type characteristics and how they are to be applied to 
development projects; “The table describing the characteristics of urban, suburban and rural place types shows numerous 
characteristics including densities and intensity ranges but does not state at what scale these should be applied to a parcel-
level development project. These tables are intended to be interpreted at a scale that is at a minimum in a neighborhood 
or activity center. Every item is NOT a standard or guideline unto itself. The tables are meant to be taken as a whole, and 
used along with an analysis of how the project would or would not move the community toward the goals and policies 
throughout the document. For projects that are generally compatible with the characteristics in the table but do not fall 
within the range of density or intensity, the planner will consider the site-specific preservation of natural resources and 
compatibility of the proposal with the existing and future neighborhood context through an analysis of goals and policies. 
Specific plans may further refine how density and intensity is considered within an activity or a neighborhood.”

A list of Goals and Policies in relation to this request is attached to this report. One particular policy within the FRP 2030
specifically addresses student housing and is analyzed below:

Policy NH.1.7 Develop appropriate programs and tools to ensure the appropriate placement, design, and operation of 
new student housing developments consistent with neighborhood character and scale. (FRP 2030, pg. XIII-9)

Although no programs have yet to be developed to encourage student housing to locate in an undetermined preferred area in 
the City this policy is clear that “design” and “operation” be compatible with existing neighborhoods.  The proposed project 
includes the provision of student housing through a cottage style design.  The buildings are comprised of single and duplex 
units that relate well in terms of scale and intensity to the existing single-family residential neighborhoods in the area.  The 
operation and management of a student housing project is key to the success of integrating this use with other residential and 
commercial uses in the vicinity.  The Applicant has not presented a management/operation plan but has met with local law 
enforcement to discuss the potential for keeping the students and surrounding neighborhoods safe. The Development 
Agreement to be considered by Council will address this issue.

Zoning – City of Flagstaff Zoning Code



PREZ 2014-0004
September 24, 2014
Page 7

The City of Flagstaff Zoning Code, which was adopted in November 2011, (the “Zoning Code”) identifies the subject 
property as being located in the Rural Residential (RR) zone and allows for one dwelling per acre.  In order to accomplish 
the proposed student housing development, a portion of the property is proposed to be rezoned to the Medium Density 
Residential (MR) zone.  In order to comply with the Mixed-Use land use designation, the Applicant is proposing to rezone a 
smaller portion of the property to the Highway Commercial (HC) zone, which will be developed separately from the student 
housing project.  The student housing development will be operated as a Rooming and Boarding Facility, subject to the 
issuance of a Conditional Use Permit by the Planning & Zoning Commission (Section 10-40.30.030.B of the Zoning Code, 
Page 40.30-6); however, this development option is limited to a maximum density of 9 dwelling units/acre and a maximum 
building height of 35 feet for the MR zone portion of the property and a gross FAR of 3.0 and a maximum building height of 
60 feet for the HC zone portion of the property. A comparison of the current and proposed zoning development standards 
can be found under the “Building Form and Density Standards” subsection of this report.

Building Form and Density Standards
Table 1 below compares development standards for the existing RR zone and the proposed MR and HC zones. The subject 
property is located with the Resource Protection Overlay (RPO) zone.

Table 1 – Comparison of Development Standards
Standard Existing Zone (RR) Proposed Zone (MR) Proposed Zone (HC)

Acres 36.93 33.33 3.60
Maximum Building Height 
(feet)

35 35 60

Maximum Coverage 20% 50% 3.0 FAR
Building Placement 
Requirements (Min Setbacks):

Front (feet) 75
10 (second floor and below)

15 (above second floor)
0

Side (feet)
10 (interior)
25 (exterior)

5 (interior)
5 (exterior)

15 (adjacent to residential)
0 (all other uses)

10 (exterior

Rear (feet) 10 15
15 (adjacent to residential)

0 (all other uses)
Minimum Open Space (%) 15
Density Requirements:

Minimum (du/ac) 0 6
Maximum, Inside RPO 
(du/ac)

1 9

Maximum, Outside RPO 
(du/ac)

1 14

Open Space and Civic Space
Development within the proposed Medium Density Residential (MR) zone is required to maintain a minimum of 15 percent 
of the lot area as open space.  In accordance with Section 10-40.30.030.C of the Zoning Code (Page 40.30-9), the areas set 
aside for resource preservation (i.e. floodplains, slopes, and forests), active and passive recreation uses, landscape areas, and 
community gardens may be used to satisfy the open space standard.  Using these parameters, the 30.9-acre student housing



PREZ 2014-0004
September 24, 2014
Page 8

site is required to maintain at least 4.63 acres of open space.  Additionally, in accordance with Section 10-30.60.060.B.1.b of 
the Zoning Code (Page 30.60-11), residential developments with 50 or more dwelling units shall provide a minimum of five 
(5%) percent of the site in civic spaces that are either privately held and open to the public or publicly owned and set aside as 
a civic space.  Using these parameters, the 30.9 acres student housing site is required to maintain at least 1.54 acres of civic 
space.  The concept plan identifies 3.96 acres of the site as civic space, which is deficient for meeting both the open space 
and civic space requirements.  There is, however, ample room on site to meet the minimum requirements. The majority of 
the provided open and civic space is clustered around the clubhouse and in the middle of the site, which provides an outdoor 
amenity with exercise equipment and barbeques. To address the current deficiency in open space and civic space, a 
condition of approval has been added to ensure that these are adequately addressed during site plan review.

Parking
Table 10-50.80.040.A of the Zoning Code (Page 50.80-6) establishes the minimum number of parking spaces required for 
development.  Parking for the Rooming and Boarding Facility is calculated at a rate of one space per bedroom plus one space 
for the owner/manager.  The proposed student housing development consists of 714 beds.  The Applicant is proposing a total 
of 750 parking spaces for this residential use, which includes five percent (5%) in additional parking spaces provided. The 
requirement for the commercial development will be dependent on the individual use. A final parking analysis will be done 
with the review of a more detailed site plan submittal that will ensure that all parking spaces and drive aisles meet the 
minimum dimension standards. 

Design Review

Site Planning Standards
In accordance with Section 10-30.60.030 of the Zoning Code (Page 30.60-2), the Applicant conducted a site analysis, a copy 
of which is attached to this report, that considers the topography of the site, solar orientation, existing/native vegetation types 
and relative quality, view corridors, climate, subsurface conditions, drainage swales and stream corridor, and the built 
environment and land use context. Implementation of the findings of the site analysis will be ensured during the review of a 
more detailed site plan submittal.

Pedestrian and Bicycle Circulation Systems
On-site pedestrian circulation is provided through an extensive network of walkways. These walkways are designed as on-
site connections between several internal functions, including building entrances, parking areas, and open space amenities.  
In addition, they provide off-site connections to the public sidewalks and Flagstaff Urban Trail System (FUTS) trail, which
will be developed in conjunction with this project. Connectivity between the proposed student housing and the adjacent 
properties is important for making a cohesive neighborhood that will give the students full access to future development in 
the area. While there is no dedicated on-site bicycle circulation system, bicycles can utilize the on-site pedestrian system to 
gain access to building entrances, open space amenities, and the adjoining public sidewalks and FUTS trail.  In accordance 
with Section 10-30.60.040.A.3 of the Zoning Code (Page 30.60-7) and Section 10-50.80.050 of the Zoning Code (Page 
50.80-11), 38 bicycle parking spaces, are required to be provided on-site.

Parking Lots, Driveways, and Service Areas
Seven hundred fifty (750) surface parking spaces are provided on-site. The majority of these spaces are screened from the 
public way by the placement of the buildings.  The remaining perimeter spaces are setback from the property line and will be 
screened with landscaping in accordance with Section 10-30.60.050.A.4 of the Zoning Code (Page 30.60-9). Design 
standards require new development to minimize the number of curb cuts (i.e. driveways) onto a public street. Three new 
curb cuts are proposed for the student housing project, two of which are located in alignment with existing 
driveways/roadways or median breaks. Staff will ensure that trash enclosures and loading areas meet City standards for 
screening, operation, and location during the review of a more detailed site plan submittal.



PREZ 2014-0004
September 24, 2014
Page 9

Compatibility and Architectural Design Standards
“Scale” refers to similar or harmonious proportions, overall height and width, the visual intensity of the development, and 
the building massing.  The proposed development consists of structures similar in scale to single-family residential housing, 
which is consistent with much of the surrounding development.  Preliminary elevations, copies of which are attached to this 
report, were provided for the residential units as part of this application, but detailed information has not been supplied for 
the future commercial development.  Architectural design standards will be reviewed at the time of site plan approval and 
staff will confirm that all elevations are consistent with current requirements.  

Landscaping

A preliminary landscape plan, a copy of which is attached to this report, was prepared and submitted with this application.  
The plan has been accepted as meeting the general intent of the parking lot landscaping, public right-of-way landscaping, 
open space landscaping, and landscape screening standards found within Section 10-50.60 of the Zoning Code (Page 50.60-
1).  A final landscape plan will be reviewed at the time of a more detailed site plan submittal.

Outdoor Lighting

The subject property is located entirely within Lighting Zone 1, which means that it is in close proximity to the US Naval 
Observatory.  Lighting Zone 1 has the highest level standards in regards to outdoor lighting and allows for a total of 25,000
lumens per acre for multi-family residential and commercial development.  Outdoor lighting is divided into three classes.  
Class 1 lighting includes fixtures where color rendition is required and includes areas of outdoor spaces, building entrances, 
outdoor seating and recreational areas; Class 2 lighting includes general illumination for safety and security and Class 3 
lighting includes all decorative or architectural illumination.  All outdoor Class 1 and Class 3 lighting, and outdoor Class 2 
lighting located more than 50 feet from any building shall be turned off by 9:00 p.m. in Lighting Zone 1.  Staff will work 
with the applicant and the dark sky community at Site Plan review to ensure that the outdoor lighting for this project is 
sensitive to both the development and the dark sky community to the maximum extent feasible.

PUBLIC SYSTEMS IMPACT ANALYSIS: See Annexation Report PANX-14-001 for complete Public Impact Analysis 
discussion.

OTHER REQUIREMENTS:

Natural and Cultural Resources

The subject property is located within the Resource Protection Overlay (RPO) zone as defined by Section 10-50.90.020.A of 
the Zoning Code (Page 50.90-2).  There are no defined floodplain or slope resources on-site.  The Natural Resource 
Protection Plan (NRPP) prepared by the Applicant, a copy of which is attached to this report, identifies 2916 total forest tree 
points on-site.  In accordance with Table 10-50.90.060.A of the Zoning Code (Page 50.90-7), forest resources within a 
residential development must be protected at a 50 percent threshold. In accordance with Section 10-30.60.060.B.1.c.(1) of 
the Zoning Code (Page 30.60-11), forest resource protection thresholds can be reduced by five percent (5%) when civic 
spaces are provided.  The NRPP proposes to save 1498 forest tree points, which is 51.37 percent of the total on-site forest 
tree points.  The NRPP is in conformance with the Zoning Code resource protection standards. As is required for 
undeveloped land, a letter report was prepared at the request of the Historic Preservation Officer.  The report did not find 
conditions that warranted further analysis of the site.  A Phase 1 Cultural Resource Study was not required for this location.

Citizen Participation



PREZ 2014-0004
September 24, 2014
Page 10

Public hearings before the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council are conducted in conjunction with any 
request for Zoning Map Amendment.  In accordance with Arizona Revised Statute, notice of the public hearing was provided 
by placing an ad in the Daily Sun, posting a notice on the property, and mailing a notice to all property owners within 300 
feet of the subject site. As of this writing, staff has received two email letters, copies of which are attached to this report,
wanting to make sure that the planning for the site takes into account the use of Woody Mountain Road by a large number of 
W.L. Gore employees who commute to the facilities in the area and expressing concern about the increased lighting impacts
from higher density development within Lighting Zone I.

The Applicant held a neighborhood meeting on Thursday, March 27, 2014 at 5:30 pm.  The Applicant received two 
phone calls from their meeting notice requesting information about the project.  Seven people attended the meeting and 
had questions in regards to the case.  None of the attendees expressed opposition to the Annexation or the Zoning Map 
Amendment.  Staff has not received any other comments in regards to either the annexation or the Zoning Map 
Amendment.

DISCUSSION:

In accordance with Section 10-40.30.040.A.5 of the Zoning Code (Page 40.30-4), the Medium Density Residential (MR) 
zone; applies in areas appropriate for moderate density residential; and, allows a variety of housing types, including 
affordable and planned residential development that allow for higher densities.   In accordance with Section 10-
40.30.040.A.3 of the Zoning Code (Page 40.30-13), the Highway Commercial (HC) zone applies to areas of the City 
appropriate for a full range of automobile-oriented uses; encourages the development of commercial uses in addition to 
residential uses to provide diversity in housing choices; and is designated primarily at the commercial corridors of the City.  
The proposed residential and commercial zoning at this location is compatible with the RLUTP designation of Mixed-Use.  
The proposed student housing project conforms to the standards of the proposed MR zone and the conceptual commercial 
development within the HC zone will be limited to uses that function well within a mixed-use neighborhood including 
services, retail, and office.  There is currently a lack of commercial development within the subject area with a growing 
residential population and an existing employment population.

Staff agrees that the proposed Zoning Map Amendment is consistent with the RLUTP and the intent of the Zoning Code, but
is concerned about the timing of this request and the lack of existing multi-modal transportation infrastructure within this 
area. The site is not yet served by transit and is not part of a cohesive bicycle and pedestrian network.  Adequate on-site 
parking is provided for the residents but the issue becomes the parking constraints affiliated with Northern Arizona 
University.  The Applicant has been in communication with Northern Arizona Intergovernmental Public Transportation 
Authority (NAIPTA) to discuss the potential for transit or shuttle service for this project but no formal agreements are 
currently in place.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff believes that the proposed Zoning Map amendment is in substantial conformance with the Flagstaff Area Regional 
Land Use and Transportation Plan and recommends the Planning & Zoning Commission forward the request to the City 
Council with a recommendation approving an amendment to the Zoning Map for 33.33 acres from the Rural Residential 
(RR) zone to the Medium Density (MR) zone and for 3.60 acres from the Rural Residential (RR) zone to the Highway 
Commercial (HC) zone, subject to the following conditions:

1. The subject property shall be developed in substantial conformance to the uses including the density and intensity 
and general layout approved by the Inter-Division Staff (IDS) on August 25, 2014 and as presented to the Planning 



PREZ 2014-0004
September 24, 2014
Page 11

and Zoning Commission with this amendment request except as modified herein.

2. Development of the MR zone shall be limited to the number of units (224) and beds (714) identified in the Zone 
Change Plan and used for the preparation of all impact analysis.  

3. Development of the HC zone shall include 20,000 square feet of general service/retail/office or mixed use 
development.  

4. Per the acceptance of the traffic impact analysis, both vehicular and non-vehicular access shall be provided between 
the proposed student housing project and the proposed commercial development as well as pedestrian/bicycle 
connections to the future development of the vacant land to the west.

5. The Developer shall enter into a Development Agreement with the City to, address at a minimum the proportional 
share contribution of the signalized intersection of Route 66 and Woody Mountain Road, off-site sewer 
improvement requirements, on-site water/sewer modifications, roadway/edge improvements and a management 
operation plan.

6. At the time of site plan submittal, the developer shall provide a minimum of fifteen percent (15%) of the lot area as 
open space and a minimum of five percent (5%) of the lot area as civic space.  

7. Outdoor lighting shall be extinguished at the close of business except for security lighting further that 50 feet from 
the entrance to any building.

8. If the residential development is operated as a rooming and boarding facility, a Conditional Use Permit shall be
reviewed and approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission.

9. Site Plan review and approval by staff for the residential and commercial developments is required to assure that all 
conditions, requirements and terms that are included in the Zoning Map Amendment Ordinance and Development 
Agreement are accomplished.

ATTACHMENTS

o Zoning Map Amendment Application & Narrative
o Current City of Flagstaff Zoning Map
o Site Analysis
o Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030 Goals & Policies
o Traffic Impact Analysis Acceptance Memo
o Public Hearing Legal Advertisements
o Citizen Participation Plan 
o Citizen Comment Email Letters
o Draft Development Agreement
o Concept Plan Packet: 

Conceptual Site Plan
Concept Utility Plan
Natural Resource Protection Plan
Conceptual Landscape Plan
Annexation Map



PREZ 2014-0004
September 24, 2014
Page 12

Residential Building Elevations Examples



Minutes- Draft
City of Flagstaff

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
4:00 PM– Wednesday, September 24, 2014

_____________________________________________________________
City Hall, Council Chambers, 211 W. Aspen Avenue

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need assistance to participate in this meeting, please 
contact Tammy Bishop at (928) 213-2611 (or 774-5281 TDD).  Notification at least 48 hours in advance will enable 
the City to make reasonable arrangements.

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Planning and Zoning Commission and 
to the general public that, at this meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission may vote to go into executive session, which 
will not be open to the public, for legal advice and discussion with the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the 
following agenda, pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

CALL TO ORDER Chairman Dorsett called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

COMMISSION MEMBERS:  Stephen Dorsett, Chairman Paul W. Turner
Present: Justin Ramsey, Vice Chairman Steve Jackson

Paul Moore
Tina Pfeiffer

Absent: David Carpenter

CITY STAFF: Brian Kulina, Planning Development Manager
Tiffany Antol, Planning Development Manager
Mark Sawyers, Staff Liaison
Becky Cardiff, Recording Secretary

I. GENERAL BUSINESS

A. PUBLIC COMMENT
(At this time, any member of the public may address the Commission on any subject within their jurisdiction that is 
not scheduled before the Commission on that day.  Due to Open Meeting Laws, the Commission cannot discuss or 
act on items presented during this portion of the agenda.  To address the Commission on an item that is on the 
agenda, please wait for the Chair to call for Public Comment at the time the item is heard.)

None

B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1)  Regular meeting of August 27, 2014.
Motion to approve the minutes of the regular meeting of August 27, 2014, Moved by Commissioner 
Turner; seconded by Commissioner Ramsey.  Motion carried unanimously.



Planning & Zoning Commission Agenda
September 24, 2014
Page 2

II. OTHER BUSINESS

PINNACLE PINES

Address: 800 E Sterling Lane
Assessor’s Parcel Number: 105-20-117
Property Owner:  Pinnacle 146 LLC
Applicant:  Mogollon Engineering
Application Number: PPPL 2014-0005
City Staff: Brian Kulina
Action Sought:   Preliminary Plat Request

A Preliminary Plat request from Mogollon Engineering & Surveying, Inc., on behalf of Pinnacle 146 
LLC, for a development of approximately 18.59 acres into 106 single-family subdivision lots located at 
800 E. Sterling Lane, within the Medium Density Residential (MR) zone.

Mr. Kulina gave a PowerPoint presentation on the proposed project and answered questions 
from Commissioners.

Kristen Smith, Flagstaff Fire Dept, was present and answered questions from 
Commissioners.

Reid Miller, Traffic Engineering, was present and answered questions from Commissioners.

Kent Hotsenpillar, Engineer representing the applicant, answered questions from 
Commissioners. 

Sue Ellen, resident, discussed the potential access to the proposed project and the potential 
effect it could have on the value of her property.

Doug Hare, owner representative, answered questions from Commissioners

Motion to forward to City Council for approval Preliminary Plat PPPL 2014-0005 with additional 
mitigation of the impact of Silver Lane to adjoining properties Moved by Chairman Dorsett;
seconded by Commissioner Ramsey.  Discussion was held. Motion carried 5 to 1 with Commissioner 
Jackson dissenting.

III. PUBLIC HEARING

A.  ASPEN HEIGHTS

Address: 2701 S Woody Mountain Road
Assessor’s Parcel Number: 112-01-019
Property Owner:  Landmarc Capital & Investment Co.
Applicant:  Aspen Heights
Application Number: PANX 14-0001
City Staff: Tiffany Antol
Action Sought:   Annexation Request

An annexation request of approximately 3.14 acres located at 2701 S. Woody Mountain Road. The 
property is identified as a portion of Coconino County Assessor’s Parcel Number 112-01-019. This 
annexation request is the first part of a two-part request. The second part of the request is a Zoning 
Map Amendment.



Planning & Zoning Commission Agenda
September 24, 2014
Page 3

B. ASPEN HEIGHTS

Address: 2701 S Woody Mountain Road
Assessor’s Parcel Number: 112-01-019
Property Owner:  Landmarc Capital & Investment Co.
Applicant:  Aspen Heights
Application Number: PREZ 14-0004
City Staff: Tiffany Antol
Action Sought:   Zoning Map Amendment

A Zoning Map Amendment request to rezone approximately 33.33 acres from Rural Residential (RR) 
to Medium Density Residential (MR) and approximately 3.60 acres from Rural Residential (RR) to 
Highway Commercial (HC).

Ms. Antol gave a PowerPoint presentation on the proposed project Aspen Heights including 
information on both the Annexation and Zoning Map Amendment and answered questions from 
Commissioners. 

Reid Miller, Traffic Engineer, answered questions from Commissioners

Rick Barrett, City Engineer, answered questions from Commissioners

Ms. Antol answered questions from Commissioners

Kent Hotsenpillar, Engineer representing the applicant, answered questions from Commissioners

Charlie Vatterott, Executive VP of Development, gave a PowerPoint on the proposed project.

William Ramsey, Regional Operations Manager representing the applicant, gave a PowerPoint 
presentation on the operation of the proposed project.

Dana Kjellgren, legal counsel representing the applicant, answered questions from Commissioners

Erika Mazza, NAIPTA, answered questions about possible transit from the proposed project. 

Motion to open the public hearing Moved by Commissioner Turner; seconded by Commissioner 
Moore.  Motion carried.

Public Comment was given as follows:

Elizabeth Betroff, resident, requested information on affordable housing

Ms. Antol and Ms. Kjellgren addressed the question about affordable housing

Chris Luginbuhl, astronomer, expressed concerns about lighting that the proposed project could 
produce.

Lance Diskan, representing the Dark Skies Coalition/resident, also expressed concerns about the 
lighting that the proposed project would produce. 

Ms. Kjellgren addressed concerns that were brought up during public comment

A written comment was submitted as follows:

“Moran Henn, representing Friends of Flagstaff’s Future, F3 is not in opposition or in support of this 
project. We do think however that approving it would be pushing the cart before the horse.  The city 
and county are in the process of developing guidelines for dormitory style off campus student 
housing. The community is going to weigh in on this issue on October 27 at a meeting led by Mayor 
Nabours and Supervisor Archuleta.  We only ask you give the community time.  Given such strong 



Planning & Zoning Commission Agenda
September 24, 2014
Page 4

community engagement in the previous off campus housing issue we feel it would be best to not 
approve any such developments till after October 27. Thank you”

Motion to close the public hearing Moved by Commissioner Turner; seconded by Commissioner 
Jackson.  Motion carried.

Motion to forward an approval to City Council of Annexation PANX 14-0001 Moved by 
Commissioner Turner; seconded by Commissioner Jackson.  Motion carried unanimously.

Motion to forward for approval to City Council of PREZ 14-0004 with Staff conditions and the 
condition that Council seriously consider reducing the lumen counts currently allowed in the zone.
Moved by Commissioner Moore. Motion failed with no second.

Motion to forward for approval to City Council of PREZ 14-0004 with proposed Staff Conditions
Moved by Commissioner Turner; seconded by Commissioner Pfieffer.  Discussion was held. 

Motion to amend the motion to include the condition that the applicant will work with the dark skies 
community to minimize the impact on the Observatory and to come up with conditions for the 
Development Agreement to achieve those results Moved by Chairman Dorsett; Seconded by 
Commissioner Pfeiffer. Motion carried and additional condition is added to the original motion.

Motion to forward to City Council for approval of PREZ 14-0004 with proposed Staff Conditions and 
the condition that the applicant will work with the dark skies community to minimize the impact on the 
Observatory and to come up with conditions for the Development Agreement to achieve those results.  
Moved by Chairman Dorsett; Seconded by Commissioner Pfieffer.  Motion carried unanimously.

IV. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS TO/FROM COMMISSION MEMBERS

None.

ADJOURNMENT at 7:15













1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 11

181716

28

14

1312

19

10

20 21 22 23 24

25 26 27

15

This map is known as the "City of Flagstaff Official Zoning Map" or the
"City of Flagstaff Official Regulating Plan," and is intended to implement
the City of Flagstaff Zoning Code per Ordinance 2011-20 adopted on
11/01/2011 and all subsequent amendments. These maps are based on
the most accurate graphic information available at the time they were
produced. The City of Flagstaff furnishes these maps "as is" and assumes
no responsibility for their accuracy. All zoning information should be
verified by legal description whenever possible.

JACLYN

ME
DI

AN
CR

OS
SO

VE
R

F OS
SI

L

C R EE
K

LIME ST

ONE

S S
TO

RM
Y L

N

S
H I

BI
SC

U S
LN

S TRINIDA D

LN

S EC
LIP

SE
LN

S S
EC

LU
SIO

N LN

S S
HA

DY
KN

OL
L L

N S
MA

JE
S T

IC
R D

S W
RI

GH
T R

D

S P
AI

S
DE

LN
OR

TE

S P
ER

DI
Z L

N

S T
EX

 LN

S P
AN

TA
N O

SE
CO

LN

S P
AR

DO
CA

LL
E

W BRUCEBALLE DR

W PAZ DEAVENIDA

W CJ DR

W PIKES PEAK DR

W S ILVERTON DR

S PEPITA DR

W CRIPPLECR EEK DR

W JACLYN DR

S C
AM

EL
 D

R

W
CL

EM

ENT CIR

W CAMELOT DR

W POLLO CIR

W JOSSELYN DR

W PICO DEL MONTE CIR

LEGENDTRL

SIN
CL

AIR ST

ROUND
PEN

PENNSYLVANIA
CT

CORRAL
GATE

HEAVENLYCT

DAPPLE
GREY

CHELSEA
WAY

ATLANTIC CT

SHORTLINE CT

READING CT

PA
IS

 D
EL

NO
RT

E

BRITTANY
WAY

PA
RD

O
CA

LL
E

KILTIE LN

MOORE
CIR

ZACHARYWAY

KILTIE LN

PATIO DELPRESIDIO

SKYE
WAY

WOODY
WAY

LEAD
ROPE

UN
IO

N
PA

CIF
IC

ST

CA
BO

OS
E

CT

SUNSHINE
DR

MAJESTIC
RD

BU

RLINGTON

ST

SO
UT

HE
RN

PA
CI

FIC
ST

ANDREA DR

LARIAT LOOP

GI
LL

EN
WATER DR

KA
IBA

B L
N

ASHLEY
WAY

HI
LL

AR
Y

WA
Y

TOBOGGAN
CT

PR E SI
DI

O
DR

BIGSKY

TOMBAUGH
WAY

FLAGSTAFFRANCH RD

DOLORES LN

SURREYLN

NO
RT

HW
ES

TE
RN

ST

DY
LA

N 
ST UNIVERSITY

HEIGHTS DR

ROCK ISLAND AVE

HIGHLANDMESA RD

M

ISSION

TIMBER CIR

FL
AG

ST
AF

F
RA

NC
H

RD

PICKETLINE

RA
ILR

OA
D

SP
RIN

GS
B L

VD
JEWEL DR

TROTTER LN

CADEN CT

RUNN
IN

G
I R

O N

TACKROOM

MELISSA DR

AX HANDLE WAY

FL
AG

ST
AF

F
RA

NC
H R

D

SN
AF

FL
E

BIT

SO
FT

WIND LN

JU
ST

IN
 ST

FR
ES

H A
IRE

 ST

CAR OL DR

DARK
SKY DR

ZEPHER AVE

SADDLE HORN

SADDLE
BLANKET

CORONADO AVE

TOPEKA
AVE

LINDSEY
LOOP

AMAND AST

UN
IVE

RS

ITY

HE
IG

HT
S DR

DUNN A

M ST

STRAWBERRY RO
AN

UNIVERSITY AVE

DE
BB

IE
 ST

BRID LE
PATH

RUNNING

MARTINGALE

LARIAT LOOP

LARIAT LOOP

CHERYL DR

WOODY

MOUNTAIN
RD

FLAGSTAFF

RANCH RD

WO
OD

Y
MO

UN
TA

IN
RD

RIO
GRANDE CT

CAROL DR

WOO
DY

MO
U N

TA
IN

RD

£¤66

£¤66

§̈¦40

RD

ER

HC

HC

HR

HR

HR

LI-OMH

MH

MR

MR

PF
R1

R1

R1

RR

RR

RR

RR

RR

City of Flagstaff Zoning Map 14
Residential Zones:

Rural Residential (RR)
Estate Residential (ER)
Single-family Residential (R1)

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! Single-family Residential Neighborhood (R1N)
Medium Density Residential (MR)
High Density Residential (HR)
Manufactured Housing (MH)

Commercial Zones:
Central Business (CB)
Highway Commercial (HC)
Commercial Service (CS)
Community Commercial (CC)
Suburban Commercial (SC)

Industrial Zones:
Research and Development (RD)
Light Industrial (LI)

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! Light Industrial Open (LI-O)
Heavy Industrial (HI)

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! Heavy Industrial Open (HI-O)
Resource and Open Space:

Public Facility (PF)
Public Lands Forest (PLF)
Open Space (OS)

Airport Overlay Zone

Downtown Overlay Zone

Townsite Overlay Zone

Landmark Overlay Zone

Regulating Plan Boundary

City Limits

Parcels

3

4/30/2014

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 Feet



S LAKE MARY RD

E ROUTE 66

W ROUTE 66

S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
U

T
E

 8
9A

  

N H
IG

HW
AY 8

9

E BUTLER AVE

HIGHWAY 180

N FORT VALLEY RD

E S
OLIE

RE A
VE

S
 M

IL
T

O
N

 R
D

S
 L

O
N

E
 T

R
E

E
 R

D

N
 C

O
U

N
T

R
Y

 C
LU

B
 D

R

S W
O

O
DY M

O
UNTA

IN
 R

D

E CEDAR AVE

N
 B

E
A

V
E

R
 S

T

E LOCKETT RD

S B
EULA

H B
LV

D

E IN
DUSTRIAL DR

E H
UNTI

NG
TO

N D
R

N
 F

O
U

R
T

H
 S

T

N
 S

A
N

 F
R

A
N

C
IS

C
O

 S
T

E FOREST AVE

E JO
HN W

 P
O

W
ELL

 B
LV

D

N
 S

W
ITZE

R
 C

A
N

Y
O

N
 D

R

N
 H

U
M

P
H

R
E

Y
S

 S
T

E EMPIRE AVE

N C
O

NTI
NENTA

L 
DR

W FOREST AVE

S
 B

E
A

V
E

R
 S

T

N
 F

A
N

N
IN

G
 D

R

0.5 0 0.5 1 1.5 Miles

Map 4: City Land Use Plan
Land Uses

Rural Agriculture (<1 du/ac)

Very Low Density Residential ( <1 du/ac)

Low Density Residential (1−5 du/ac)

Medium Density Residential (6−12 du/ac)

High Denisty Residential ( >12 du/ac)

Mixed Use

Commercial Neighborhood

Commercial Regional/Community

Office/Business Park − Light Industrial

Industrial Light/Medium

Industrial Heavy

Institutional

Parks

Urban Open Space

Rural Open Space

Golf Course

Planning Reserve Area

Public Multiple Use

Transition Zone

National Monuments

Flagstaff City Limits

Urban Growth Boundary − Stage 1

Urban Growth Boundary − Stage 2

Rural Growth Boundary

Existing Major Road

Proposed Major Road

Railroads

Major Surface Water Features

O

Sources: City of Flagstaff Long Range Section &
             Coconino County Community Development Department

December 2005

-3

-3

-5-7

-7-7

-3

Walnut Canyon 
Nationl Monument

-# Required Average Densities (units per acre)

Flagstaff 
Pulliam 
Aiport

Fort Tuthill
County Park

McMillan Mesa

Dry Lake

Lower Lake Mary

Marshall Lake

Observatory 
Mesa

A−1
Mountain

Mt. Elden Turkey 
Hills

Northern 
Arizona 

University

Forest 
Highlands

Rio de FlagRio de Flag

§̈¦I−40

§̈¦I−40

§̈¦I−17



Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030

Goal E&C.5.  Preserve dark skies as an unspoiled natural resource, basis for an important economic 
sector, and core element of community character.

Policy E&C.5.1. Evaluate the impacts of the retention of dark skies regarding lighting infrastructure and 
regulatory changes, land use decisions or changes, and proposed transportation developments within the 
region.

Policy E&C.5.2. Encourage and incentivize voluntary reduction of “exempt” lighting that degrades night 
sky visibility, and work to prevent light trespass whenever possible in both public and private areas.  

Policy E&C.5.3. Continue to enforce dark sky ordinances.

Policy E&C.5.4. Encourage uses within Lighting Zone 1 of the lighting codes of the City and County that 
do not require outdoor lighting, and discourage those which require all-night lighting.

Route 66 is identified as a Gateway Corridor and as a Great Street up to Woody Mountain Road

Goal CC.1. Reflect and respect the region’s natural setting and dramatic views in the built environment.

Policy CC.1.4. Identify, protect, and enhance gateways, gateway corridors, and gateway communities.

The Future Growth Illustration identifies the subject parcel as Urban Future inside of an Urban Activity 
Center within the Urban Growth Boundary.

Goal LU.2. Develop Flagstaff’s Greenfields in accordance with the Regional plan and within the growth 
boundary.

Policy LU.2.1. Design new neighborhoods that embody the characteristics of Flagstaff’s favorite 
neighborhoods – that is, with a mix of uses, a variety of housing types and densities, public spaces, and 
greater connectivity with multimodal transportation options.

Policy LU.2.2. Design new development to coordinate with existing and future development, in an effort 
to preserve viewsheds, strengthen connectivity, and establish compatible and mutually supportive land 
uses.

Goal LU.3. Continue to enhance the region’s unique sense of place within the urban, suburban, and rural 
context.

Policy LU.3.1. Within the urban, suburban, and rural context, use neighborhoods, activity centers, 
corridors, public spaces, and connectivity as the structural framework for development.

Goal LU.5. Encourage compact development principles to achieve efficiencies and open space 
preservation.

Policy LU.5.2. Promote infill development over peripheral expansion to conserve environmental 
resources, spur economic invests, and reduce the cost of providing infrastructure and services.



Policy LU.5.3. Promote compact development appropriate to and within the context of each area type: 
urban, suburban, and rural.

Policy LU.5.5. Plan for and promote compact commercial development as activity centers with mixed 
uses, allowing for efficient multi-modal transit options and infrastructure.

Policy LU..5. Encourage the distribution of density within neighborhoods in relationship to associated 
activity centers and corridors, infrastructure, transportation, and natural constrains such as slopes and 
drainages.

Goal LU.6. Provide for a mix of land uses.

Policy LU.6.1. Consider a variety of housing types and employment options when planning new 
development and redevelopment projects.

Policy LU.6.2. Consider commercial core areas, corridors, activity centers, employment centers, research 
and development parks, special planning areas, and industrial uses as appropriate place types and area 
types for employment opportunities.

































7100

7080

7070

7040

7
1
0
0

7
0
8
0

7090

7090

7080

7050

7070

7
0
7
0

7060

7060

7050

7060

7
1
3
0

71
00

71007
1
2
0

7
1
2
0

7
1
1
0

71
10

7
1
1
0

7110

7110

7110

7090

7090

7100

7100

7100

7
0
9
0

7080

D

COTTAGE
4 BR

COTTAGE

E
5 BR

D

COTTAGE
4 BR

COTTAGE

E
5 BR

D

COTTAGE
4 BR

C
O

TTAG
EE

5 BR

D

C
O

TTAG
E

4 BR

D

COTTAGE
4 BR

D

C
O

TTAG
E

4 BR

D

CO
TTAG

E
4 BR

COTTAGE

E
5 BR

A
2 BR DUPLEX COTTAGE

E
5 BR

D
COTTAGE

4 BR

B
3 BR DUPLEX

D
C
O

TTA
G

E

4 B
R

C
O

TTAG
EE

5 BR

A
2 BR DUPLEX

D

COTTAGE4 BR

COTTAGE

E
5 BR

A
2 BR DUPLEX

COTTAGE4 BR

COTTAGE

E
5 BR

A
2 BR DUPLEX

D
COTTAGE

4 BR

COTTAGE

E
5 BR

D
C
O
TTA

G
E

4 B
R

CO
TTAG

E

E
5 BR

B

3 BR DUPLEX

A

2 BR DUPLEX

D
COTTAGE

4 BR

COTTAGE

E
5 BR

D
COTTAGE

4 BR

COTTAGE

E
5 BR

A
2 BR DUPLEX

D

COTTAGE
4 BR

COTTAGE

E
5 BR

B
3 BR DUPLEX

DC
O

T
T

A
G

E
4
 B

R
C

O
T

T
A

G
E

E5
 B

R

A
2
 B

R
 D

U
P

L
E

X

D

CO
TTAG

E
4 BR

DC
O

T
T

A
G

E
4
 B

R

CO
TTAG

E

E
5 BR

D

CO
TTAG

E
4 BR

A2 BR DUPLEX

D

COTTAGE4 BR

D

COTTAGE

4 BR

COTTAGE

E
5 BR

COTTAGE

E
5 BR

COTTAGE

E
5 BR

B3 BR D
U
PLEX

A
2 BR DUPLEX

COTTAGE

E
5 BR

B
3 BR DUPLEX

D
COTTAGE4 BR

B
3 BR DUPLEX

A2 B
R D

UPLEX

B

3 BR DUPLEX

A
2 BR DUPLEX

D
COTTAGE

4 BR

COTTAGE

E
5 BR

B
3 BR DUPLEX

COTTAGE

E
5 BR

COTTAGE

E
5 BR

D
COTTAGE4 BR

D
COTTAGE

4 BR

COTTAGE

E
5 BR

A
2 BR DUPLEX

COTTAGE

E
5 BR

B
3 BR DUPLEX

D
COTTAGE

4 BR

COTTAGE

E
5 BR

D

COTTAGE
4 BR

D

COTTAGE
4 BR COTTAGE

E
5 BR

B
3 BR DUPLEX

D

COTTAGE
4 BR

A
2 BR DUPLEX

A
2 BR DUPLEX

A
2 BR DUPLEX

D

C
O

TTAG
E

4 BR

C
O

TTAG
EE

5 BR

B3 BR
 D

U
PLEX

D

C
O

TTAG
E

4 BR

C
O

T
T
A
G

E

E
5 

B
R

D

C
O

T
T
A
G

E
4 

B
R

C
O

T
T
A
G

E

E
5 

B
R

A
2 

B
R

 D
U

P
LE

X

B
3 

B
R

 D
U

P
LE

X

D

C
O

T
T
A
G

E
4 

B
R

D

C
O

T
T
A
G

E
4 

B
R

A
2 

B
R

 D
U

P
LE

X

C
O

T
T

A
G

E

E5
 B

R

D

C
O

T
T

A
G

E
4
 B

R

C
O

T
T

A
G

E

E5
 B

R

A
2
 B

R
 D

U
P

L
E

X

B
3
 B

R
 D

U
P

L
E

X

D

C
O

T
T

A
G

E
4
 B

R

D

C
O

T
T

A
G

E
4
 B

R

C
O

T
T

A
G

E

E5
 B

R

A
2
 B

R
 D

U
P

L
E

X

B
3
 B

R
 D

U
P

L
E

X

D

C
O

T
T

A
G

E
4
 B

R

A
2 BR DUPLEX

C
O

T
T

A
G

E

E 5
 B

R
D

C
O

T
T

A
G

E

4
 B

R

C
O

T
T

A
G

E

E 5
 B

R

A
2
 B

R
 D

U
P

L
E

X

B
3
 B

R
 D

U
P

L
E

X

D
C
O

TT
A
G

E

4 
B
R

C
O

TT
A
G

EE
5 

B
R

D
C
O

TT
A
G

E

4 
B
R C

O
TT

A
G

E

E
5 

B
R

D

C
O

TT
A
G

E
4 

B
R

C
O

TT
A
G

E

E
5 

B
R

A
2 

B
R
 D

U
P
LE

X

B
3 

B
R
 D

U
P
LE

X

D

C
O

TT
A
G

E
4 

B
R

C
O

TT
A
G

EE
5 

B
R

A2 
B
R
 D

U
P
LE

X

CO
TTAG

E

E
5 BR

D

CO
TTAG

E
4 BR

CO
TTAG

E

E
5 BR

A2 BR DUPLEX

B3 BR DUPLEX

D

CO
TTAG

E
4 BR

CO
TTAG

E

E
5 BR C

O
TT

A
G

EE
5 

B
R

A2 
B
R
 D

U
P
LE

X

D

C
O

TT
A
G

E
4 

B
R

D
C

O
T

T
A

G
E

4
 B

R

C
O

T
T

A
G

E

E 5
 B

R
B

3
 B

R
 D

U
P

L
E

X

B
3
 B

R
 D

U
P

L
E

X

DC
O

T
T

A
G

E
4
 B

R

B3 BR
 D

U
PLEX

D

C
O

TTAG
E

4 BR

C
O

TTAG
EE

5 BR

B

3 BR DUPLEX

D
CO

TTAG
E

4 BR

CO
TTAG

E

E
5 BR

B
3
 B

R
 D

U
P

L
E

X

D
COTTAGE

4 BR

D
C
O

TT
A
G

E

4 
B
R

D

C
O

TT
A
G

E
4 

B
R

D

COTTAGE

4 BR

D

COTTAGE
4 BR

D

COTTAGE

4 BR

B3 BR DUPLEX

D
COTTAGE

4 BR

CO
TTAG

E

E
5 BR

PAR
C
EL BO

U
N
D
AR

Y

P
A
R

C
E
L 

B
O

U
N

D
A
R

Y

PARCEL BO
UNDARY

PARCEL BOUNDARY

PARCEL BOUNDARY

P
A

R
C

E
L
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

7
8
2
.9

5
'

S
8
5
¡1

6
'4

9
"E

781.43'

S00¡20'18"E

210.99'

S00¡20'18"E

L=50 8 .0 5 'R=7 16 . 20

261.46'

N
40¡18'19"E

50.01'

S50¡13'40"E

L=
10

8
. 64

'

R
=5

6
79

. 5 8

350.46'

N
39¡45'36"E

L
=

1
0

3
.5

0
'

R
=

9
3

. 0
0

70
8
.8

4'
S
54

¡5
5'

2
9"

E

785.53'

S
43¡42'33"W

1107.36'

S00¡42'05"W

D

Conceptual  Landscape Plan
Scale: 1"= 100 ft

1

L1.0

Building  Foundations - 

A - 2BR Duplex - 25@ 164'

ZONING CODE LANDSCAPE 

REQUIREMENTS

AREA

Street Bufferyard - 

Woody Mtn Road

Parking 

LENGTH

OR QTY.

2300 lf

TOTAL 

Trees

Required

1/25 lf =

92 Trees Req'd

92 Provided

TOTALS - Required/Provided

700

spaces

TOTAL 

Shrubs

Required

2/Tree =

184 Shrubs Req'd

184 Provided

TOTAL 

Groundcover

Required

2/Tree =

184 GCs Req'd

184 Provided

Street Bufferyard -

Route 66 

1208 Trees Req'd

1208 Trees Provided

2416 Shrubs Req'd

2416 Shrubs Provided
2416 GCs Req'd

2416 GCs Provided

Zone: HC (Highway Commercial)

2/8 spaces =

175 Trees Req'd

175 Provided

2/Tree =

350 Shrubs Req'd

350 Provided

2/Tree =

350 GCs Req'd

350 Provided

Parking Lot Screening (for

spaces adjacent to street)

4100 lf

1/25 lf = ( 7/Unit)

175 Trees Req'd

175 Provided

2/Tree = (14/Unit)

350 Shrubs Req'd

350 Provided

2/Tree = (14/Unit)

350 GCs Req'd

350 Provided

775 lf

1/25 lf =

31 Trees Req'd

31 Provided

2/Tree =

62 Shrubs Req'd

62 Provided

2/Tree =

62 GCs Req'd

62 Provided

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

Building  Foundations - 

B - 2BR Duplex - 23@ 172'
3950 lf

2/Tree = (14/Unit)

322 Shrubs Req'd

322 Provided

2/Tree = (14/Unit)

322 GCs Req'd

322 Provided

1/25 lf = ( 7/Unit)

161 Trees Req'd

161 Provided

Building  Foundations - 

D - 4BR Cottage - 58@ 136' 7888 lf

2/Tree = (14/Unit)

580 Shrubs Req'd

580 Provided

2/Tree = (14/Unit)

580 GCs Req'd

580 Provided

1/25 lf = ( 5/Unit)

290 Trees Req'd

290 Provided

Building  Foundations - 

E - 5BR Cottage - 45@ 150'
6750 lf

2/Tree = (14/Unit)

540 Shrubs Req'd

540 Provided

2/Tree = (14/Unit)

540 GCs Req'd

540 Provided

1/25 lf = ( 6/Unit)

270 Trees Req'd

270 Provided

Building  Foundations - 

Clubhouse 350 lf

2/Tree = (14/Unit)

28 Shrubs Req'd

28 Provided

2/Tree = (14/Unit)

28 GCs Req'd

28 Provided

1/25 lf = 

14 Trees Req'd

14 Provided

Street Tree

Street Tree

Street Tree

Street Tree

Street Tree

Street Tree

Native Conifer

Native Conifer

Native Conifer

Native Conifer

Native Conifer

Street Tree

Native Tree

Native Pine

 Native Multi Tree

Native Tree

 Native Multi Tree

Native Pine

Native Tree

Native Tree
Native Pine

 Native Multi Tree
Native Tree

Native Tree

Native Pine

Native Tree

 Native Multi Tree
W

O
O

D
Y M

O
U
N
TAIN

 R
O

AD

Native Pine

Large Native Tree
Native Pine

SPORTS
COURT

CLUBHOUSE

R
O

U
T

E
 6

6

SPORTS
COURT

Flowering Tree

Flowering Tree

Native Grasses & Wildflowers Seeded Area

Natural Tone Decorative Gravel or

Bark Mulch Topdressing

NOTE: NATIVE PONDEROSA PINES MAY BE UTILIZED FOR LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS

                AS A TREE RESOURCE PLAN BECOMES AVAILABLE.

STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT

Native Grasses

 Native Multi Tree

Native

Grasses

& Wildflowers

Native

Grasses

& Wildflowers

Native

Grasses

& Wildflowers

Native Grasses

ASPEN HEIGHTS

STUDENT HOUSING
 2701 S. WOODY MOUNTAIN ROAD, FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA

CONCEPTUAL  LANDSCAPE

PLAN L1.0

02/12/2013

Revisions

NOT

FOR

CONSTRUCTION

SCALE:

1"=100'-0"

DATE:

SHEET:

PROJECT NAME:

SHEET NAME:



 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-31 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FLAGSTAFF ZONING MAP DESIGNATION OF 
APPROXIMATELY 36.94 ACRES OF REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED 
AT THE INTERSECTION OF ROUTE 66 AND WOODY MOUNTAIN ROAD, FROM 
RURAL RESIDENTIAL (“RR”) TO HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL (“HC”) FOR 3.6 
ACRES,  AND TO MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (“MR”) FOR 33.33 ACRES. 

 
RECITALS: 
 
WHEREAS, the Applicant, York Breckenridge GP, LLC for Aspen Heights Mixed-Use 
Development has applied for a Zoning Map amendment of approximately 36.94 acres of real 
property located within the City of Flagstaff, a legal description of which is designated as 
Exhibits “A” and “B,” attached hereto and incorporated by this reference, from “RR” Rural 
Residential to “HC,” Highway Commercial, for 3.6 acres and “MR,” Medium-Density Residential, 
for 33.33 acres, for purposes of developing a mixed-use student-housing project with cottage-
style living and commercial development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council finds that the applicant has complied with all application requirements 
set forth in Chapter 10-20 of the Flagstaff Zoning Code; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has formally considered the proposed Zoning 
Map amendment application, following proper notice and hearings, on September 24, 2014,  
and with the result that the Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended approval of the 
requested Zoning Map amendment application, subject to the following conditions: 
  

1. The subject property shall be developed in substantial conformance to the Concept Plan 
submitted by the Applicant, consistent with the uses including the density and intensity and 
general layout approved by the Inter-Division Staff (IDS) on August 25, 2014 and as 
presented to the Planning and Zoning Commission with this amendment request except as 
modified herein. 
 

2. Development of the MR zone shall be limited to the number of units (224) and beds (714) 
identified in the Zone Change Plan and used for the preparation of all impact analysis.   
 

3. Development of the HC zone shall include 20,000 square feet of general service/retail/office 
or mixed-use development.   
 

4. Per the acceptance of the Traffic Impact Analysis prepared for this project, both vehicular 
and non-vehicular access shall be provided between the proposed student-housing project 
and the proposed commercial development as well as pedestrian/bicycle connections to 
the future development of the vacant land to the west. 
 

5. The Applicant shall enter into a Development Agreement with the City to, address at a 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-31   PAGE 2 
 
 

minimum the proportional-share contribution of the signalized intersection of Route 66 and 
Woody Mountain Road, off-site sewer improvement requirements, on-site water/sewer 
modifications, roadway/edge improvements and a management-operation plan. 
 

6. At the time of site plan submittal, the Applicant shall provide a minimum of fifteen percent 
(15%) of the lot area as open space and a minimum of five percent (5%) of the lot area as 
civic space.   
 

7. Outdoor lighting shall be extinguished at the close of business except for security lighting 
no further than 50 feet from the entrance to any building. 
 

8. If the residential development is operated as a rooming and boarding facility, a conditional- 
use permit shall be reviewed and approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

 
9. Site plan review and approval by staff for the residential and commercial developments is 

required to assure that  all conditions, requirements and terms that are included in the 
Zoning Map Amendment Ordinance and Development Agreement are accomplished. 
 

10. The Applicant will work with the dark skies community to minimize the impact on the 
observatories and to come up with conditions for the Development Agreement to 
achieve those results.   

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has read and considered the staff reports prepared by Current 
Planning Division staff and has considered the narrative prepared by the Applicant, and any and 
all statements made by the Applicant and its representatives or agents at City Council meetings; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, staff recommends approval of the Zoning Map amendment application, subject to 
the conditions proposed above, and the Council has considered the conditions and has found 
them to be appropriate for the site; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Council finds that the proposed Zoning Map amendment with the above 
conditions will not be detrimental to the uses of adjoining parcels or to other uses within the 
vicinity; 
 
ENACTMENTS: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  The foregoing recitals are incorporated as if fully set forth herein.  
 
SECTION 2.  The zoning map designation for 33.33 acres of the subject property is amended 
to “MR” Multi-Family Residential” and the zoning map designation for 3.6 acres of the subject 
property is amended to “HC” Highway Commercial. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-31   PAGE 3 
 
 
SECTION 3. That City staff is hereby authorized to take such other and further measures and 
actions as are necessary and appropriate to carry out the terms, provisions and intents of this 
Ordinance.  
 
SECTION .  This Ordinance shall be effective thirty (30) days after the effective date of 
Ordinance No. 2014-30. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council and approved by the Mayor of the City of 
Flagstaff this    day of      , 2014. 
 
 
 
               
        MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
  
CITY ATTORNEY 













When recorded, mail to: 
 
City Clerk 
City of Flagstaff 
211 West Aspen Avenue 
Flagstaff, Arizona 86001 
 
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________  
 
 

ASPEN HEIGHTS MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT 
 

ANNEXATION AND  
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

BY 
 

AND BETWEEN 
 

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF 
 

AND 
 

YORK BRECKENRIDGE GP, LLC 
 
 

________________________________________ 
 
  



2 of 14 
 

ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 
 THIS ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made 
as of this 4th day of November, 2014, between the City of Flagstaff, a municipal corporation 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Arizona (“City”) and York Breckenridge 
GP, LLC, a Texas limited liability company authorized to do business in the State of Arizona 
(“Developer”).  City and Developer may be referred to in this Agreement as “Party” in the 
singular, and collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. The Developer has entered into a purchase and sale agreement to acquire 
approximately 36.94 acres of real property situated within Coconino County, Arizona, currently 
located partially within the incorporated boundaries of the City of Flagstaff, and partially outside 
the incorporated boundaries of the City, as depicted and legally described in Exhibit A, 
(“Property”), attached to and incorporated into this Agreement. 

 
B. The zoning of the approximately 33.26 acre portion of the Property within the 

City’s boundaries is RR, Rural Residential Zone; and, for the approximately 3.14 acre portion 
outside the City’s boundaries, the zoning is General (G) Zone (“Annexation Parcel”). Upon 
annexation, the Annexation Parcel will be designated RR, Rural Residential Zone, the zoning 
classification most compatible with the current County zoning for this parcel.   

 
C. The Developer desires to rezone an approximately 33.33 acre portion of the 

Property within the City’s boundaries to MR, Medium Density Residential Zone, and an 
approximately .53 acre portion of the Property within the City’s boundaries to HC, Highway 
Commercial Zone.  The Developer also desires to rezone the Annexation Parcel from RR, Rural 
Residential, to HC, Highway Commercial Zone, as further set forth in this Agreement. 

 
D. The City and the Developer are entering into this Agreement pursuant to the 

provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes (“A.R.S”) § 9-471 (pertaining to annexation) and A.R.S. 
§ 9-500.05 (pertaining to development agreements) in order to facilitate the annexation, proper 
municipal zoning designation, and development of the Property by providing for, among other 
things: (1) conditions, terms, restrictions, and requirements for annexation of the Annexation 
Parcel into the City; (2) the type of land uses and the location, density and intensity of such uses; 
and (3) other matters related to development of the Property as depicted in the Aspen Heights 
Concept Plan. 

 
E. The City has an interest in ensuring that the development of the Property complies 

with City standards for development and engineering improvements, and believes that 
annexation of the Annexation Parcel and development of the Property pursuant to this 
Agreement will result in planning, safety and other benefits to the City and its residents. 

 
F. The Developer acknowledges that annexation of the Annexation Parcel pursuant 

to this Agreement will be beneficial and advantageous to the Developer by providing assurances 



3 of 14 
 

to the Developer that it will have the ability to develop the Property within the City pursuant to 
this Agreement under the zoning described in Recital C, above, and in accordance with the 
Aspen Heights Concept Plan. 

 
G. The Developer has previously submitted to the City an Annexation Application 

for the Annexation Parcel (“Annexation”), and the City has filed a blank annexation petition 
(“Annexation Petition”) with the Coconino County Recorder for the Annexation Parcel.  The 
City has held public hearings and meetings in connection with the Annexation pursuant to A.R.S. 
§ 9-471(A); the City has received the completed Annexation Petition bearing the signatures of 
those property owners desiring annexation of their properties; and the City has conducted a first 
reading of Ordinance No. 2014-30 (“Annexation Ordinance”). 

 
H. Developer has also previously submitted to the City an application for a rezoning 

of the Property to the zoning designations set forth in Recital C, above (“Zoning Amendment”), 
and, concurrent with the Annexation Ordinance, the City is processing that application as an 
ordinance amending the City of Flagstaff’s Zoning Map, Ordinance No. 2014-31 (“Zoning 
Ordinance”).  The City has held a public hearing and received public comment on the 
Developer’s rezoning application, and has conducted a first reading of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises and 

covenants contained in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 
 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

1. Incorporation of Documents and Recitals.  All documents and exhibits referred to in this 
Agreement and the Recitals stated above are hereby incorporated by reference into this 
Agreement. 
 
2. General Plan Conformance.  The Parties expressly acknowledge and agree that the 
annexation and development contemplated pursuant to this Agreement is consistent with those 
portions of the 2001 Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan (“Regional 
Plan”) in effect on the date Developer’s application was filed, and that there are no features of 
the development as described in the Concept Plan defined in Section 6 herein, including, without 
limitation, the intensity of development and range of land uses proposed herein, that cannot be 
accommodated within the scope of the Regional Plan.  
 
3. Effective Date and Term.   
 
3.1 This Agreement shall not become effective, and neither party shall have any obligation 

under this Agreement, unless each of the following occurs: 

3.1.1 This Agreement is executed by both parties;  

3.1.2 The City adopts the Annexation Ordinance following a second reading;  



4 of 14 
 

3.1.3 The City adopts the Zoning Ordinance following a second reading;  

3.1.4 This Agreement is recorded in accordance with Section 15.9, as required by 
A.R.S. § 9-500.05(D);  

3.1.5 The Annexation Ordinance has become final following expiration of the thirty-
day time period in which it may be challenged pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-471(C) or 
referred to the qualified electors of the City, or if such statutory challenge is 
properly made or such a referendum is certified for the ballot, then after resolution 
of such challenge in favor of the City or after the election upholding the 
Annexation Ordinance;  

3.1.6 The Zoning Ordinance has become final following expiration of the time period in 
which it may be challenged or referred to the qualified electors of the City, or if 
such statutory challenge is properly made or such a referendum is certified for the 
ballot, then after resolution of such challenge in favor of the City or after the 
election upholding the Zoning Ordinance. 

3.2 In the event the finality of the Annexation Ordinance under A.R.S. § 9-471(D) or the 
Zoning Ordinance is delayed by judicial challenge, a referendum, or an injunction 
following their respective second readings and approvals by the City Council, the 
Developer, at its option, may terminate this Agreement at any time during the ensuing 
sixty (60) days by serving written notice upon the City in accordance with this 
Agreement.  Should the Developer elect to terminate this Agreement as provided herein, 
this Agreement shall be of no further force or effect, and neither party shall have any 
further obligations under this Agreement.  In such event, the City agrees that it shall take 
all appropriate action necessary to rescind and repeal the Annexation Ordinance and the 
Zoning Ordinance.  However, nothing in this Section 3.2 is intended to limit the absolute 
discretion of the City in reviewing, adopting, or declining to adopt the Annexation 
Ordinance and the Zoning Ordinance. 

 
3.3 Any delay relative to the Effective Date of this Agreement by judicial challenge, 

referendum, or injunction filed by parties acting independently of and not under the 
control of the City shall not be deemed a default by the City.  

 
3.4 This Agreement shall automatically terminate on the tenth (10th) anniversary of the 

Effective Date, unless this Agreement is rescinded or terminated earlier as provided for in 
this Agreement. 

 
4. Annexation.  The City’s Planning and Zoning Commission and Council have previously 
held public meetings on the Annexation under A.R.S. § 9-471(A), and the City Council has 
received from the Developer and filed with the Coconino County Recorder the completed 
Annexation Petition duly executed by all necessary owners of the Annexation Parcel and has 
approved first readings of the Annexation Ordinance and the Zoning Ordinance.  The City, 
concurrently with its approval of this Agreement, has duly considered and approved the second 
readings of the Annexation Ordinance and the Zoning Ordinance, pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-471(D). 
The City acknowledges and agrees that the Developer has executed and delivered this 



5 of 14 
 

Agreement and the Annexation Petition to the City contingent on the City’s adoption of the 
Annexation Ordinance and the Zoning Ordinance.  Nothing in this Section 4 is intended to limit 
the absolute discretion of the City in reviewing, adopting, or declining to adopt the Annexation 
Ordinance and the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
5. Zoning Upon Annexation.  The current Coconino County zoning for the Annexation 
Parcel is General (G) Zone.  The City has previously held public meetings on the Zoning 
Amendment and has fully complied with all those requirements of the Arizona Revised Statues 
and the Flagstaff Zoning Code necessary to adopt municipal zoning for the Annexation Parcel, 
upon annexation, as provided in the Annexation Ordinance and the Zoning Ordinance.  The 
Parties acknowledge that A.R.S. § 9-471(L) requires that the City initially adopt zoning 
classifications which permit densities and land uses no greater than the previously existing 
county zoning for such lands, and the City has determined that the zoning designation under the 
Zoning Code most comparable to the General (G) Zone designation is RR, Rural Residential.  
After the Annexation Ordinance has become final under A.R.S. § 9-471(D), the Annexation 
Parcel shall be designated RR, Rural Residential and then to HC, Highway Commercial Zone, as 
further set forth in this Agreement. 
 
6. Concept Plan.  The Parties hereby acknowledge that the City accepted the Concept Plan 
for the Project on August 26, 2014, attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this 
reference (the “Concept Plan”).  The Concept Plan sets forth the basic land uses, intensity and 
density of such uses, relative height, bulk and size of buildings and structures proposed by 
Developer and approved by the City for development within the Property.  Notwithstanding 
anything contained in the foregoing, however, the City acknowledges that, while the Developer 
intends to develop the Project in general conformance with the Concept Plan, in order to make 
the Project economically viable and otherwise feasible, as the Project progresses through formal 
site plan review, Developer may request modifications to the Concept Plan and shall incorporate 
modifications as set forth in this Agreement.  The City shall process all submittals made by 
Developer in conformance with Section 13.1, below, and nothing contained in this Agreement 
shall preclude the City from the exercise of its normal review process and requirements in 
connection with its approval of such submittals.  
 
7. Development Standards.  Development of the Property shall be governed by the City’s 
codes, ordinances, regulations, rules, guidelines and policies controlling permitted uses of the 
Property, design review guidelines, the density and intensity of uses, the maximum height and 
size of the buildings within the Property, as well as the standards for off-site and on-site public 
improvements in existence as of the Effective Date of this Agreement; provided, however, that 
Developer obtain grading permits for the Project within two (2) years following the Effective 
Date of this Agreement.  If Developer fails to obtain any grading permits within this two (2) year 
period, then development of the Project shall be subject to the City’s codes, ordinances, 
regulations, rules, guidelines and policies in effect at the time Developer applies for such 
construction permits.  Further, if Developer fails to obtain a grading construction permit within 
this two (2) year period, the City, at it its sole judgment and discretion, may require the 
Developer to submit a new Traffic Impact Analysis and a new Sewer Impact Analysis for the 
Project and to amend Sections 10.2 and 10.6 this Agreement to reflect new requirements arising 
from those analyses for public and other related improvements.   Notwithstanding the above, the 



6 of 14 
 

Parties expressly acknowledge and agree that the City reserves the right to adopt future 
ordinances assessing or imposing development fees under the authority of A.R.S. § 9-463.05, 
which shall be applicable to development of the Property.  Developer agrees and understands 
that upon the Effective Date of this Agreement all building permits and other fees normally 
applicable to construction within the City shall apply to the Project. 
 
8. Guiding Principles.  The Parties acknowledge that development activities for the Property 
may extend over several years and that many of the requirements and procedures provided for in 
this Agreement contemplate that use of the Property in the future may be subject to procedures, 
requirements, regulations and ordinances not presently in effect, as well as actions and decisions 
by City staff and officials which cannot be provided for with particularity at the time the 
Agreement was executed.  With respect to such, the parties agree that they will act in good faith 
and with reasonableness in implementing, operating under, and exercising the rights, powers, 
privileges and benefits conferred or reserved by this Agreement or by law.  However, denying a 
permit for the Developer’s failure to meet the City’s criteria for such permit shall not be deemed 
a breach by the City of this Agreement. 
 
9. Project Description.  The Project as contemplated by this Agreement, and as illustrated in 
the Concept Plan, shall consist of:  (i) two hundred twenty-four (224) cottage units with seven 
hundred fourteen (714) rooms on approximately 33.33 acres of the Property (“Residential 
Development”); and (ii) a commercial retail complex consisting of approximately twenty 
thousand (20,000) square feet of commercial/retail, general service and/or mixed-use 
development, as well as site improvements, including access, parking, circulation and 
landscaping, on 3.67 acres of the Property (“Commercial Development”).  The Residential 
Development and Commercial Development collectively constitute the “Project.”  Pursuant to 
the relevant provisions of the Flagstaff Zoning Code, the Residential Development qualifies as a 
“Rooming and Boarding Facility” use.  Pursuant to Division 10-40.30.030, Residential Zones, of 
the Flagstaff City Code, the Developer acknowledges that a conditional use permit is necessary, 
and must be obtained, for the establishment of a “Rooming and Boarding Facility” use within the 
proposed MR, Medium Density Residential Zone.  
 
10. Construction of Public and Other Related Improvements.  Prior to the issuance of a 
grading permit for the Project, Developer shall provide security, in a form satisfactory to the City 
as set forth in the City’s Zoning Code, that public and other related improvements will be 
constructed in accordance with approved plans.  Developer shall, at its sole expense, construct or 
cause to be constructed all public and other related improvements as required by the City’s 
codes, ordinances and this Agreement, and in accordance with approved specifications, as well 
as those public and related improvements required by the Arizona Department of Transportation 
(“ADOT”) as a condition of approval.  Following the construction of the described public 
improvements, dedication of same to the City, and acceptance by the City of the improvements, 
unless otherwise provided, the City shall assume, at its expense, the maintenance and repairs of 
all public improvements in accordance with City policies.  Specifically, the scope and nature of 
the on-site and off-site improvements to be constructed in connection with the Project are as 
follows: 
 
10.1. On-Site Water and Sewer Modifications.  Developer agrees to provide a looped water and 



7 of 14 
 

sewer system for the Project consisting of eight (8) inch diameter water and sewer lines.  
Developer agrees to provide waterline “stub-outs” for future connectivity to those parcels 
adjoining the Property to the west.  All required improvements must be completed and 
accepted by the City prior to the issuance of any certificates of occupancy for the Project.  
All on-site water and sewer infrastructure shall be designed and built in accordance with 
the City of Flagstaff Engineering Standards and Arizona Department of Environmental 
Quality requirements.  

 
10.2 Off-Site Sewer Modifications and Reimbursement.  
 

10.2.1  Developer is responsible for all off-site sewer improvements as outlined in the 
accepted Water and Sewer Impact Analysis, dated December 20, 2013 (“WSIA”). 
Developer agrees to “oversize” approximately five thousand five hundred (5,500) 
feet of existing sewer line, from manhole 2A-446 to manhole 2A-203, from ten 
(10) inch diameter to eighteen (18), twenty-one (21) and twenty-four (24) inch 
diameter pipe, as set forth in the WSIA.  

 
10.2.2 The Parties acknowledge that, pursuant to Section 10.2.1, above, the Developer is 

required to install off-site improvements to the City’s sewer collector system in a 
size and/or capacity greater than that which is required to serve only the residents 
of the Project.  Pursuant to the City’s Engineering Standards, the Developer 
agrees to “oversize” these off-site improvements in order to accommodate not 
only the needs of the Project, but also the projected required capacity for those 
properties within the Project’s drainage basin at “full build-out.”  Pursuant to 
Flagstaff City Code Chapter 7-08, Extension and Reimbursement Agreements for 
the Construction of Water and Sewer Lines, the Developer may enter into a 
reimbursement agreement with the City  for such oversizing from other benefited 
properties.  
 

10.3 Presidio Drive South Extension.  Developer shall construct an extension of the Presidio 
Drive South roadway from the intersection of Presidio Drive South and South Woody 
Mountain Road (“Presidio Drive South Extension”).  The Presidio Drive South Extension 
shall be constructed in accordance with City design, engineering and construction 
standards and shall terminate in a cul-de-sac, as generally depicted on the Concept Plan. 

 
10.4 Roadway Lighting.  Roadway lighting on the Presidio Drive South Extension and that 

portion of South Woody Mountain Road abutting the Property shall be designed, 
constructed and placed in accordance with City street light standards.  Roadway lighting 
on that portion of Route 66 abutting the Property shall be designed, constructed and 
placed in accordance with ADOT standards. 

 
10.5 Flagstaff Urban Trail System.  As a condition of developing the Property, and to facilitate 

the expansion of the Flagstaff Urban Trail System (“FUTS”), the Developer agrees to 
construct, at no cost to the City, a meandering ten (10) foot wide FUTS trail along that 
portion of the Property abutting Woody Mountain Road (“FUTS Trail”). The eastern 
edge of the FUTS trail shall be, at all points, at a five (5) feet offset from the back curb 



8 of 14 
 

line located along the western edge of Woody Mountain Road. The Parties acknowledge 
that the FUTS trail may encroach onto adjacent private property. Prior to the issuance of 
any certificates of occupancy for the Project, Developer shall, at no cost to the City, 
dedicate a non-motorized pedestrian easement for the FUTS Trail, including those 
portions, if any, on adjacent private property, to the City.  

 
10.6 West Route 66 and Woody Mountain Road Intersection.  In addition to those obligations 

set forth in Section 10, above, Developer agrees to contribute one hundred two thousand 
eight hundred five ($102,805.00) dollars towards a future signalized intersection at West 
Route 66 and Woody Mountain Road (“Woody Mountain Road Intersection”).  Such sum 
constitutes the Developer’s pro-rata “fair share” contribution towards mitigating the 
Project’s traffic impact on the Woody Mountain Intersection, in accordance with the 
City’s Transportation Engineering Memorandum dated August 22, 2014 
(“Contribution”).  In addition, Developer agrees to dedicate, at no cost to the City, right-
of-way across the Property necessary for the Woody Mountain Road Intersection 
(“Dedication”).  Following the Contribution and Dedication, Developer shall have no 
further obligation or liability with respect to the Woody Mountain Road Intersection.  
The Contribution shall be paid in full to the City prior to the issuance of public 
improvement permits for the Project.  

 
 
10.7 Dedication of Public Rights-of-Way and Easements.  Public rights-of-way for all streets 

and utility and drainage easements with respect to the Project must be identified on the 
construction plans and dedicated prior to issuance of any grading permits.  Dimensions 
for these easements must be in accordance with City and, where applicable, ADOT 
requirements. 

 
11. Management.   
 

11.1 Management Agent. Developer agrees that an experienced property management 
staff shall at all times manage the Residential Development during the term of this 
Agreement (“Management Agent”).  Developer, or an affiliated entity, shall serve 
as the Management Agent for the Residential Development upon recordation of 
this Agreement.  The Management Agent shall cause the Residential 
Development to at all times be operated in a manner that will provide secure, safe 
and sanitary living conditions for its tenants, as required by this Agreement, and 
any applicable laws, ordinances, regulations or other requirements imposed by 
law.  Further, the Management Agent shall ensure that the tenants of the 
Residential Development use the Property in a manner that conforms to the 
character of the surrounding neighborhoods.  The Management Agent shall live 
on-site or, in the alternative, the Management Agent shall provide for an on-site 
staff member on a twenty-four hour, seven days a week (24/7) basis.  

 
11.2  Crime Free Multi-Housing. In order to achieve the objectives of Section 11.1, 

above, the Developer, or the Management Agent, shall draft operating rules, 
policies and regulations for the Residential Development (“Operating Rules”), 



9 of 14 
 

and include covenants in tenant leases that require the lawful and proper use of 
the Residential Development and the Property (“Lease Covenants”), substantially 
in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C, at all times. The Management Agent 
shall be responsible for enforcing such Operating Rules and Lease Covenants.  
The Management Agent and any relevant employees of such Agent, shall, during 
the term of this Agreement, attend, complete, and remain current on any training 
required by the Flagstaff Police Department in connection with their Crime Free 
Multi-Housing Program. Management practices, tenant qualifications, Crime 
Prevention Through Environmental Design Standards (“CPTED”), and 
background checks shall conform, as closely as possible, to the principles set forth 
in the City of Flagstaff Police Department’s “Crime Free Multi-Family Housing 
Program.”  Developer agrees that it will ensure that its Management Agent, or 
relevant employees of such Agent, receives training through the Flagstaff Police 
Department in the Crime Free Multi-Housing Program. 

 
11.3 On-Site Security. In order to ensure the lawful use of the Residential 

Development during those times of increased resident activity, from 6:00 p.m. 
every Thursday through to 6:00 a.m. the following Sunday, Developer agrees to 
provide a sufficient number of security guards to maintain order and to ensure 
compliance with all applicable state and City laws. For purposes of this Section, 
“security guard” shall mean licensed and duly bonded security personnel 
registered pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Section 32-2601, et seq. In 
addition, the Management Agent shall consult with the Flagstaff Police 
Department on a monthly basis for recommendations regarding security personnel 
levels, as well as any additional security measures that may be required for the 
protection and well-being of residents and the surrounding neighborhood. 

 
12. Public Transportation System Service.  Developer is in negotiations with the Northern 
Arizona Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority (“NAIPTA”) regarding the 
extension of service to the Project in order to facilitate and incentivize the use of public 
transportation by residents of the project, and other presently underserved areas identified by 
NAIPTA, to access the campus at Northern Arizona University (“NAU”), based upon a financial 
commitment from the Developer yet to be determined and structured.  Because this issue 
requires action of a public body with regard to service levels, cost, and other matters, and 
negotiations with the Developer, both NAIPTA and the Developer anticipate that discussions and 
negotiations will continue over time, with the goal of providing service by the start of classes at 
NAU in August 2016.  Developer agrees that it will continue to negotiate with NAIPTA in good 
faith in order to bring to the Project effective public transportation to NAU for student residents 
of the Project. 
 
13. Exterior Lighting Plan.  Developer shall provide exterior lighting for the Residential 
Development in conformity with the Exterior Lighting Plan, attached as Exhibit D. The Parties 
acknowledge that the Developer has voluntarily limited the Total Outdoor Light Output for the 
Residential Development to a lumen level that does not exceed that currently permitted for 
Single-family Residential development in Lighting Zone One.  
 



10 of 14 
 

14. Development Process. 
 

14.1 Diligence in Responding to Approval Requests.  City hereby acknowledges and 
agrees that development of the Property may occur over a span of a number of 
years and may require City’s ongoing participation in the review and approval of 
modifications and amendments to any construction plans, site plans, infrastructure 
plans, drainage plans, design plans, building plans, grading permits, building 
permits, and other plans, permit applications and inspections which are a part of 
City’s current building and development requirements (hereinafter collectively 
called “Approval Requests”).  City hereby agrees that, in connection with all such 
Approval Requests relating to the planning or development of the Property, or any 
portion thereof, and the construction of improvements on the Property, it shall 
cooperate with Developer in good faith to process, but not necessarily approve, all 
such Approval Requests. 

 
 
15. Default; Remedies. 
 

15.1 Events Constituting Default.  A Party hereunder shall be deemed to be in default 
under this Agreement if such Party materially breaches any obligation required to 
be performed by the respective Party hereunder within any time period required 
for such performance and such breach or default continues for a period of thirty 
(30) days after written notice thereof from the Party not in default hereunder.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Party allegedly in default has commenced a 
cure of the default within the time period stated above, is diligently prosecuting 
such cure, and such cure reasonably requires more than thirty (30) days to 
complete, then the period for curing such default shall be extended to permit the 
completion of the cure.  For purposes of determining default and termination, 
those Developer obligations set forth in Section 10 of this Agreement are 
severable, and each individual Developer obligation shall terminate upon the 
successive completion of the individual Developer Obligation.  

 
15.2 Developer’s Remedies.  In the event that City is in default under this Agreement 

and fails to cure any such default within the time period required therefore as set 
forth in Section 14.1 of this Agreement, then, in that event, in addition to all other 
legal and equitable remedies which Developer may have, Developer may 
terminate this Agreement by written notice delivered to City effective upon the 
date specified on such notice. 

 
15.3 City’s Remedies.  In the event that Developer is in default under this Agreement, 

and Developer thereafter fails to cure any such default within the time period 
described in Section 14.1 of this Agreement then, in that event, in addition to all 
other legal and equitable remedies which City may have, City may terminate this 
Agreement by written notice delivered to Developer effective upon the date 
specified on such notice. 

 



11 of 14 
 

15.4 Development Rights in the Event of Termination.  Upon the termination of this 
Agreement as provided herein, Developer shall have no further rights to develop 
the Property pursuant to this Agreement but shall have all other rights available to 
Developer under any other agreement or applicable law, including but not limited 
to the right to develop the Property consistent with the Zoning  so long as the 
project is developed consistently or less intensively than the accepted Concept 
Plan. 

 
16. General Provisions.  
 

16.1 Notices.  All notices and communications shall be in writing and delivered 
personally or as of the third business day after mailing by United States mail, 
postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, 
addressed as follows: 

 
To City: 
 

To Developer: 

City Manager 
City of Flagstaff 
211 West Aspen Avenue 
Flagstaff, Arizona  86001 

Aspen Heights 
Attn: David Mills 
1301 S. Capital of Texas Highway, Suite 

B201 
Austin, TX  78746 
 
With copy to: 
Richard Stasica, General Counsel 

 
16.2 Waiver.  No delay in exercising any right or remedy shall constitute a waiver 

thereof, and no waiver by the parties of the breach of any provision of this 
Agreement shall be construed as a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach 
of the same or of any other provision of this Agreement. 

 
16.3 Headings.  The descriptive headings of the paragraphs of this Agreement are 

inserted for convenience only, and shall not control or affect the meaning or 
construction of any of the provisions of the Agreement. 

 
16.4 Authority.  The undersigned represent to each other that they have full power and 

authority to enter into this Agreement, and that all necessary actions have been 
taken to give full force and effect to this Agreement.  The Developer represents 
and warrants that it is duly formed and validly existing under the laws of the State 
of Arizona and that it is duly qualified to do business in the State of Arizona and 
is in good standing under applicable state laws.  The Developer and the City 
warrant to each other that the individuals executing this Agreement on behalf of 
their respective parties are authorized and empowered to bind the party on whose 
behalf each individual is signing.  The Developer represents to the City that by 
entering into this Agreement, the Developer has bound the Property and all 
persons and entities having any legal or equitable interest therein to the terms of 



12 of 14 
 

the Agreement. 
 
16.5 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including the following exhibits which are 

incorporated in this Agreement by reference, constitutes the entire agreement 
between the parties and supersedes any prior written or oral understandings or 
agreements between the parties.  This provision applies only to the entirety of this 
Agreement; additional and separate zoning stipulations and agreements with the 
City may apply to the Property, and this provision has no effect on them. 

 
 

Exhibit A: Property Description 
Exhibit B: Concept Plan 
Exhibit C: Lease Covenants 
Exhibit D: Exterior Lighting Plan 

 
16.6 Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended, in whole or in part and with 

respect to all or any portion of the Property, only with the mutual written consent 
of the parties to this Agreement or by their successors in interest or assigns.   

  
16.7 Severability.  If any other provision of the Agreement is declared void or 

unenforceable, such provision shall be severed from this Agreement, which shall 
otherwise remain in full force and effect. 

  
16.8 Governing Law.  The laws of the State of Arizona shall govern the interpretation 

and enforcement of this Agreement.  This Agreement has been made and entered 
into in Coconino County, Arizona.  

 
16.9 Recordation of Agreement and Subsequent Amendment; Cancellation.  The City 

will record this Agreement, and any amendment or cancellation of it, in the 
official records of the Coconino County Recorder no later than ten (10) days after 
the City and the Developer execute the Agreement, amendment, or cancellation, 
as required by A.R.S. § 9-500.05. 

 
16.10 No Partnership; Third-Party.  It is not intended by this Agreement to, and nothing 

contained in this Agreement shall, create any partnership, joint venture or other 
arrangement between Developer and the City.  No term or provision of this 
Agreement is intended to, or shall, be for the benefit of any person, firm, 
organization or corporation not a party hereto, and no such other person, firm, 
organization or corporation shall have any right or cause of action hereunder. 

 
16.11 Conflict of Interest.  Pursuant to Arizona law, rules and regulations, no member, 

official or employee of the City shall have an personal interest, direct or indirect, 
in this Agreement, nor shall any such member, official or employee participate in 
any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal interest 
or the interest of any corporation, partnership or association in which he or she is, 
directly or indirectly, interested.  This Agreement is subject to the cancellation 



13 of 14 
 

provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511. 
 
16.12 Compliance with All Laws.  Developer will comply with all applicable Federal, 

State, and County laws, as well as with all applicable City ordinances, regulations 
and policies. 

 
16.13 Successors and Assigns.  Upon prior written notice to City, Developer may assign 

its interest in this Agreement, in whole or in part, to any entity that controls, is 
controlled by or is under common control with Developer (including but not 
limited to a limited liability company of which the original Developer is a 
member), who undertakes to proceed with development of the Project. Provided 
that the assignee has provided City with the name, address and designated 
representative of the assignee, and has assumed the rights, liabilities and 
obligations of Developer under this Agreement pursuant to a written instrument (a 
true and correct copy of which shall be provided to City), then the assignor shall 
be released from any obligations or liabilities arising under this Agreement from 
and after the date of assignment.  Neither Developer nor any permitted assignee of 
Developer may otherwise assign its interest in this Agreement, in whole or in part, 
without the prior written consent of the City, which consent may be reasonably 
withheld by City.  This Agreement shall be personal to Developer and its 
permitted successors and assigns, and shall not run with the land. 

 
17. WAIVER OF CLAIM FOR DIMINUTION IN VALUE. 
 
Developer hereby waives and fully releases any and all financial loss, injury, claims and causes 
of action that the Developer may have, now or in the future, for any “diminution in value” and 
for any “just compensation” under the Private Property Rights Protection Act, codified in A.R.S 
§§ 12-1131 through 12-1138, (the “Act”) in connection with the application of the City’s 
existing land use laws and including Ordinance Number 2011-01 regarding the Property.  This 
waiver constitutes a complete release of any and all claims and causes of action that may arise or 
may be asserted under the Act with regard to the subject Property.  Developer agrees to 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend City, its officers, employees and agents, from any and all 
claims, causes of actions, demands, losses and expenses, including attorney’s fees and litigation 
costs, that may be asserted by or may result from any of the present or future owners of any 
interest in the Property seeking potential compensation, damages, attorney’s fees or costs under 
the Act that they may have, as a result of the application of the City’s existing land use laws, 
including Ordinance Number 2014-31, upon the Property 
 
 
 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Agreement to be executed in its 
name and on its behalf by its Mayor and its seal to be affixed and attested by its City Clerk, and 
the Developer has signed the same on or as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 



14 of 14 
 

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, 
an Arizona municipal corporation 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Gerald W. Nabours, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
________________________ 
City Attorney 
  



15 of 14 
 

 
DEVELOPER 
York Breckenridge GP, LLC 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
 
By___________________________ 
 
Title__________________________ 
 

 
 
STATE OF _____________ ) 
    ) ss 
County of __________ ) 
 
 
 On this ____ day of _________, 2014, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared 
_________________________, known to be and satisfactorily proven to be the person whose 
name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same on 
behalf of York Breckenridge GP, LLC, for the purposes therein contained. 

 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Notary Public 
 
 
My Commission Expires:_______________ 



  15. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Brian Kulina, Planning Development Manager

Date: 10/29/2014

Meeting Date: 11/03/2014

TITLE: 
Consideration and Approval of Resolution No. 2014-38:  A resolution authorizing the execution of a
First Amended and Restated Development Agreement between Pinnacle DevCo, Ltd., and the City of
Flagstaff related to the development of approximately 18.6 acres of real property generally located at 800
E Sterling Lane.  (Pinnacle Pines)

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1)  Read Resolution No. 2014-38 by title only.
2)  City Clerk reads Resolution No. 2014-38 by title only (if approved above).
3)  Approve Resolution No. 2014-38 

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
State law allows cities to enter into development agreements by resolution.  The proposed First
Amended and Restated Development Agreement governs the terms and conditions of the use and
development of the subject property.

Subsidiary Decisions Points:
This is the first of two related items.  Should this agreement be approved by the City Council, the
associated final plat will be considered for approval.

Financial Impact:
There are no financial liabilities associated with the approval of this agreement.  However, over the
course of the agreements life, approximately $106,000.00 will be contributed by the Developer to the City
of Flagstaff to further affordable housing efforts within the city.

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
Repair Replace maintain infrastructure (streets & utilities)
Retain, expand, and diversify economic base
Effective governance

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
No previous City Council discussion has occurred as it related to this agreement.  Previous City Council
discussion has occurred as it relates to the overall development of the project as outlined in the
background section.
  
   



   

Options and Alternatives:
The City Council may approve, deny, or modify the agreement as necessary to ensure that the
development meets the objectives of the Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030, the Zoning Code, and the city's
development goals and policies. 

Background/History:

In August of 1998, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 1976 that conditionally rezoned the site from
Rural Residential (RR) to Medium Residential (MR) for the development of an affordable residential
townhouse project consisting of 548 units called Zuni Heights. Concurrently, the Growth Management
Guide 2000 land use designation for the site was amended from Medium Density Residential to High
Density Residential in order to support the increase in density. Subsequent to the approval of Growth
Management Guide amendment and rezoning, platting was not pursued and the site was never
developed.

On March 7, 2005, the City Council approved Resolution No. 2005-15 approving a Development
Agreement between the City and developer, Resolution No. 2005-16 that amended the Flagstaff Area
Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan land use designation for the site from High Density
Residential to Medium Density Residential in order to support a reduced density, Ordinance No. 2005-05
that modified the conditions of Ordinance No. 1976 for the development of a single-family residential
townhouse project consisting of 206 units called Pinnacle Pines, and a tentative plat for Unit 1 of the
subdivision.

On October 21, 2014, the City Council approved the Pinnacle Pines Unit 2 Preliminary Plat for the
subdivision of approximately 18.6 acres into 106 single-family residential townhouse lots generally
located at 800 E Sterling Lane.

Key Considerations:

Expanded Financial Considerations:
None

Community Benefits and Considerations:
The community will receive the following benefits: 

A contribution from the Developer in the amount of $106,000.00 to be used solely for the benefit of
affordable housing.
The ability to use existing Lone Tree Interchange Funds, which were collected as part of the
original development agreement, for the funding of current or future transportation infrastructure
improvements associated with the Project's impact on the regional transportation system.
For a period of 10-years, a contribution by the Developer in the amount of $141.26 per lot to be
used for the funding of current or future transportation infrastructure improvements associated with
the Project's impact on the regional transportation system.
A public water main connection from the project to the public main located in John Wesley Powell
Boulevard.

Community Involvement:



Inform

Expanded Options and Alternatives:
The City Council may approve, deny, or modify the agreement as necessary to ensure that the
development meets the objectives of the Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030, the Zoning Code, and the city's
development goals and policies. 

Attachments:  Resolution 2014-38
Pinnacle Pines DA



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-38  
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A FIRST AMENDED AND 
RESTATED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN PINNACLE DEVCO, 
LTD., AND THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF RELATED TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF 
APPROXIMATELY 18.6 ACRES OF REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED 
AT 800 E STERLING LANE. 

 
 
RECITALS: 
 
WHEREAS, Arizona Revised Statutes § 9-500.05 authorizes the City to enter into development 
agreements in order to facilitate the orderly and effective development of properties; and 
 
WHEREAS, Empire Residential Construction, L.P. (the “Original Developer”) was the owner of 
approximately 40 acres of undeveloped real property located near the intersection of Lone Tree 
and Zuni Roads, within the City of Flagstaff, Coconino County, Arizona (the “Original Property”); 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Flagstaff and the Original Developer entered into a development 
agreement, recorded on August 3, 2005 as Instrument Number 3335903 in the Coconino 
County Recorder’s Office (the “Original Agreement”), pursuant to the provisions of Arizona 
Revised Statutes § 9-500.05 (pertaining to development agreements), in order to facilitate the 
proper and orderly development of the Original Property by providing for, among other things, 
conditions, terms, restrictions, and requirements for the permitted uses for the Original Property, 
the density and intensity of such uses, and other matters related to development of the Original 
Property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Original Developer, pursuant to the Original Agreement, proposed to construct 
206 single-family residential townhouse units on the Original Property (the “Original Project”), 
which were to be constructed in two units, of which only 102 single-family residential townhouse 
units (all of Unit 1) were constructed; and  
 
WHEREAS, Pinnacle DevCo, Ltd., an Arizona business corporation (the “Developer”), as the 
successor in interest to the Original Developer, is the owner of approximately 18.6 acres of the 
Original Property generally located at 800 E Sterling Lane (the “Property”), which comprises all 
of the land initially proposed for development as Unit 2 of the Original Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Developer intends to construct 106 single-family residential townhouse units on 
the Property in three phases, as more particularly described and depicted on the Preliminary 
Plat adopted by the City Council on October 21, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Developer and the City wish to enter into a development agreement, in the form 
attached to the staff summary submitted in support of this Resolution (the “Development 
Agreement”), to provide for the terms and conditions under which the Property will be developed 
and to set forth in detail certain obligations of Developer and the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, developing the Property under the terms and conditions of the proposed 
Development Agreement would be consistent with the Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030 and the 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-38   PAGE 2 
 
 
Developer and the City acknowledge that the Development Agreement would operate to the 
benefit of both parties; 
 
 
 
ENACTMENTS: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  That the City of Flagstaff is hereby authorized to enter into the Development 
Agreement in the form attached to the staff summary submitted in support of this Resolution. 
 
SECTION 2.  That the Mayor of the City of Flagstaff is hereby directed to execute the 
Development Agreement on behalf of the City. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council and approved by the Mayor of the City of 
Flagstaff this    day of      , 2014. 
 
 
 
               
        MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
  
CITY ATTORNEY 



 

030805 

When recorded, return to: 

 
City Clerk, City of Flagstaff 
211 West Aspen Avenue 
Flagstaff, Arizona 86001 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 

 

PINNACLE PINES 

 

FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED  

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 
FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA 

 

BY AND BETWEEN 

 

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF 

 

AND 

 

PINNACLE DEVCO, LTD. 

 

________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 - 2 - 

 
 

FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 
 

THIS FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
(“Agreement”) is made as of this ____ day of _______________, 2014, between the City of 
Flagstaff, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Arizona 
(“City”) and Pinnacle DevCo, Ltd., an Arizona business corporation (“Developer”). 
 

RECITALS 

 
A. On June 20, 2005, Empire Residential Construction, L.P., an Arizona limited 

liability partnership (“Original Developer”) was the owner of approximately forty (40) acres of 
undeveloped real property located near the intersection of Lone Tree and Zuni Roads, within the 
City of Flagstaff, Coconino County, Arizona (“Original Property”).  

 
B. On June 20, 2005, the City and the Original Developer entered into a 

development agreement, recorded on August 3, 2005 as Instrument Number 3335903 in the 
Coconino County Recorder’s Office (the “Original Agreement”), pursuant to the provisions of 
Arizona Revised Statutes § 9-500.05 (pertaining to development agreements), in order to 
facilitate the proper and orderly development of the Original Property by providing for, among 
other things, conditions, terms, restrictions, and requirements for the permitted uses for the 
Original Property, the density and intensity of such uses, and other matters related to 
development of the Original Property. 

 
C. Pursuant to the Original Agreement, the Original Developer proposed to construct 

206 units on the Original Property (“Original Project”), to be constructed in two units, of which 
only 102 dwelling units, all of Unit 1, were constructed. 

 
D. The Developer, as successor in interest to Original Developer, is the owner of 

approximately 18.6 acres of the Original Property (the “Property”), a legal description and map 
of which are designated as Exhibit A, attached to and made a part hereof. The Property 
comprises all of the land initially proposed for development as Unit 2 of the Original Project.  

 
E. The Developer intends to construct one hundred and six (106) townhome 

dwelling units on the Property (the “Project”), as more particularly described and depicted 
herein and in the Preliminary Plat, adopted by the Flagstaff City Council on October 21, 2014, 
and designated Exhibit B, attached to and made a part hereof (“Preliminary Plat”) and in the 
Concept Building Elevations designated Exhibit C, attached to and made a part hereof 
(“Concept Building Elevations”).  

 
F. The Developer intends to develop the Project in three phases, as set forth in the 

Preliminary Plat. The initial phase, Phase 1 of Unit 2, consists of eight (8) townhomes located on 
the west side of Sonoma Street between Bailey and Sterling Lanes. This Phase includes those 



 

 

 - 3 - 

lots numbered 103 through 110 on the Preliminary Plat (“Phase 1”). Phase 2 of Unit 2 consists 
of forty-nine (49) townhome lots generally located west of and adjacent to the current Pinnacle 
Pines subdivision. This Phase includes those lots numbered 111 through 159 (“Phase 2”). Phase 
3 of Unit 2 consists of forty-nine (49) townhome lots generally located south of and adjacent to 
Phase 2. This Phase includes those lots numbered 160 through 208 on the Preliminary Plat 
(“Phase 3”). 

 
G. The current zoning of the Property is MR, Medium Density Residential District. 

Pursuant to Ordinance 2005-05, passed and adopted on March 7, 2005, and recorded on April 19, 
2005 as Instrument Number 3317558 in the Coconino County Recorder’s Office, the City 
Council confirmed the Medium Density Residential zoning and imposed general conditions on 
the Original Property and the Original Project. 

 
H. The parties wish to enter into this Agreement to supersede and replace the 

Original Agreement, which will terminate upon the Effective Date of this Agreement, as defined 
below.  

 
I. The City believes that development of the Property pursuant to this Agreement 

and the Preliminary Plat will result in aesthetic, planning, and economic benefits to the City and 
its residents. 

 
J. The Developer acknowledges that development of the Property pursuant to this 

Agreement will be beneficial and advantageous to the Developer. 
 
K. The City and the Developer intend that any development of the Property pursuant 

to this Agreement will be consistent with the Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030: Place Matters 
(“Regional Plan”).  

 
AGREEMENT 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises and 

covenants contained herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 
 
1. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

 
Development of the Property shall be governed by the City’s codes, ordinances, 

regulations, rules, guidelines and policies controlling permitted uses of the Property, design 
review guidelines, the density and intensity of uses, the maximum height and size of the 
buildings within the Property, the Engineering, Design and Construction Standards and 
Specifications, 2004 Edition, or as approved in the final plat, as well as the standards for off site 
and on-site public improvements in existence as of the effective date of this Agreement and as 
the same may be amended or implemented from time to time during the term of this Agreement. 
The parties expressly acknowledge and agree that the City reserves the right to adopt future 
ordinances assessing or imposing development fees under the authority of A.R.S. § 9-463.05, 
which shall be applicable to development of the Property. Developer agrees and understands that 



 

 

 - 4 - 

upon the effective date of this Agreement, all building permits and other fees normally 
applicable to construction within the City shall apply to the Project. 
 

2. CHANGES TO REZONING 

 

For the term of this Agreement, the City shall not initiate any changes or modifications to 
the zoning districts that may be approved for the Property pursuant to this Agreement, except at 
the request of the Developer of that portion of the Property for which such zoning change is 
sought. 
 
3. GUIDING PRINCIPLES 

 
The parties acknowledge that development activities for the Property may extend over 

several years and that many of the requirements and procedures provided for in this Agreement 
contemplate that use of the Property in the future may be subject to procedures, requirements, 
regulations and ordinances not presently in effect, as well as actions and decisions by City staff 
and officials which cannot be provided for with particularity at the time the Agreement was 
executed.  The parties agree that they will act in good faith and with reasonableness in 
implementing, operating under, and exercising the rights, powers, privileges and benefits 
conferred or reserved by this Agreement or by law. However, denying a permit for the 
Developer’s failure to meet the City’s criteria for such permit shall not be deemed a breach by 
the City of this Agreement. 
 
4. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, SITE LAYOUT, AND DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS 

 
4.1 Residential Development.  The Project contemplated by this Agreement 

comprises one hundred and six (106) townhome dwelling units, which number includes three (3) 
dwelling units, located on lots 134, 135, and 136, resulting from the Developer’s voluntary 
contribution to the City’s Affordable Housing Program, as set forth in Section 4.2, below. The 
Property development and design standards, including building elevations, for the planned 
dwelling units shall conform to the Preliminary Plat and Concept Building Elevations.  

 
4.2 Affordable Housing.  The Developer acknowledges the City of Flagstaff’s 

affordable housing set-aside policy but is not seeking any of the affordable housing incentives set 
forth in the 2011 City of Flagstaff Zoning Code. The Developer further acknowledges the many 
goals, policies and strategies listed in the Regional Plan related to the lack of affordable housing 
units within Flagstaff. With the development of the Project, the Developer intends to provide 
market rate housing for residential purposes. The Developer, acknowledging that the Project will 
not directly impact affordable housing shortages within Flagstaff, and to further the efforts of the 
City in addressing the lack of affordable housing units within the community, agrees to pay the 
City the sum of one hundred six thousand dollars ($106,000.00) to be used solely for the benefit 
of affordable housing (the “Affordable Housing Funds”).  The Affordable Housing Funds shall 
be made in payments to the City in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1000.00) for each lot 
owned by the Developer within the Project, with each payment being made on a lot-by-lot basis 
as a condition precedent to issuance of a building permit for such lot.  Nothing contained in this 



 

 

 - 5 - 

Agreement shall prevent the Owner from making a lump sum payment for all or a portion of the 
Affordable Housing Funds. 

 
4.3 Phasing of Project.  Developer has acquired the right-of-way or easement 

necessary for a second vehicular access in a configuration and location acceptable to the City, 
and may commence construction on Phase 1, simultaneously with the construction of the 
roadway across the Southerly Access described in Section 5.1, below, provided that: (1) the eight 
residential units that comprise all of Phase 1 contain fire sprinklers similar to those installed in 
the residences constructed in the Original Project; and (2) the eight residential units that 
comprise all of Phase 1 are not occupied until the roadway across the Southerly Access is 
complete. In the event the Southerly Access is constructed and accepted by the City prior to the 
City issuing a final certificate of occupancy for each of the eight residential units that comprise 
Phase 1, the provisions of this section shall not apply. 

 
4.4 Open Space Dedication.  Concurrent with recordation of each plat for the Project, 

the Developer shall dedicate approximately nine (9) acres of permanent open space in the general 
locations as depicted on the Preliminary Plat. 

 
4.5 Pedestrian Trails. The Developer shall provide for and construct private 

pedestrian trails as generally identified on the Preliminary Plat. 
 

4.5.1 Developer has constructed the pedestrian trail along the west side of the 
Northerly Access drive. 

 
4.5.2 An enhanced crossing must be provided wherever pedestrian trails cross 

private streets at mid-block and not at an intersection. An enhanced crossing may consist 
of textured or colored concrete, landscaped curb swellings on both sides of the street, a 
landscaped median in the center of the street, or a combination of these features. 
Enhanced crossings may also be provided for crosswalks at intersections in compliance 
with the City’s Design Review Guidelines. 

 
4.5.3 All pedestrian trails within the Project must be privately owned and 

maintained but shall be open to the public and subject only to such restrictions or 
conditions applicable both to the public and residents of the Project as necessary to 
address issues of health and safety. 
 
4.6 Detention Basins.  Detention basins and drainage facilities throughout the Project 

shall be designed as site amenities. Wherever possible, detention basins shall be connected to and 
made part of the Project’s open space system and improved with trails and gathering areas. 

 
4.7 Regional Park Fee.  The parties acknowledge that on the Effective Date of the 

Original Agreement, the Original Project would have affected the City’s proposed Lake Mary 
Regional Park, as shown in the 2001 Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan, 
which was to have been constructed to the south and west of the Original Property. Pursuant to 
the Original Agreement, the City collected the sum of two hundred eighty-five dollars ($285.00) 
per dwelling unit, to be used for the construction of and improvements to the Regional Park (the 



 

 

 - 6 - 

“Regional Park Fee”), and payable for 102 dwelling units at the time of building permit 
issuance for the 52nd dwelling unit. The Regional Park Fee was designated as the Developer’s 
fair share contribution towards construction of the Regional Park. The parties agree that, as the 
Regional Park is not, as of the Effective Date of this Agreement, included in either the Regional 
Plan or the Parks and Recreation Organizational Master Plan, those Regional Park Fee currently 
held by the City for a Regional Park pursuant to the Original Agreement, together with any 
accrued interest, shall be reimbursed to the Developer within ninety (90) days upon written 
request for such reimbursement.  No further Regional Park Fee shall be collected by the City in 
association with the Project. 
 
5. STREET IMPROVEMENTS 

 
5.1 Southerly Access. 
 

5.1.1 Prior to or concurrently with platting and construction of Phase 1, see 
Section 4.3, above, the Developer shall plan and construct a new section of roadway in 
accordance with City standards from the south east corner of the Property through the 
private property to the east of the Property (the "Southerly Access"). The Southerly 
Access must be built to City standards for and dedicated to the City as a public street. The 
Southerly Access shall terminate in a cul-de-sac constructed to City standards. 

 
5.1.2 In order to mitigate the impact of the Southerly Access on neighboring 

property owners, the Developer shall, concurrent with the construction of the Southerly 
Access, create a bufferyard and install sight obscuring fencing and/or landscaping 
between the private access roadway and Lots 21 and 22.  To the maximum extent 
feasible, the Developer agrees to retain existing vegetation and trees within this 
bufferyard. 
 
5.2 Lone Tree Interchange. 
 

5.2.1 Existing Lone Tree Interchange Funds.  The Parties acknowledge that 
traffic generated by the Original Project would have affected the proposed interchange at 
Lone Tree Road and Interstate 40 (“Lone Tree Interchange”), as shown in the 2001 
Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan. As the actual construction 
date for the Lone Tree Interchange is, as yet, unknown, the parties agree that all of the 
existing Lone Tree Interchange Funds collected pursuant to the Original Development 
Agreement shall be used solely for the funding of current or future transportation 
infrastructure improvements associated with the Project’s impact on the regional 
transportation system. 

 
5.2.2 Future Transportation Funds Obligation.  The Developer further agrees, 

for a period of ten years from the Effective Date of this Agreement, to pay the City one 
hundred forty one dollars and twenty six cents ($141.26) for each lot owned by the 
Developer as of the Effective Date (as defined herein), with each payment being made on 
a lot-by-lot basis as a condition precedent to issuance of a building permit for such lot 
(collectively, “Future Transportation Funds”). The parties agree that these funds will be 



 

 

 - 7 - 

used solely for the funding of current or future transportation infrastructure 
improvements associated with the Project’s impact on the regional transportation system.  

 
5.2.3 Obligations Fully Satisfied.  The City acknowledges and agrees that the 

payment of the Existing Lone Tree Interchange Funds and the Future Transportation 
Funds satisfies, in full, any obligation relating to current or future transportation 
infrastructure improvements arising from the Project’s impact on the regional 
transportation system. 
 
5.3 Entry Features.  The Developer may install stamped or colored concrete or brick 

pavers in the private streets and sidewalks to create a distinctive entry feature into the Project. 
The Developer may install a freestanding entry monument sign (“Entry Sign”) for the Project at 
the intersection of the Southerly Access, described in Section 5.1, above, and the private road 
leading into the Project, such placement must be consistent with the Flagstaff Zoning Code. The 
Entry Sign shall be placed on property belonging to the Pinnacle Pines Homeowners Association 
and shall conform to all of the provisions of the Flagstaff Zoning Code, including those related to 
freestanding signs, location, size, material and illumination.  Prior to construction, the 
Development shall receive a Sign Permit from the City to ensure compliance to the Zoning Code 
and the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
5.4 Interior Streets.  The City acknowledges the Developer’s desire, evidenced in the 

Preliminary Plat, to construct private streets within the interior of the Project. All such private 
streets within the Project shall be constructed to engineering and technical design standards that 
are substantially similar to those that were applied to Unit 1 of the Original Development. Such 
streets shall be privately owned and maintained by the Project’s homeowners’ association, and 
shall be open to the public without restriction or condition.  Gates, guardhouses, or other devices 
or structures that impede public access may not be used on any private or public street within the 
Project. 
 
6. UTILITIES AND PUBLIC WORKS  
 

6.1 Water Line to South.  The Developer shall provide for and construct a minimum 
eight-inch public water main from the Project to the existing ten-inch public water main in John 
Wesley Powell Boulevard prior to or concurrent with construction of the public improvements 
necessary for the Project’s first residential unit in Phase 1. 

 
6.2. Trash Collection.  The Developer acknowledges that the City’s Public Works 

Department will not collect trash from the front of residential units located on dead-end streets. 
The Developer shall, therefore, provide for and construct alternate facilities for trash collection 
on dead-end streets, which may include a common trash dumpster and enclosure for residential 
units on dead-end streets in a location and configuration acceptable to the City, or a common pad 
and enclosure where residents can place individual trash containers in a location and 
configuration acceptable to the City. 
 
7. CONSTRUCTION OF PUBLIC AND OTHER RELATED IMPROVEMENTS: 

DEDICATION OF PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND EASEMENTS 



 

 

 - 8 - 

 
Prior to Final Plat approval for any component of the Project, the Developer shall provide 

surety in a form satisfactory to the City as set forth in Flagstaff Zoning Code Chapter 10-20.100, 
Assurances of Performance for Construction, that all public and other related improvements will 
be constructed in accordance with approved plans. The Developer shall at its expense construct 
or cause to be constructed all public improvements as required by the City’s codes, ordinances 
and regulations and in accordance with approved specifications. Following construction of the 
described public improvements and dedication of the same to the City at no cost to the City, the 
City shall assume, at the City’s expense, the maintenance and repairs of all public improvements 
in accordance with City policies. 
 
8. VARIANCE FROM LOW IMPACT DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS 
 

The Original Project was designed and constructed in accordance with a single master 
drainage plan, with a storm water detention basin for Unit One, and a portion of Unit Two, 
located entirely in Unit One. This detention basin was sized and built to provide storm water 
collection and retention for both Unit One and a portion of Unit Two of the Original Project 
(“Original Basin”). As the Property, comprising all of the land intended for Unit 2 of the Original 
Project, is part of a pre-approved comprehensive drainage plan, the Parties acknowledge and 
agree that the City’s Stormwater Management Section has granted a variance exempting that 
portion of the Project that drains into the Original Basin from the City’s Low Impact 
Development (LID) requirements. However, the Developer agrees to provide LID to the 
maximum extent practicable within Unit Two. 
 
9. NOTICES 
 

Unless otherwise specifically provided herein, all notices, demands or other 
communications given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly 
delivered upon personal delivery or as of the third business day after mailing by United States 
mail, postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed as 
follows: 
 

To City: 
 

 To Developer: 
 

City Manager 
211 West Aspen Avenue 
Flagstaff, AZ  86001 

 Brian Rhoton 
Pinnacle DevCo, Ltd. 
1750 Railroad Springs Blvd., Suite 10 

 
Copy to: 
 

 Flagstaff, AZ  86001 

City Attorney 
211 W. Aspen Avenue 
Flagstaff, AZ  86001 

  

 
Notice of address may be changed by either party by giving notice to the other party in writing of 
change of address. Such notice shall be deemed to have been effectively given three (3) days 



 

 

 - 9 - 

after mailing by the party changing the address. 
 
10. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

10.1 Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended at any time by written 
amendment executed by both parties, which amendment shall be recorded in the official records 
of Coconino County, Arizona within ten (10) days following the execution thereof by the City. 

 
10.2 Assignment.  Developer’s rights and obligations hereunder may only be assigned 

to a person or entity that has acquired the Property or a portion thereof and only by a written 
instrument, recorded in the Official Records of Coconino County, Arizona, expressly assigning 
such rights and obligations. The City agrees that the ongoing ownership, operation and 
maintenance obligations provided by this Agreement may be assigned to a homeowner’s 
association to be established by the Developer. t The Developer may assign less than all of its 
rights and obligations under this Agreement to those entities that acquire any portion of the 
Property. The Developer may assign all or part of its rights and duties under this Agreement to 
any financial institution from which the Developer has borrowed funds for use in constructing 
the infrastructure improvements or otherwise developing the Property; provided, however, that 
any such financial institution desiring to exercise any rights of the Developer under this 
Agreement in the event of foreclosure shall become a party to this Agreement and be bound by 
the terms and conditions hereof. Before assigning the Developer’s rights and obligations 
pursuant to this Section, the Developer must obtain written consent from the City’s Community 
Development Director, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.   

 
10.3 Authorization.  The parties to this Agreement represent and warrant that the 

persons executing this Agreement on their behalves have full authority to bind the respective 
parties. 

 
10.4 Cancellation.  This Agreement is subject to the cancellation provisions of Arizona 

Revised Statutes § 38-511. 
 
10.5 Captions.  The captions used herein are for convenience only, are not a part of this 

Agreement and do not in any way limit or amplify the terms and provisions hereof. 
 
10.6 Consistent With Regional Plan.  All development on the Property shall be 

consistent with the Regional Plan as required by Arizona Revised Statutes § 9-500.05B. 
 
10.7 Construction of Agreement.  This Agreement has been arrived at by negotiation 

and shall not be construed against either party to it. 
 
10.8 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of 

which shall constitute an original, but all of which together shall constitute but one and the same 
instrument. The signature pages from one or more counterparts may be removed from such 
counterparts and such signature pages all attached to a single instrument so that the signatures of 
all parties may be physically attached to a single document. 

 



 

 

 - 10 - 

10.9 Effective Date of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be effective upon the 
execution of the parties, recordation in accordance with Section 10.19, and upon expiration of 
thirty (30) days following the approval hereof by the City; provided, however, that in the event 
the approval is delayed in its effect by judicial challenge, or by referendum or injunction, the 
effective date of this Agreement shall be delayed until resolution or termination or such judicial 
challenge, referendum or injunction. In the event of judicial challenge, referendum or injunction 
resulting in delay in the effect of this Agreement which extends for a period of more than one 
hundred eighty (180) days following its approval by the City Council, this Agreement shall be 
terminable by the Developer upon written notice to the City in accordance with this Agreement 
at any time within an additional sixty (60) days. Upon termination, this Agreement shall be of no 
further force or effect, and neither party shall have any further obligation hereunder. Any delay 
relative to the effective date of this Agreement by judicial challenge, referendum or injunction 
filed by parties acting independently of and not under the control of the City shall not be deemed 
a default hereunder by the City. 

 
10.10 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 

parties hereto pertaining to the subject matter hereof, and all prior and contemporaneous 
agreements, representations, negotiations and understandings of the parties hereto, oral or 
written, are hereby superseded and merged herein. The foregoing sentence shall in no way affect 
the validity of any instruments executed by the parties in the form of the exhibits attached to this 
Agreement. 

 
10.11 Exhibits.  All exhibits attached to this Agreement are incorporated herein by this 

reference. 
 
10.12 Further Acts.  Each of the parties hereto shall execute and deliver such documents 

and perform such acts as are reasonably necessary, from time to time, to carry out the matters 
contemplated by this Agreement. 

 
10.13 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed under the 

laws of the State of Arizona and shall be deemed made and entered into in Coconino County. 
 
10.14 Litigation and Attorneys Fees.  Except as otherwise agreed by the parties, any 

litigation brought by either party against the other to enforce the provisions of this Agreement 
must be filed in the Coconino County Superior Court. In the event any action at law or in equity 
is instituted between the parties in connection with this Agreement, the prevailing party in the 
action will be entitled to its costs including reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs from the 
non-prevailing party. 

 
10.15 Modification.  No modification of this Agreement shall be deemed effective 

unless in writing and signed by the parties hereto. 
 
10.16 Names and Plans.  Developer shall be the sole owner of all names, titles, plans, 

drawings, specifications, ideas, programs, designs and work product of every nature at any time 
developed, formulated or prepared by, or at the instance of, the Developer in connection with the 
Property. Subject to public records disclosure requirements, all attachments, exhibits, renderings, 



 

 

 - 11 - 

views, and materials attached thereto, and all materials prepared by the Developer and presented 
to the City in conjunction with entitlement permits and approvals are the property of the 
Developer. This reservation does not extend to the documents necessary or in connection with 
any conveyance of portions of the Property to the City. In that instance, such rights shall be 
assigned to the City upon dedication and acceptance of the public infrastructure and 
improvements. 

 
10.17 Negation of Partnership.  The parties specifically acknowledge that the Project 

will be developed as private property, that neither party is acting as the agent of the other in any 
respect hereunder, and that each party is an independent contracting entity with respect to the 
terms, covenants and conditions contained in this Agreement. None of the terms or provisions of 
this Agreement shall be deemed to create a partnership between or among the parties nor shall it 
cause them to be considered joint venturers or members of any joint enterprise. 

 
10.18 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  The City and Developer acknowledge and agree 

that the terms, provisions and conditions hereof are for the sole benefit of, and may be 
enforceable solely by, the City and Developer; and none of such terms, provisions, conditions, 
and obligations are for the benefit of or may be enforced by any third party. 

 
10.19 Recordation of Agreement.  In accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes § 9-

500.05D, this Agreement shall be recorded in its entirety in the official records of the Coconino 
County Recorder, State of Arizona no later than ten (10) days from the date of its execution by 
the City. 

 
10.20 Rights Run With the Land.  Upon recordation of this Agreement in accordance 

with Section 10.19 of this Agreement, all rights and obligations shall constitute covenants that 
run with the land and are binding on all successors-in-interest of the parties. 

 
10.21 Severability.  In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, section, 

article or other portion of this Agreement shall become illegal, null or void or against public 
policy, for any reason, or shall be held by any court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, null 
or void or against public policy, the remaining portions of this Agreement shall not be affected 
thereby and shall remain in force and effect, to the extent that the intent of the parties to develop 
a community in accordance with the Preliminary Plat is still viable. 

 
10.22 Successors and Assigns.  All of the covenants and conditions set forth herein shall 

inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the authorized successors in interest of each of 
the parties. 

 
10.23 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on the effective date of this 

Agreement as defined in Section 10.9 and shall automatically terminate on the twentieth (20th) 
anniversary of the Effective Date of the Original Agreement, August 3, 2025, unless previously 
terminated pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the termination date set 
forth above, any obligation of the Developer, its successors and assigns, unfulfilled at the 
termination date shall survive termination of this Agreement. 

 



 

 

 - 12 - 

10.24 Time of the Essence.  For purposes of enforcing the provisions of this Agreement, 
time is of the essence. 

 
10.25 Waiver.  No waiver by either party of a breach of any of the terms, covenants, 

conditions of this Agreement shall be construed or held to be a waiver of any succeeding or 
preceding breach of the same or any other term, covenant or condition herein contained. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Agreement to be duly executed in its name 
and on its behalf by its Mayor and its seal to be hereunder duly affixed and attested by its City 
Clerk, and the Developer has signed the same on or as of the day and year first above written. 
 
City of Flagstaff, 

an Arizona municipal corporation 
 Pinnacle DevCo, Ltd., an Arizona 

business corporation 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

, Mayor   
By:  

 
 

  
Title:  

Attest:   
 
 
 
 

  

City Clerk   
 
 

  

Approved as to form:   
 
 
 
 

  

City Attorney   
 
 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
    ) ss.  
County of Coconino  ) 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT. On this __________ day of ____________________, 2014, before me, 
a Notary Public, personally appeared, Mayor of the City Flagstaff, known to be or satisfactorily 
proven to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged 
that he executed the same on behalf of the City of Flagstaff, for the purposes therein contained. 



 

 

 - 13 - 

 
 
 
 

Notary Public 
 
 
My Commission Expires: 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA ) 

) ss. 
County of Coconino  ) 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT. On this __________ day of ____________________, 2014, before me, 
a Notary Public, personally appeared ______________________________, known to be or 
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged that he executed the same on behalf of Pinnacle DevCo, Ltd., an Arizona business 
corporation, for the purposes therein contained. 
 
 
 
 

Notary Public 
 
 
My Commission Expires: 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 - 14 - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LIST OF EXHIBITS 

 

 
Exhibit A   Legal Description  
 
Exhibit B  Preliminary Plan 
 
Exhibit C  Concept Building Elevations  
 
 
 
 



  15. B.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Brian Kulina, Planning Development Manager

Date: 10/29/2014

Meeting Date: 11/03/2014

TITLE: 
Consideration and Approval of a Final Plat and Map of Dedication  request by Mogollon Engineering
& Surveying, Inc., on behalf of Pinnacle 146 LLC, for the subdivision of approximately 0.63 acres into 8
single-family residential townhouse lots located at 800 E Sterling Lane within the Medium Density
Residential (MR) zone and the dedication of right-of-way within a portion of Tract 22 of The Estates at
Pine Canyon One.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends that the Council approve the final plat and Map of Dedication and authorize the
Mayor to sign the final plat, the City/Subdivider Agreement and Map of Dedication when notified by
staff that all documents are ready for signature and recordation.

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
This application is being processed in accordance with the established final plat standards found within
Section 11-20.70.030.F of the Subdivision Code, which states that upon receipt of a final
recommendation from the Community Development Director and City Engineer, the City Council shall
review the final plat for final approval.  Such approval indicates that the final plat meets the requirements
of the Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, and the Engineering Design Standards, and is in substantial
conformance with an approved preliminary plat.

Subsidiary Decision Points:
This is the second to two related items.  Should the associated Development Agreement be approved by
the City Council, this final plat will be considered for approval. 

Financial Impact:
No financial liabilities are anticipated by the approval of this final plat.

Connection to Council Goal:
Repair Replace maintain infrastructure (streets & utilities)
Retain, expand, and diversify economic base
Effective governance

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
The City Council approved the Pinnacle Pines Unit 2 Preliminary Plat on October 21, 2014.
  
   



   

Options and Alternatives:
Approve the final plat and map of dedication as recommended by staff.1.
Approve the final plat and map of dedication subject to conditions.2.
Deny the final plat and map of dedication based on non-compliance with the approved preliminary
plat, the Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, or the Engineering Standards

3.

Background/History:
Pinnacle 146, LLC, the property owner of record of approximately 18.59 acres located at 800 E Sterling
Lane within the Pinnacle Pines townhouse subdivision, is requesting final plat approval to subdivide
approximately 0.63 acres into 8 single-family residential townhouse lots within the Medium
Density Residential (MR) zone.

In August of 1998, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 1976 that conditionally rezoned the site from
Rural Residential (RR) to Medium Residential (MR) for the development of an affordable residential
townhouse project consisting of 548 units called Zuni Heights. Concurrently, the Growth Management
Guide 2000 land use designation for the site was amended from Medium Density Residential to High
Density Residential in order to support the increase in density. Subsequent to the approval of Growth
Management Guide amendment and rezoning, platting was not pursued and the site was never
developed.

On March 7, 2005, the City Council approved Resolution No. 2005-15 approving a Development
Agreement between the City and developer, Resolution No. 2005-16 that amended the Flagstaff Area
Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan land use designation for the site from High Density
Residential to Medium Density Residential in order to support a reduced density, Ordinance No. 2005-05
that modified the conditions of Ordinance No. 1976 for the development of a single-family residential
townhouse project consisting of 206 units called Pinnacle Pines, and a tentative plat for Unit 1 of the
subdivision.

On October 21, 2014, the City Council approved the Pinnacle Pines Unit 2 Preliminary Plat for the
subdivision of approximately 18.59 acres into 106 single-family residential townhouse lots.

Community Involvement:
Inform

The subject property's existing zoning allows for the proposed subdivision.  No public hearing or public
outreach is required as part of the City Council's review of the final plat.

Attachments:  Final Plat Application
City/Subdivider Agreement
Links Rd Dedication Map
Phase 1 Final Plat
















	Agenda
	Item04_A  Minutes
	ATT.10.28.2014.CCSMES.Minutes
	Item08_A  Liquor License Application for Andrea Lewkowitz, _Smashburger_, Series 12, New License
	ATT.Smashburger - Letter to Applicant
	ATT.Hearing Procedures
	ATT.Series 12 Description
	ATT.Smashburger - PD Memo
	ATT.Smashburger - Code Memo
	ATT.Smashburger - Tax Memo
	Item10_A  Ord. 2014-28 - Amending Title II, Boards and Commission, of the Flagstaff City Code
	ATT.Ord. 2014-28
	Item14_A  Aspen Heights Annexation
	ATT.PandZ Commission Staff Report
	ATT.Annexation Application
	ATT.Annexation Legal Description
	ATT.Zoning Map with City limits
	ATT.Annexation Public Hearing Notices
	ATT.PandZ Commission Draft Minutes
	ATT.Ord. 2014-30
	Item14_B  Aspen Heights Zoning Map Amendment
	ATT.PandZ Commission Staff Report
	ATT.PandZ Commission Draft Minutes
	ATT.Application and Narrative
	ATT.Site Analysis
	ATT.Zoning Map
	ATT.RLUTP Land Use Map
	ATT.FRP 2030 Goals and Policies
	ATT.TIA acceptance memo
	ATT.Public Hearing Advertisments
	ATT.Citizen Participation Plan and Report
	ATT.Citizen Comment Email Letters
	ATT.Concept Plans
	ATT.Ordinance 2014-31
	ATT.Draft DA
	ASPEN HEIGHTS MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT
	ANNEXATION AND
	DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
	AND BETWEEN
	CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
	AND
	YORK BRECKENRIDGE GP, LLC
	ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
	RECITALS
	AGREEMENT
	1. Incorporation of Documents and Recitals.  All documents and exhibits referred to in this Agreement and the Recitals stated above are hereby incorporated by reference into this Agreement.
	2. General Plan Conformance.  The Parties expressly acknowledge and agree that the annexation and development contemplated pursuant to this Agreement is consistent with those portions of the 2001 Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and Transportation Pla...
	Gerald W. Nabours, Mayor
	City Clerk
	City Attorney
	DEVELOPER
	York Breckenridge GP, LLC
	Notary Public

	Item15_A  Pinnacle Pines First Amended and Restated DA
	ATT.Resolution 2014-38
	ATT.Pinnacle Pines DA
	Item15_B  Pinnacle Pines Unit 2 Phase 1 Final Plat & Map of Dedication
	ATT.Final Plat Application
	ATT.City_Subdivider Agreement
	ATT.Links Rd Dedication Map
	ATT.Phase 1 Final Plat

